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MBRE
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

UTAEBIRGEEARAF(EXDT] The following is a summary of the results and assets

[BIRBDLREMBAR(EAEB)MEZE and liabilities of Binjiang Service Group Co. Ltd. (the

20184 ~ 20194F  20204F - 20214F 2022412 “Company” or “Binjiang Service”) and its subsidiaries

AMNBULFESFNEENEELEBEME - (the “Group”) for each of the years ended 31 December
2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022.

FEBE RESULTS SUMMARY

i3

Note 2018 2019 2020 2021 m

ON Revenue

(AE®F) (RMB’000) 509,470 701,875 960,201 1,398,947 1,982,633

Zm increase 45.9% 37.8% 36.8% 45.7% 41.7%
EAX Gross profit

(ANE®F) (RMB’000) 134,953 197,040 297,317 449,677 592,247

0 increase 49.8% 46.0% 50.9% 51.2% 31.7%
EH = Gross profit margin (1) 26.5% 28.1% 31.0% 32.1% 29.9%
ERHE Profit for the year

(AE®FT) (RMB’000) 70,423 114,921 220,274 325,021 418,968

bl increase 22.4% 63.2% 91.7% 47.6% 28.9%
A& Net profit margin 2) 13.8% 16.4% 22.9% 23.2% 21.1%
AAREZRE  Profit attributable to

FE15 718 equity shareholders

(AR®Fr)  of the Company

(RMB’000) 70,177 114,681 219,550 321,751 411,995

& m increase 22.7% 63.4% 91.4% 46.6% 28.0%
EXREE Basic and diluted earnings

BRAF per share

(AR¥7) (RMB) 035 0.44 079 1.16 1.49
Mt - Notes:
(1) FEMETIREMBRABRAGH - (1) Gross profit margin is calculated as gross profit divided by

revenue.
(2 FHREDUFAFBEBRIAWAGTE - (2)  Net profit margin is calculated as profit for the year divided by
revenue.

STHUS SRR ) FERE 2022 5
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

SUMMARY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2018 2019 2020 2021 m

EEHEEME
k3
Note

HeRBEEEYW Cash and cash equivalents
(AE®TFr)  (RMB'000)

mBEE Current assets
(AREFT)  (RMB'000)

BEE Total assets
(AE®TFr)  (RMB'000)

mEAE Current liabilities
(AE®TFr)  (RMB'000)

wafm Total liabilities
(AREFT)  (RMB'000)

ARNEERKRR  Total equity attributable
it to equity shareholders
(AR®Fr)  of the Company

(RMB'000)
JRERERERE  Return on shareholders’

equity 3)
mE L & Current ratio )

BEAMBELE  Gearing ratio

(5)

it
(3) MR 2 12 9 T b AR A 7 A 2 0 R A A 8
B LA BB SR 3 T o

(4 RBLXDURDEERURDAETE -

(5) BEBBLXDUAEEFRABEREREARE)
BB RZEREBENE -  AEER202F
12A31B K201 12 AWM EEABH XS B A
0.0004%0.002 °

6 BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

458,543 516,707 805,394 905,746 1,949,891

534,720 1,084,484 1,368,118 1,482,250 2,640,070

551,095 1,203,626 1,502,589 1,684,636 2,993,992

366,363 476,316 642,953 710,957 1,680,801

366,363 477,078 644,256 711,076~ 1,707,684

181,358 721,834 841,625 941,589 1,246,254

38.7% 15.9% 26.1% 34.2% 33.1%
1.46 2.28 2.13 2.08 1.57
TEA
N/A 0.004 0.003 0.002 0.0004
Notes:

(3) Return on shareholders’ equity is calculated as total profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company divided by
shareholders’ equity.

(4) Current ratio is calculated as current assets divided by current
liabilities.

(5) Gearing ratio is calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings
(including lease liabilities) divided by total equity at the end of
the respective period. The Group’s gearing ratios were 0.0004
and 0.002 as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
respectively.
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ERE®RE
CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

To all Shareholders,

Thank you for your trust in and support to the Group.
On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Director(s)”) of the Company, | am pleased to present
the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”).

In 2022, the National Development and Reform
Commission (NDRC) issued the “Implementation Plan
for the New Type of Urbanization in the 14th Five-Year
Plan”, which mentioned the need to improve the level
of governance of and service to subdistrict communities
and promote the standardization of community services
under the current development situation. It is clearly
pointed out that the coverage of property services
shall be increased, pilot projects for standardization of
property services shall be launched, and the management
of property services shall be improved. Property service is
an important part of subdistrict community governance.
The Group will continue to actively respond to the
government’s call to combine its own services with
assistance in governance and contribute to the orderly
development of society.

In 2022, in accordance with the direction of the Board for
the continuous maintenance and effective enhancement
of service quality, the Group, under the leadership of the
management, has solidly and steadily pushed forward the
implementation of various tasks, based on adhering to
quality services and establishing brand development as its
strategy, continuously reinforcing its competitiveness and
continuously promoting sound corporate development.

i
Y
|
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

AEBERBTRERENRB L NF
RRTFEYE—R  HTET] BERT
NEIEZMRBIRE - UBBRILERZEEE -
AREBENER BHEARBEE=EABRSE
EOFEHARTREL 2BENRERETT
BYEMAEREERBEL  RAEFHAER
EE MEBEERMESTN FEEEEBR
BmE AEEENENREER LE—F
PHRERENBRER  ZFEENEE
EUMORRHBME Lt cEREBRAERE
BRTEMIEREBEATF  MAORZEMIE
TTMEERREME - IS AEERES
Be2ME BRILLE2EH BYXE2EE
BB E REMHEEZE2REIE-

AEEREKBHALERENEREE LA
RESRERER  SEEEBEARINAETE
O & E2022F12A318 A5 EREE
EEVETEANEREEEZEBRR(E
EEEEMBDANBEEFHF K ALEE
401% HARBERBUYUE =N EERE
HEAZIBETFK HREEEELEE
LE I #55.0% @ REFREE EFA6.8MEED B -
02F ML EEEEMBENROBEF K
HABBERBYE=Z AR EDT21% °

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

The Group adheres to its mission of providing high-
quality services and strives to become a top property
management brand in China and a benchmark in
Zhejiang, and has strictly implemented the service
quality standards of the Company, and implemented the
responsibility with grid management. Consisting of the
three-level inspection system based on the headquarters,
regions and projects, the Group continues to carry out
regular and comprehensive quality inspection actions and
issue summary reports to urge rectification. Meanwhile,
supplemented by remote management, satisfaction
survey and other methods, the Group firmly controls
project service quality. On the basis of the previous
inspections, the Group further clarified the inspection
standards and rectification requirements, implemented
rectifications on schedule, and helped to solve difficult
and complicated problems. By improving the reward
and punishment mechanism and sharing solutions, the
Group is committed to consolidating and improving the
quality of property management services. In addition,
the Group attaches great importance to safety issues,
strengthens safety awareness, establishes a safety
responsibility linkage system and earnestly carries out
safety inspections of projects.

The Group continues to adhere to its quality expansion
strategy, and strives to promote growth by utilizing its
brand name and use projects under management as the
main window for outward expansion. As at 31 December
2022, the gross floor area currently managed by the
Group (“GFA under management”) under signed
property management contracts was approximately
42.0 million sg.m., representing an increase of 40.1%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year.
GFA under management developed by independent
third parties reached 23.1 million sgq.m., accounting for
55.0% of total GFA under management and representing
an increase of 6.8 percentage points as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. GFA under
management newly acquired during 2022 reached
12.0 million sgq.m., 72.1% of which were developed by
independent third parties.
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ERE®RE
CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

As at 31 December 2022, the GFA managed under signed
property management contracts (“contracted GFA")
was approximately 69.1 million sg.m., representing an
increase of 38.7% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. Contracted GFA newly acquired
during 2022 reached 19.3 million sgq.m., 59.1% of which
were developed by independent third parties.

In addition to its existing 13 strategic partners, the Group
commenced its cooperation with Wancheng Group (& #
£& B) in Haining, Jiaxing, Zhejiang province and Xianhua
Investment (fllZE# &) in Pujiang County, Jinhua City
in 2022, and having made its debut in Haining for the
first time, the Group successfully obtained 4 projects
by virtue of its reputation and quality. The Group also
expanded to Shenzhen in Guangdong province during
the year, and had contracted projects in 18 cities in total.
The contracted GFA of Ningbo in Zhejiang Province and
Shanghai increased by 155.1% and 135.8% respectively
from the end of 2021. At the same time, the Group is
actively launching Landing Strategy through pursuing the
development of benchmark projects in the regions it has
entered. In 2022, the Group has moved into a number
of projects in the Shanghai region through expansion.
With project upgrading and service standard upgrading
as the two main focuses, the Group aims to provide
high-quality projects with quality services and strive for
the benchmark of Shanghai first-class property service
demonstration projects. In addition, after expanding
its presence in Hainan Province in 2021, the Group has
expanded its service territory again and won the tender
for a new project in Haikou City, Hainan Province in
2022 through cooperation with its strategic partner
Jiayuan Property. The Group attaches great importance
to market expansion, consolidating the strength of
the headquarter expansion team and adding new key
regional development teams to continue to cultivate the
target markets.

BB EEAR FEHE 2022
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

AEBRINBERERBFTLRESEET I
GEEEFE 202FEAEBFEZMMT
FERMIINETEE  MEBAEARK6ST,
FHK A HBHELEEMEERERFEN
BE(EBEHLE) FEARSBEAAR
#2,0008 7 - EREEEEFE EMME
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The Group is committed to bringing quality services
to more owners. In terms of inventory projects, in
2022, the Group won the bid of a residential project in
Wulin Waitan of Hangzhou with the monthly property
management fee being RMB6.8 per sg.m. and the bid
of a residential project in Shanghai, Top of The City (X
#E §8 4 %= ) (Shanghai Feile Park (/8% % QA H))
with an annual contract value of nearly RMB20 million.
In terms of the reserve projects, the monthly property
management fees of the newly signed Hangzhou Luna
Mansion ()8 8 £ A 3t ) Project and Tianlan Coastal
Apartment* (K8 2E) Project are RMB5.95 per
sg.m. and RMB5.1 per sg.m., respectively, which shows
the owners’ recognition of the Group's service quality
and brand reputation. In addition, the Group strives to
broaden its service boundary by adding new elderly-
related properties and urban services in 2022. The
Group will continue to provide land reserve management
services for the Hangzhou Municipal Bureau of Land,
actively expanding its experience and enhancing its
comprehensive service capability.

By virtue of its excellent brand reputation, the Group
gave full play to its concentration advantage, and
gradually promoted 5S value-added services based on
exploring the needs of property owners and matching its
own resources, that is, it continues to provide quality
services for one-stop care and maintenance of housing
assets.

During the year, the Group actively developed and
promoted the 5S value-added services, among which, the
Youjia (& ) services has become increasingly influential
in the target market with its high standards and stringent
requirements. The second-hand property sales have
achieved initial results. The rental and sale business
covers more than 70 communities in Hangzhou. In the
future, the Group will continue to actively promote and
expand the scope of its business.
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In terms of Youju ({& J&) services, the Group focuses on
the practical needs of the owners, and in terms of
“Living Home" services, the Group has transformed the
business direction from the original partial cabinet
configuration to overall decoration. The interior design
service will be promoted simultaneously through a
combination of internal and external cooperation, and
the furnishing business will be further implemented to
explore the Group’s expertise in the upgrading of
equipment and facilities.

In addition, the Group will continue to develop home
living services such as Youxiang living services (18 Z4 /&),
and will rely on its existing resources and brand image to
provide its customers with thoughtful and quality
services.

The Group has put great efforts in promoting the
standardization of products and management. The Group
has promoted the establishment of standardized
leadership teams for property quality management, cost
control management, pre-property services and site
services management, and implemented the mechanism
of comparison, learning and inspections from the aspects
of hard facilities and soft services of projects. On the
basis of its original system, the Group deepened the
standardization system, actively responded to the work
requirements of energy conservation, environmental
protection and consumption reduction, and strengthened
expense and cost control while the service process is not
shortened, the standard and quality of service is not
reduced, and the quality brand image is established. The
Group will summarize management experience and
market feedback to make standardization become the
basis of quality service and efficient management.
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The Group continued to strengthen the construction of
informatization and intellectualization to fully utilize the
support of information technology for business
management. The Group has optimized and upgraded
the functions of its internal financial and human
resources management systems, and fully promoted the
application programs in the projects. The Group will
combine its online system and offline facilities to provide
better service experience to our owners while enhancing
its management efficiency.

The Group attached great importance to staff reserve
and training. In 2022, the Group further strengthened
the construction of talent echelons and actively built up
its internal talent pool. The Group has increased
university-enterprise cooperation, and established four
new strategic cooperative universities; meanwhile, it has
intensified efforts to introduce, train and reserve key
personnel, and improved the personnel training
mechanism with the help of various professional courses
in the online training platform “Binjiang Academy”.

During the Reporting Period, the Group ranked 14th
among the Top 100 Property Management Service
Brands selected by CIA, and won the titles of “2022
Outstanding Residential Property Service Provider in
China” 022 B EEW X RIE 1B F® %) and “TOP
10 Outstanding Property Service Providers in Hangzhou”
(AL % R B F 1 ¥TOP 10) granted by CIA, and
the “Quality Service Provider for the City” (3 T 3 47 iR
7% 7)) awarded by Tianmu News, and ranked 28th among
the 2022 Top 100 Blue Chip Property Companies granted
by the Economic Observer. During the Reporting Period,
the projects under the Group’s management received
148 awards in total. Some of the awards are as follows:
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Pinghu Wanjia Flower City Xingheyuan*, Jiande Guanlan
Mansion*, Wulin No. 1 Apartment* and Golden Landing
were awarded as “Residential Area with Chinese Garden
in Zhejiang* O /L& BM X EEER)” by the Zhejiang
Branch of the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of the PRC (CH/I&1F &= Flim 40 i 5% B2).
Xijiangyue Garden* and Xiujin community* were
awarded as “Residential Area with Chinese Garden in
Jinhua* (£ ZE B # =\ & £ & )" by Jinhua Bureau of
Housing and Urban Rural Construction (£ Z M EF).
Xixi Mingzhu Apartment*, Qiandaohu Dongfang Haian*,
Baifeng Longyue Mansion*, Haiming Yayuan*, Lansong
Aofu*, Yupinwan* and Xingyi Jiayuan* were awarded as
“Model Community for Residential Area in Hangzhou (#
M ESRET=ETRENDE) by the Hangzhou
Housing Security and Management Bureau (f1 /M W 1E &
REMEEET®EB) Wulin No. 1 Apartment* was
awarded as “Benchmark Unit of Water Saving in Zhejiang
Province (/I 4& & /K112 B fL)” by Zhejiang Provincial
Water Resources Department ( i I & 7K F| EE ).
Yupinwan* was awarded as “2022 Provincial
Water-efficient Communities (20224 & A& &7 K B /N & )~
issued by Zhejiang Branch of the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development of the PRC (T /I %& x & 1,
4B 52 7% E2). Shangrao Zhuxili* was awarded as “First
Place for Civilized Community (XB3/NEE— )" by
Guangxin Housing and Urban-Rural Development Bureau
of Shangrao City (FEMEERESMBMLERD),
the “Garden Style Residential Community of Shangrao
City (E#&m X BE/MaBEMRKEE/NE)" by Shangrao
City Urban Management Committee ( E &M m & E £
B) and the "Garden Style Residential Community of
Jiangxi Province (VL 75 & B # X /& (£ & )" by Jiangxi
Urban Construction Management Association (;T 754 ¥
MEHZEEWE). Shuangwan International City* was
awarded as “Demonstration Community of Household
Waste Classification in Zhejiang Province (#1 T & 4 /& &/
A FEE/NE)". Quzhou Yujiangnan* was awarded
as “Quzhou Property Service Demonstration Project (%
MY % R~ % I8 B )" Yiwu Park No. 1* was
awarded as “Yiwu Property Management Demonstration
Project (EEMYWXEIER#IEH)" by Yiwu Housing
and Urban-Rural Development Bureau (& & ™ {E & 13
#0352 3% /). Shanghai Binjiang Park No. 1* was awarded
as “Shanghai Excellent Community (/8 TEF/N&E)".
Zijinfu* and Quzhou Chunjiangyue* were awarded as
“Five Stars Property Service Project in China (FF B 7 £ #%
¥ % AR 7518 B)" issued by Beijing China Index Academy.

BB EEAR FEHE 2022
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The Group has actively organized various community
activities. In May 2022, the Group and Tianmu Media Co.,
Ltd. ( X B %7 B ., a subsidiary of Zhejiang Daily Group)
co-organized a short video filming activity for the owners
of Binjiang service properties, “Find Your Light” (R &)
Jt). At the end of the activity, Tianmu Media’s “Chaoke”
(&) channel received over 200 short videos under the
#findyourlight# (# = # fF & 3 #) hashtag. The videos
covered a wide variety of community activities and the
number of likes was over 700,000 times, which gained
wide attention and praise. In 2022, the Group proposed to
carry out an elderly accompanying plan, the “Ginkgo
Service” (3R B ARTE) plan, advocating that the property
management staff shall visit the elderly regularly and pair
with the elderly living alone, so that they can experience
the warm and intimate service and care.

There is no limit to serve with quality. The Group will

continue to assume its social responsibilities in alignment
with its corporate reputation.

Chairman
Zhu Lidong

Hong Kong, PRC, 24 March 2023
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back to 2022, the Group maintained steady
growth and continued to develop and take root in the
Yangtze River Delta, further expanding its operations
within Yangtze River Delta. The Group has a total of 155
subsidiaries and branches across the Zhejiang Province,
Shanghai, Jiangsu Province, Jiangxi Province, Hainan
Province and Guangdong Province in China. Moreover,
the Group has recorded sizeable increase in both GFA
under management and the contracted GFA. As of 31
December 2022, the GFA under management was
approximately 42.0 million sq.m., representing a
year-on-year increase of 40.1%. The contracted GFA was
approximately 69.1
year-on-year increase of 38.7%, which will strongly
support the business growth of the Group.

million sq.m., representing a

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’'s
revenue increased by 41.7% to RMB1,982.6 million. The
Group's gross profit increased by 31.7% from the
corresponding period of 2021 to RMB592.2 million. The
Group's gross profit margin decreased by 2.2 percentage
points from the corresponding period of 2021 to 29.9%.
Revenue generated from property management services,
value-added services to non-property owners and 5S
value-added services amounted to RMB1,193.4 million,
RMB540.2 million and RMB249.0 million, respectively. In
2022, the average monthly property management fee of
the Group was approximately RMB4.26 per sq.m. (2021:
RMB4.30 per sq.m.), calculated by dividing the property
management fee income for the Reporting Period by the
average chargeable GFA at the beginning and the end of
the Reporting Period. Leveraging its brand recognition
and industry influence, the Group was able to charge
relatively higher property management fee for its quality
property management services. From 2015 to 2022, the
Group increased management fee 45 times (JX).

STRBEEARAT EERE 2022
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The Group provided high-quality services that are
tailored to its customers’ needs and maintained its brand
recognition and awareness. Its ranking increased to 14th
among the top 100 property management service brands
selected by CIA, and won the titles of “2022
Outstanding Residential Property Service Provider in
China” (20227 B ¥ % R 7% B F B %) and "TOP
10 Outstanding Property Service Providers in Hangzhou”
(ALY % R B F - ¥TOP 10) granted by CIA, and
the “Quality Service Provider for the City” (3 T 3 47 iR
7% ™) awarded by Tianmu News, and ranked 28th among
the 2022 Top 100 Blue Chip Property Companies granted
by the Economic Observer. As the Group’s quality
services are highly recognised within the region,
Hangzhou Binjiang Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.* (47 /M
BT EERAR AR, (the “Binjiang Holdings”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Binjiang Group”),
a leading property developer in China, have established
close business relationship with the Group and
continuously provided a large number of premium
properties to the Group. In 2022, the total annual sales
of Binjiang Group amounted to RMB153.9 billion, ranking
13th in the list of national real estate enterprises of
China Real Estate Information Corporation (“CRIC") (72
M ¥%), which was 9 places higher than that of the same
period last year. In addition, the Group acquired 41
pieces of quality land in total, 38 of which were in
Hangzhou.
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Leveraging its high-quality services, the Group was able
to expand its business through various channels and
undertake a wide range of projects, including but not
limited to undertaking government projects, maintaining
good relationships with strategic partners and expanding
its direct sales. During the year, the Group actively
promoted the third-party project expansion strategy. As
of 31 December 2022, the Group’s newly-added
contracted GFA from independent third party reached
11.4 million square meters, accounting for 59.1% of the
total new contracted GFA. The 23.1 million square
meters of GFA under management derived from
independent third parties, representing a year-on-year
increase of 60.0%. Revenue generated from property
management services provided to projects developed by
independent third parties amounted to RMB536.8
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 93.3%. In
respect of diversifying the type of management business,
the Group increased management projects including
hospitals, elderly care services and high-tech research
institutes. In respect of regional expansion, the Group
increased projects in Shenzhen, Guangdong Province.

In view of the rapid development of the overall property
services industry in recent years, the Group shall expand
its scale and increase its profit while maintaining its
service quality. The Group will regard its services quality
as its core competitiveness and will raise the standard of
specialized services by leveraging its effective structure
management. The Group will increase its investment in
technologies to enhance the efficiency of its management
and operation. Through strengthening staff management,
monitoring facilities and equipment and upgrading
internal systems, the operation procedures will be
streamlined and the quality assurance system will be
optimized, and expense control and cost control will be
strengthened while improving its service capabilities. The
Group will be able to achieve synergetic development of
quality, scale and profitability.

STRBEEARAR FERE 2022
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BUSINESS MODELS OF THE GROUP

Due to the expansion of services, the Group committed
itself to becoming the owner’s trusted property
management and maintenance provider and positioned
its 5S value-added services as a driver of future profit
growth in strict accordance with the strategic deployment
of the Board. The management of the Company classified
business segments into property management services,
value-added services to non-property owners and 55
value-added services, forming an entire value chain of
comprehensive services within property management.

Property management services. The Group provides
property owners with a series of high-quality property
management services, including security, cleaning,
gardening, repair, maintenance and ancillary services,
and charges service fee from residents and property
owners or real estate developers of such properties
under our management for property management
In addition, the Group provides land reserve
management services, primarily including land
management and maintenance, green planting and
maintenance, wall and fence painting works, muck
removal and transportation, installation and management
of monitoring devices, and others.

services.

Value-added services to non-property owners.
The Group provides value-added services to non-property
owners, mainly to property developers. These services
refer to pre-delivery services, consulting services and
community space services. Pre-delivery services include
cleaning, assisting with quality check and security
services for completed properties and display units and
providing property sales venue management services to
property developers during the pre-delivery stage of
property sales. Consulting services include advising
property developers at the early and construction stages
on project planning, design management and
construction management to enhance functionality,
comfort and convenience. Community space services
include (i) assisting advertisement companies with
regards to advertisement placements in the community
spaces in our managed properties, and (ii) managing
community venues in our managed properties.
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5S value-added services. The Group also provides 5S
value-added services to property owners, including three
major businesses, namely Youjia services, Youju services
and Youxiang living services.

Youjia services include the primary and secondary
property sales and leasing agency services, car parking
space and storage room services. The Group is
committed to providing seamless services for customers
with its own resources.

Youju services include the furnishing services. It adheres
to its “Living Home" interior services concept to provide
customers with elegant, stylish, modern and customized
furnishing services and interior design services, home
decoration services and facility upgrade services and
maintenance.

Youxiang living services include home living services. In
view of the different functions in residential and
non-residential properties, the Group provides additional
services that are tailored to its customers’ needs.

It has been the strategic objective of the Group to
expand its managed area. The Group seeks to maintain
steady increase in contracted GFA and GFA under
management through various channels. The table below
sets out the changes of contracted GFA and GFA under
management of the Group for 2022 and 2021:

8220225127310 HZE2021%12A31H

As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
a8 EE Bl rE
BEEE BEZEHE BEM@MEB BEM@ME
Contracted GFA under Contracted GFA under
GFA management GFA  management
(FEHEXK) (FEHEXK) (FFAK) (FEFXK)
('000 sq.m.)  ('000 sq.m.) ('000 sq.m.) ('000 sq.m)
R EA) At the beginning of the year 49,783 29,948 35,488 19,955
i Addition 19,853 12,600 14,330 10,028
Fls Termination (578) (578) (35) (35)
REXR At the end of the year 69,058 41,970 49,783 29,948

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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A 20229128318 A& E H4AS1E A X HEE & Note: As of 31 December 2022, the Group had 451 contracted

KEREEE A69.18 & F K (R2021412A318 : projects and the contracted GFA was 69.1 million sq.m. (as of 31
315 IEH - 498ABFE A K) - GHNEEEBEIE December 2021: 315 projects of 49.8 million sq.m.). Contracted
AEERBEFEVEEEANBERERRHS GFA refers to the GFA managed or to be managed by the Group
EIBMEEES - under signed management contracts.

TREH AL ER2022F F2021F W EEE  The table below sets forth the breakdown of the Group's

fRIsW A 4%  EEELEEEREEHBPMA total property management services revenue, GFA under

(RYEFEIE D) : management and number of projects by type of
properties during 2022 and 2021:

2022% 20214
2022 2021

EE rE
A BEME ERY L/ON BE@E BEY
GFA under Number of GFA under  Number of
Revenue management projects Revenue  management projects

(AR# (AR

T ) (FEAXK) T (FEAXK)

(RMB’000) ('000 sq.m.) (RMB'000) ('000 sg.m.)
(B Residential 837,858 32,782 189 667,003 23,635 132
FEE Non-residential 339,468 9,188 97 160,099 6,313 64
THER Land management 16,121 - — 13,444 — —
@it Total 1,193,447 41,970 286 840,546 29,948 196

20 BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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TREF AL B R2022F R2021F WX B The table below sets forth the breakdown of the Group'’s

fRAIEW A 4%  EEEEERENRBEHBAM total revenue from property management services, GFA

(EREHERE ) : under management and number of projects by type of
developers of 2022 and 2021:

2022 20215
2022 2021
EE £E
0N BEER HRE WA REEE HEY
GFA under  Number of GFA under ~ Number of
Revenue management projects Revenue management projects
(AE# (AR®
Fr)  (F¥AK) Tr) (F¥RK)
(RMB'000) (000 sq.m.) (RMB'000)  ('000 sg.m.)

EITEMBEEN  Properties developed by

ES Binjiang Group 640,497 18,863 114 549,434 15,510 89
— BHRER — early stage 365,561 12,580 75 295,448 8,756 53
—¥Zelg — property owners’
association stage 274,936 6,283 39 253,986 6,754 36
BUMEREERM  Properties developed by
EMmE independent property
developers 536,829 23,107 172 277,668 14,438 107
— BHRER — early stage 341,984 17,168 136 179,046 10,584 80
—¥Zelg — property owners’
association stage 194,845 5,939 36 98,622 3,854 27
THER Land management 16,121 - - 13,444 — —
@it Total 1,193,447 41,970 286 840,546 29,948 196

BIRGEEARAR FEME 2022
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TREF AL B R2022F R2021F WX B The table below sets forth the breakdown of the Group'’s

fRAEW ABE  EEZEMBEREEHER total revenue from property management services, GFA

A (= & 5) under management and number of projects by
geographic regions of 2022 and 2021:

2022 20215
2022 2021
EE EE
ON REER HEH WA RBRE@RE EHRY
GFA under Number of GFA under  Number of
Revenue management projects Revenue management projects
(AR#% (AR
TR (FEEK) TR (TR
(RMB'000) ('000 sq.m.) (RMB'000) (000 sg.m.)
M Hangzhou 901,346 27,072 202 617,793 19,184 133
Epk-) Zhejiang province
(FEmM) (excluding
Hangzhou) 259,453 13,253 73 206,098 9,980 58
HT LA S Outside Zhejiang
province 32,648 1,645 1 16,655 784 5
Bar Total 1,193,447 41,970 286 840,546 29,948 196

TREINAEBAHNEBOA T ABMTOMH  The table below sets forth the distribution of contracted
(ED GFA of the Group in five major cities:

AHNEEER AN  HPRER
(F¥RXK) HEBEHNEA BYF=H HE#A

Percentage Developed

Contracted  of the total by the
GFA contracted independent Number of
(000 sg.m.) GFA  third parties projects
M Hangzhou 40,987 59.4% 44.5% 294
TEM Jinhua 9,336 13.5% 70.2% 49
EEM Jiaxing 4,777 6.9% 57.3% 34
BEm Shaoxing 2,639 3.8% 75.3% 13
BERM Ningbo 2,367 3.4% 67.2% 11

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to strengthen its brand
responsibility, and strive to become a brand leader in the
property industry, and a high-end quality standard setter.

The Group will set up standardization leading groups for
property quality, project cost control and management,
preliminary service and site service management to
further develop its service standardization model and
create customized services. The Group strives to become
a top property management brand in China and a
benchmark in Zhejiang. Through providing effective and
consistent services, the Group will gain higher brand
value and sustainable market competitiveness. The Group
will improve its regular quality inspections and enhance
and expand the monitoring of its daily quality control
through unannounced inspections, project safety
inspections and daily inspections by regional property
departments. In addition, the Group will focus on
improving the quality of security service and safety
management, customer service staff’s service quality and
information feedback, timely and accurate engineering
maintenance and other aspects of soft services, so as to
ensure the long-lasting quality of projects under
management with up-to-date service standards.

BIRGEBERAR FEHRSE 2022
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The property management service industry in China is
increasingly concentrated. In the future, the Group will
continue to expand its brand influence, expand the
region mainly in the Yangtze River Delta, and strive to be
in the middle and upper reaches of the industry with its
quality and reputation being the first-class in China. The
Group intends to leverage its success in the luxury market
in the Yangtze River Delta and its existing service
management systems and standards to expand its current
market share and to further penetrate new markets. The
Group utilizes a benchmark model where it takes root
within the region once a benchmark property has been
established within. Focusing in Hangzhou and taking root
in the Yangtze River Delta, the Group will focus on the
operation in the existing markets and strategically
expand its business coverage in eastern China. The Group
will also explore opportunities in Greater Bay Area and
the mid-west China. The trend for the quality expansion
and high-quality development of the Group has been
basically formed. In the future, the Group will strive to
initiate a project in one year, develop the project in three
years and optimize it in five years. The expansion of
Jinhua region has already achieved initial results, and the
Group will develop Shanghai and Ningbo and other key
regions.

In addition, the Group also actively expands its business
into healthcare, schools, urban services and other
industries to strengthen its comprehensive service
capabilities.
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Based on the demand of property owners, the Group
strives to become a trustworthy property manager and
caretaker for property owners by leveraging on its
professional property products and services. The Group
will develop value-added service systems focusing on 58,
which includes Youjia services, Youju services and
Youxiang living services. All business lines of 5S
value-added services will provide business opportunities
to other business segments and complement services
provided by such segments, becoming a new driver for
profit growth within the Company. The intermediary
business of Youjia services has achieved initial results. In
the future, the Group can continue to actively promote
the expansion of its business scope and jointly promote
Youju services. In terms of Youju services, the Group has
transformed the business direction from the original
partial cabinet configuration of Living Home to overall
decoration. The Group will adopt the cooperation mode
of internal and external combination to promote the
interior design services, and further implement furnishing
business, to promote the expansion of 5S value-added
service area. In addition, the Group will capitalize its
advantages of the existing platform to establish strategic
partnerships through various channels and expand its
service coverage. The Group will continue to maintain
and seek for additional partnership opportunities with
well-known enterprises in the industry, promoting and
replicating its successful partnership model.

BTRBEEARAR FERSE 2022
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The Group puts great efforts in upgrading its internal
management system and smart management platform,
while adhering to its principles and maintaining a degree
of flexibility to prepare for future development. The
Group aims to boost its development through optimizing
its management structure, setting up standardized
operation procedures, developing human resources and
strengthening the procurement control to refine its
internal control mechanism. In addition, the Group strives
to enhance its management efficiency by using smart
approaches. The Group aims to provide property owners
with comprehensive and convenient services in a timely
and safe manner through integrating internal and
external resources. Leveraging on its management
the Group intends to accelerate the
application of smart technologies and the informatization
of its platforms and ecosystems, creating a digital
management system platform.

experience,

The Group continues to implement standardization,
actively benchmarks outstanding peers to improve its
own management level, and is committed to making the
brand of the Group better with stronger capability and
better reputation. All departments of the Group will try
their best to cooperate and support the commitments of
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue was generated from three main
business lines: (i) property management services; (ii)
value-added services to non-property owners; and (iii) 55
value-added services. During the Reporting Period, (i) the
property management services is the largest source of
revenue and profit for the Group, accounting for 60.2%
of total revenue; (ii) value-added services to non-property
owners was the second largest source of revenue for the
Group, accounting for 27.2% of total revenue.

2022 2%
2022 Changes
ARBTT HEKA% PN B BY A% %
% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue ' revenue %
MEEERH Property management
services 1,193,447 60.2 840,546 60.1 42.0
EENEEERSE Property management services
for residential properties 837,858 42.3 667,003 47.7 256
FEEMEERRT Property management
services for non-residential
properties 339,468 1741 160,099 1.4 112.0
THER Land management 16,121 0.8 13,444 1.0 19.9
FETHERE Value-added services to
non-property owners 540,187 27.2 419,542 30.0 28.8
TR R Pre-delivery services 509,680 25.7 394,618 282 29.2
RS Consulting services 21,609 11 18,248 13 18.4
HEZEERSE Community space services 8,898 0.4 6,676 05 333
5SEERK 55 value-added services 248,999 12.6 138,859 9.9 79.3
BRRE Youjia services 91,209 4.6 91,825 6.6 07
BERS Youju services 116,872 5.9 6,113 0.4 1,811.9
BEEERS Youxiang living services 40,918 2.1 40,921 2.9 0.0
At Total 1,982,633 100 1,398,947 100.0 417
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Property management services consist of security,
cleaning, gardening, repair, maintenance, land
management and ancillary services. Revenue generated
from property management services amounted to
RMB1,193.4 million, representing an increase of 42.0%
as compared with RMB840.5 million in 2021. It was the
Group’s main source of revenue and accounted for
60.2% of total revenue in 2022. The increase in revenue
was mainly because of the increase in the number of
projects. Revenue generated from the provision of
property management services to properties solely
developed by Binjiang Group or its associates or jointly
developed with other parties was RMB640.5 million, and
accounted for 53.7% of revenue from property
management services in 2022. Leveraging on its leading
position in traditional property business, the Group
aggressively expanded business to cover properties
developed by the independent third parties and
properties outside Hangzhou. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the revenue from property management
services for properties developed by the independent
third parties amounted to RMB536.8 million,
representing an increase of 93.3% as compared with
2021; and the revenue from property management
services for properties outside Hangzhou amounted to
RMB292.1 million, representing an increase of 31.2% as
compared with 2021. In relation to the reserve land
management service of the Group, for the year ended 31
December 2022, the revenue from land management
services amounted to RMB16.1 million.

Value-added services to non-property owners
mainly include pre-delivery services, consulting services
and community space services. Revenue generated from
value-added services to non-property owners amounted
to RMB540.2 million, representing an increase of 28.8%
as compared with RMB419.5 million in 2021, and
accounted for approximately 27.2% of the Group’s total
revenue in 2022. The increase in revenue was mainly due
to the increase in the number of new site projects.
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5S Value-added services mainly composed of Youjia
services, Youju services and Youxiang living services.
Revenue generated from 5S value-added services
amounted to RMB249.0 million, representing an increase
of 79.3% as compared with RMB138.9 million in 2021,
and accounted for approximately 12.6% of the Group’s
total revenue in 2022. The increase was mainly due to
the rapid development of home decoration services of
Youju services, resulting in an increase in the income
during the year.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Based on the above factors, the Group’s gross profit for
the year increased by 31.7% from RMB449.7 million in
2021 to RMB592.2 million in 2022. The Group’s gross
profit margin decreased by 2.2 percentage points from
32.1% in 2021 to 29.9% in 2022, mainly due to an
increase in income resulting from the rapid development
of home decoration services of Youju services business
among 5S value-added services.

20224 20214
2022 2021
E 7 ERE EH| E A=
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
profit margin profit margin
AR T % WNE i %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
MEE B RS Property management

services 228,383 19.1 161,341 19.2

JE¥ T ERRT Value-added services to
non-property owners 243,562 451 189,314 451
5S 1% & iR 7% 5S value-added services 120,302 48.3 99,022 713
& &t Total 592,247 29.9 449,677 32.1
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Gross profit of property management services increased
by 41.6% from RMB161.3 million in 2021 to RMB228.4
million in 2022, and gross profit margin of 19.1% in
2022 was almost unchanged from 2021. In 2022,
leveraging on its strong brand name, the Group was able
to maintain the continuous increase in revenue by
providing services for high value properties. In addition,
through the upgrade of operation system, operation
efficiency was improved to effectively control cost while
the quality of services was maintained.

Gross profit of value-added services to non-property
owners increased by 28.7% from RMB189.3 million in
2021 to RMB243.6 million in 2022, and gross profit
margin of 45.1% was unchanged from 2021.

Gross profit of 5S value-added services increased by
21.5% from RMB99.0 million in 2021 to RMB120.3
million in 2022, and gross profit margin decreased from
71.3% in 2021 to 48.3% in 2022. The increase in gross
profit was mainly due to an increase in income resulting
from the rapid development of home decoration services
of Youju services.

During the year, the Group’s cost of sales increased by
46.5% from RMB949.3 million in 2021 to RMB1,390.4
million in 2022. The increase in cost of sales was in line
with the growth of business scale.

During the year, the Group’s selling and marketing
expenses increased from RMB3.8 million in 2021 to
RMB8.2 million in 2022, mainly due to the increase in
advertising expenses as a result of the growth in
brokerage business and Youju services business during
the Reporting Period.

During the year, the Group’s administrative expenses
increased by 15.9% from RMB53.6 million in 2021 to
RMB62.1 million in 2022, mainly due to the increase in
administrative expenses as a result of the increase in the
headcount of administrative and management personnel
during the Reporting Period, and the continuous
investment in informatization.
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During the year, the Group’s impairment loss on trade
receivables and contract assets increased from RMB12.1
million in 2021 to RMB20.5 million in 2022, which is
mainly due to the growth of business scale and
simultaneous growth of accounts receivable as a result of
expansion of independent third party projects during the
Reporting Period.

During the year, the finance income of the Group was
interest income on bank deposits. Finance income
increased from RMB32.9 million in 2021 to RMB44.6
million in 2022, mainly due to an increase in interest
income from high-yield deposit products as a result of
the centralized capital management of the Group.
Finance costs represent lease liabilities and interest
expenses on prepaid customized home furnishing services
fees received from property owners categorized as
contract liabilities. Finance costs increased from RMBO0.7
million in 2021 to RMB2.7 million in 2022. The increase
was mainly attributable to the allowance on interest
expenses of the advance collection of the amounts of
Youju services.

During the year, the Group’s share of profits of two
associates and a joint venture less share of losses of two
associates increased from a profit of RMB1.3 million in
2021 to a profit of RMB3.4 million in 2022, mainly due
to the increase in the number of projects managed by
associates and profit growth.

During the year, the Group’s profit before taxation was
RMB561.1 million, representing an increase of 32.6% as
compared with RMB423.2 million in 2021, mainly due to
the increase in gross profit during the Reporting Period.

During the year, income tax expenses of the Group
increased 44.7% from RMB98.2 million in 2021 to
RMB142.1 million in 2022, mainly due to business growth
and provision of withholding tax.
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The Group’s profit for the year was RMB419.0 million,
representing an increase of 28.9% as compared with
RMB325.0 million in 2021, mainly due to the business
growth of the Group. Profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company was RMB412.0
million, representing an increase of 28.0% as compared
with RMB321.8 million in 2021. Net profit margin was
21.1%, representing a decrease of 2.1 percentage point
as compared with 23.2% in the corresponding period of
last year. The adjusted amount of profit attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company (excluding the
impact of withholding tax provision deducted in the
year). which is a non-IFRS measure, amounted to
RMB438.9 million, representing an increase of 36.4%
compared with the amount of RMB321.8 million in the
same period in 2021.

The Group maintained a well financial performance in
2022. As at 31 December 2022, current assets were
RMB2,640.1 million, representing an increase of 78.1%
as compared with RMB1,482.3 million as at 31 December
2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were RMB1,949.9 million, representing an
increase of 115.3% as compared with RMB905.7 million
as at 31 December 2021. This was mainly due to the
growth of the Group’s business scale and the increase in
the contract liabilities of Youju services of the 5S value-
added services. As at 31 December 2022, current ratio
was 1.6, representing a decrease as compared with 2.08
as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any
loans or borrowings (31 December 2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, the total equity of the Group
was RMB1,286.3 million, representing an increase of
32.2% as compared with RMB973.6 million as at 31
December 2021. This was mainly due to the growth of
business and an increase in operating profit during the
Reporting Period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies to ensure the liquidity
requirements from daily operation as well as capital
expenditures were met. The Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity positions, while surplus cash are
invested appropriately with the consideration of the
credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks of the
financial instruments, for example, the Group placed a
certain amount of cash as bank deposits with maturity
over three months for higher interest income to secure
liquidity mentioned above.

As at 31 December 2022, the investment properties,
property, plant and equipment of the Group amounted
to RMB26.9 million, representing an increase of 32.5% as
compared with RMB20.3 million as at 31 December 2021,
mainly due to the increase in property, plant and
equipment as a result of the growth of business.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s inventories
amounted to RMB147.5 million, representing an increase
of 86.7% from RMB79.0 million as at 31 December 2021,
mainly due to the acquisition of assets such as car
parking spaces and storage rooms during the Reporting
Period.

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, contract liabilities of the Group
recorded a year-on-year increase of 531.7%. The increase
was mainly due to the increase of projects and the
prepayment for home decoration services of 5S value-
added services.

The Group did not have any pledged assets as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.
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As at 31 December 2022, trade and other receivables
amounted to RMB343.5 million, representing an increase
of RMB170.1 million or 98.1% as compared with
RMB173.4 million in 2021, mainly due to the Group's
active expansion of new business projects during the
year, which had a longer settlement cycle than the
original business projects.

As at 31 December 2022, trade and other payables
amounted to RMB672.4 million, representing an increase
of RMB176.5 million or 35.6% as compared with
RMB495.9 million in 2021, mainly due to the expansion
of business scale.

As at 31 December 2021, financial assets at FVPL
represented treasury products (demand wealth
management of Banks) issued by financial institutions
that were purchased by the Group and were all
redeemed at the end of the Reporting Period.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of
10,336 employees (31 December 2021: 7,225 employees).
During the Reporting Period, the staff costs of the Group
were RMB794.4 million (2021: RMB601.8 million).

The Company did not have any significant investments
(including significant investments which accounted for
5% or more of the total assets of the Group) during the
Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any
significant acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.
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The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currencies of the
Group entities.

The Company, the British Virgin Islands subsidiary and
the Hong Kong subsidiary’s functional currency is HKD.
Their businesses are principally conducted in HKD. In
addition, as the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates
between the HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

The functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries’ in
the PRC is RMB and their businesses are principally
conducted in RMB. Therefore, the Group considers the
currency risk to be insignificant.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

All of the Group’s operations are concentrated in the
Yangtze River Delta, particularly in Hangzhou. During
the Reporting Period, the total GFA under management
located in the Yangtze River Delta accounted for almost
all of our total GFA under management, and property
management services revenue generated from our
managed properties in the Yangtze River Delta amounted
to almost all of our total property management services
revenue. Though the Group will further expand to other
key economics regions and cities in China, the Company
expect that the Yangtze River Delta will still continue
to account for a significant portion of our operations in
the near future. If the Yangtze River Delta experiences
any adverse economic conditions, such as an economic
downturn, natural disaster, contagious disease outbreak,
terrorist attack, or if the local governmental authorities
adopt regulations that place additional restrictions on
the property management service industry, the Group's
business, financial condition and results of operations
could be materially and adversely affected. Given the
above, the Group actively seeks business opportunities
outside the Yangtze River Delta to expand our
geographical coverage.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group procured
almost all of our new property management service
contracts through tender processes. Property developers
and the property owners’ general meetings choose
property management companies based on a number
of factors, including but not limited to the quality of
services provided, pricing and the operating history
of the property management company. There is no
assurance that the Group will be able to procure new
property management service contracts in the future.
Furthermore, some Group's property management service
contracts during the Reporting Period were related to
the management of properties developed by Binjiang
Group. Any adverse development in the operations of
Binjiang Group or its ability to develop new properties
may negatively impact the Group ability to procure new
property management service contracts. The Group
cannot assure that Binjiang Group will engage the Group
as their property management service provider for any
property they developed. If our Group are not able to
increase the number of managed properties developed by
independent third party property developers, our Group's
results of operations and growth prospects may be
materially and adversely affected. Given the above, the
Group will enhance its quality service capabilities, and
actively seek business opportunities from independent
third parties to expand our business access channel.
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In the future, our Group plans to seek and evaluate
opportunities to acquire other property management
companies and other businesses that may complement
our existing service offerings to expand the Group’s
business scale and integrate their operations into
the Group’s business. However, acquisitions involve
inherent risks and uncertainties, including, without
limitation, potential ongoing financial obligations and
hidden or unforeseen liabilities in connection with the
target, inability to apply the Group’s business model
or standardize business processes with the acquisition
targets, failure to achieve the intended acquisition
objectives or benefits, diversion of resources and
management attention from managing our existing
business operations. In addition, there can be no
assurance that our Group will be able to identify suitable
acquisition opportunities. Even if the Company can, the
Group may not be able to complete the acquisitions on
terms favorable to us and in a timely matter, or at all.
As a result, the Group’s competitiveness and growth
prospects could be materially and adversely affected.
Given the above, the Company will identify acquisition
targets in a cautious manner.

In the face of the epidemic, the Group stands at the
front line to enhance epidemic preventive measures in
accordance with the requirement of local community and
perform various duties to serve the general public. The
social recognition of the Group was further enhanced.
Additional human resources and materials were allocated
and higher costs were incurred to maintain our service
quality. During the period of and after epidemic, the
Group may encounter some problems, such as slowdown
in property development, higher costs and dropping out
of general staff. The Group has promptly and decisively
responded to the epidemic by introducing various
preventive measures which will be adopted as our regular
property management measures to deal with major
public crisis in the future.
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As at the date of this annual report, based on the
business operation and capital investment of the Group,
the Board believes that the Group maintains stable
liquidity position and sufficient working capital and has
not been materially affected by the COVID-19 epidemic,
and that the liquidity position and working capital of
the Group are sufficient to meet the expected capital
investment plan.

Pursuant to the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
Cayman Islands currently levy no taxes on individuals
or corporations based upon profits, income, gains or
appreciations and there is no taxation in the nature of
inheritance tax and estate duty.

There has been no change in capital structure of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares and
other reserves.
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As stated in the prospectus of the Company dated
28 February 2019 (the “Prospectus”) and the
announcement of the Company dated 4 April 2019,
approximately 35% (approximately HK$159.4 million) of
the net proceeds from the Listing and the over-allotment
is used for acquisition of other property management
companies and companies which are engaged in
property management related businesses, approximately
20% (approximately HK$91.1 million) for investment on
asset management platform to engage in the operation
of and long-term apartment and industrial parks, and
approximately 10% (approximately HK$45.5 million) for
establishment of joint companies or platforms. During
the Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual
report, the Company has been exploring and tracking
potential opportunities in the market in a diligent and
cautious manner. As of 31 December 2022, the Group
has established 24 cooperation platforms. In 2022, the
Group also actively explored acquisition and investment
opportunities of asset management platforms. However,
the Group has not yet identified any acquisition and
investment target of asset management platforms since
the potential targets did not satisfy the operating needs
of the Group. The Group will continue to actively explore
acquisition and investment targets of asset management
platforms and such part of the proceeds will be utilized
once the target is confirmed.

The Company or any of its subsidiaries has not
repurchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities
of the Company during the Reporting Period.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of
10,336 employees (as at 31 December 2021: 7,225
employees). The staff cost of the Group during the
Reporting Period was RMB794.4 million (2021: RMB601.8
million).

The Group’s remuneration packages for employees
are determined based on their duties, qualifications,
individual performance and current market standards.
The discretionary bonus paid to employees, based on the
performance of individual employees, recognized and
rewarded their contribution. The Group has implemented
and will continue to implement various employee
recognition initiatives and rewards. The Group also
makes social security contributions (including pension
plans, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance,
unemployment insurance and maternity insurance) and
housing provident fund contributions for our employees.
During the Reporting Period, the Group also provided
its staff with systematic and extensive training plans and
promotion and rotation programs. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not adopt any share option
scheme.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHU Lidong (% 3 %), aged 59, has been an
executive Director, the chairman of the Board and
president of the Company since September 2018. He
has joined our Group in May 2003 and has nearly 20
years of experience in the real estate industry. With his
extensive experience, he is principally responsible for
the overall management and business operation of our
Group, including coordinating board affairs, formulating
strategies and operational plans and making major
business decisions. He is also the chairman of the board
and the general manager of Binjiang Property, a company
engaged in property management, since November 2006
and February 2010, respectively, where he is responsible
for overall management and business operation.

From February 2017 to September 2018, Mr. ZHU was the
deputy general manager of Binjiang Holdings, a company
engaged in investment, where he was responsible for the
general operations of the fellow subsidiaries. From May
2003 to February 2017, he served as the deputy general
manager at Hangzhou Binjiang Real Estate Group Co.,
Ltd.* (“Binjiang Real Estate”), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002244) with its
principal in business in real estate development. During
his tenure, he was responsible for projects operation and
market expansion. From October 1994 to April 2003,
he was a reporter and the deputy director of general
editing office and monograph office of Hangzhou Daily
Newspaper Press Group (“Hangzhou Daily”) (formerly
known as Hangzhou Daily Newspaper Press) and an
associate general editor of Daily Commence Newspaper
of Hangzhou Daily Newspaper, a mass media corporation
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000607), where he was primarily responsible for writing
and editing manuscripts. Prior to that, Mr. ZHU was a
teaching staff at Armed Police Hangzhou Command
College from September 1984 to October 1994.
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Since July 2012, Mr. ZHU has been the vice chairperson
of the Property Management Association of Zhejiang
Real Estate Institute. He has also been serving as the
vice chairman of the Hangzhou Property Management
Association since August 2018. In June 2022, Mr. ZHU
was appointed as a member of Hangzhou Property
Management Bidding Expert Database. In August 2022,
Mr. ZHU was appointed as a member of Hangzhou
Property Management Excellent Project Appraisal Expert
Database. In November 2022, Mr. ZHU was appointed
as a visiting professor at the School of Management of
Zhejiang Shuren University.

Due to his achievements and contributions to the
economic and social development of Hangzhou, Mr. ZHU
has been granted a number of awards. In 2004, he was
awarded China Excellent Professional Manager by the
2004 China City-land Operation Exposition. He was also
conferred the Attitude Real Estate Person by the Netease
Real Estate in 2017.

Mr. ZHU received his bachelor’'s degree in history from
Hangzhou University (currently merged into Zhejiang
University), the PRC, in July 1984.

Ms. ZHONG Ruoqin (# & ), aged 37, has been
an executive Director and the secretary to the Board
of the Company since September 2018. She is also a
joint company secretary of the Company. Ms. ZHONG
has joined our Group in April 2013 and is primarily
responsible for formulating and supervising operational
strategies and plans, deciding and executing the board
resolution, undertaking business objectives of the Board.
Ms. ZHONG has extensive work experience in the real
estate industry. Since July 2018, she has been appointed
as the manager of securities department at Binjiang
Property, where she is primarily responsible for forming
and organizing the securities department.
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From April 2013 to June 2018, she served in the
securities department of Binjiang Real Estate, where
she was responsible for the conduct of board meetings,
information disclosure, and management of investment
and refinancing. From August 2008 to February 2011,
Ms. ZHONG was an agency supervisor of CITIC-Prudential
Finance Company Ltd., a company engaged in insurance
and wealth management business, where she was
responsible for personal selling, team management and
performance appraisal.

Ms. ZHONG received her master’s degree in business
administration from the City University of Hong Kong,
Hong Kong, in October 2012 and the bachelor’s degree
in business from the Dundalk Institute of Technology,
Ireland, in June 2008.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. MO Jianhua (E# %), aged 52, has been the
non-executive Director of the Company since December
2017. He is primarily responsible for providing guidance
and supervision to our Group’s business operations. Mr.
MO has nearly 25 years of experience in the real estate
industry. Since January 2017, he has also been serving as
the general manager of Hangzhou Pute Equity Investment
Management Limited (“Pute Equity"”), a company which
is principally engaged in equity investment, where he is
responsible for the overall management of business. Since
November 2006, he has been a director at Binjiang Real
Estate, where he is responsible for providing guidance
and supervision to our Group's business operations.

From July 2011 to November 2017, he was the general
manager of Hangzhou Binjiang Venture Capital
Investment Limited* (“Binjiang Venture Capital”), a
company which is primarily engaged in venture capital,
and he was responsible for overall operation of business.
From December 1999 to July 2011 he was the managing
deputy general manager of Binjiang Real Estate, where
he was responsible for the management of construction
costs. From October 1996 to December 1999, he served
as a deputy general manager at Binjiang Real Estate
Construction Co., Ltd., a company engaged in real estate
construction. He was responsible for the management of
construction costs.
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Mr. MO obtained an executive master’'s degree in
business administration (EMBA) from Zhejiang University,
the PRC, in June 2013.

Mr. QI Jiaqgi (B 403 ), aged 35, has been the non-executive
Director of the Company and the strategy committee of
the Board since 1 June 2022.

Mr. QI has been a fund manager of China Life Franklin
Asset Management Co., Limited since November 2021.
From May 2019 to November 2021, he was a macro
strategist of China Life Franklin Asset Management
Co., Limited. From August 2015 to July 2018, he was a
lecturer of North Carolina State University, the United
States of America.

Mr. QI obtained a doctoral degree from North Carolina
State University, the United States of America in July
2018, a master’'s degree from North Carolina State
University, the United States of America in December
2012 and a bachelor’s degree from Zhejiang University of
Finance & Economics in July 2010. He is a licensed person
for regulated activities of dealing in securities (type 1),
advising on securities (type 4) and asset management
(type 9) of the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong.

Mr. QI has been a director of Robust Class Limited
and Binjiang Services Group (Hong Kong) Co., Limited,
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, since 20
December 2021.
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Mr. CAI Xin (¥32%), aged 47, has been the non-executive
Director of the Company since September 2018. He
is primarily responsible for providing guidance and
supervision to our Group's business operations. Since
November 2017, he has been the general manager
at Binjiang Venture Capital, where he is in charge of
overall operation of business, marketing expansion and
investment projects implementation.

From July 2011 to November 2017, he served as the
deputy general manager of Pute Equity, where he was
responsible for corporate fund raising and investment
projects implementation. From September 2002 to July
2011, he served as the manager of finance department at
Binjiang Real Estate, where he was primarily responsible
for the general management of finance department,
preparation of financial reports, formulating budget plans
and tax reports.

Mr. CAIl obtained an executive master’'s degree in
business administration from Zhejiang University in
December 2015 and a bachelor’s degree in economics
from Zhejiang University of Financial and Economics,
the PRC, in July 1997. He obtained the certificate of
senior accountant granted by Zhejiang Senior Accountant
Certificate Evaluation Committee in June 2012.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. DING lJiangang (T ZHl), aged 59, joined our
Group in February 2019 as an independent non-executive
Director. Since May 2014, Mr. DING has been the dean
of Zhejiang Daily Media Real Estate Institute, which is
engaged in provision of market analysis of real estate
industry, and is responsible for research on real estate
policy and real estate market. He has also been serving
at Zhejiang Real Estate Institute as a council member
and is responsible for research in relation to policies and
market trends in the real estate industry since October
2017.

Mr. DING has approximately 33 years of experience in
the media industry. Mr. DING has been an employee
of Decision Research Consultancy Limited since June
2014. Mr. DING worked for Hangzhou Joint Founder
Information Technology Co., Ltd., which is engaged in
provision of market analysis of real estate industry, and
was responsible for research on real estate policy and real
estate market from March 2013 to May 2014. He worked
for the economic department of, and as the deputy
editor of the website Live in Hangzhou of Zhejiang Online
News Website Co., Ltd., which is engaged in online
news publication and he was responsible for researching
financial properties and providing commentaries thereon
from September 2008 to February 2013. He worked
for Zhejiang Radio & TV Group, which is engaged in
publication and sales of newspaper, magazines and
video, and he was responsible for production of property
programs from April 1989 to September 2008. He
worked for teaching and research group of building
structure of Zhejiang Construction Industrial College
and was responsible for teaching building structure
courses and management of the teaching and research
group from November 1985 to April 1989. He was also
a teaching staff in Changchun Advanced Architecture
Institute from July 1983 to October 1985.
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Mr. DING has been serving as an independent
non-executive director of Dexin China Holdings Company
Limited, a property development company listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 02019) since January 2019.
He is responsible for providing independent judgment
and advice in relation to operations and management
of the company. In addition, he now also serves as an
independent non-executive director and the chairman
of the remuneration committee of Shinsun Holdings
(Group) Co., Ltd., a property development company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02599). Mr. DING
obtained his bachelor’s degree in civil engineering from
Xi'an University of Architecture and Technology (formerly
known as Xi'an Metallurgy Architecture College), the
PRC, in July 1983.

Mr. LI Kunjun (Z3#E), aged 45, joined our Group in
February 2019 as an independent non-executive Director.
Since October 2017, he has been serving as the chief
executive officer of Hangzhou Xiaodi Technology Co.,
Ltd., a company engaged in the real estate technology
development, which attracted investment s from
Hangzhou Tengguo Internet Technology Co., Ltd. and
Hangzhou Daily, and created one of the most influential
Wechat official accounts with regard to property
market in Hangzhou. He is responsible for the overall
management and business operation.

Mr. LI has extensive work experience in the media
industry. From September 2000 to December 2016,
he held various positions at Hangzhou Daily, including
reporter, and director of property office. During his
tenure, he published a book, Hangzhou Qualified Houses
— Guidance for purchasing houses from QIU Weiwei and
LI Kunjun.

Mr. LI graduated from Zhejiang University, the PRC, with
his bachelor’s degree in Chinese in June 2000.

STRBEEARAR FERE 2022

;g

47



48

EERENREERE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEEBE LT 4058 R2019F2A WA KE
CETEYIEWMITEE - H52007F128 MU
K BEER/RMIMKCKRENSETE2EM - B
% R2014F 12 EZ (A B HIE - 120194F
MNAEZTAHE - R2017F108 - £+t
BB IEAaRTPFEFERNTEA TR
2005 12AK AT T EFHALISTAA TERN
BRER - 221FNRAAEN IEEREE
A TAEZ IEFARIESR]-

@ﬁiézowﬁmﬂu;ﬁ eERERMDE

RA(—RARINFEHERX S LT AIRIEBER
%%AET ' fo R 5% 1 002034) ~ H20179F 108
NRAM IR EFEEREROBRA
AI—EXRLEEBLARIFLTNGHRE
N E B K5 603665) & B202145A
NIRRT IR EERMNROBRAR(—

ERFVNBHLZ G ETHERREENR] -
& 5% : 002615) EEB YL IFHTEE R
ERLEEENE - HETCBIYINITEER

BERLZESEKE AEMZSLETARIMNE
REELEZZESREBIHERER -
247+ H2015F7H 22021F6 A XM &
BERERNEBRAA(—KRFINELFR ST
M ERERT - AR 300553) 58
VIRTEEREZLZESZKE -

2L+ 201356 A S P E B & A
RESHHEFLEMNT - H2007F108 B0
EAMEBERTABESETZN 200656
ARFPBENTIMEREBESELTEN - BFR
20MF6AK ARBEFTEtmipe g g N
K 2010F9R K A IMERFMestampe

= °
g8

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Ms. CAIl Haijing (£ &), aged 40, joined our Group
in February 2019 as an independent non-executive
Director. Since December 2007, she was a lecturer
of accounting at Zhejiang University of Finance and
Economics and subsequently appointed as an associate
professor and a professor in December 2014 and
November 2019, respectively. In October 2017, Ms. CAl
was regarded as the Leading Expert of the Zhejiang
High-education Youngster and the nurturing target of
the Zhejiang 151 Talent Project in December 2015. In
December 2021, she will be selected as “Leading Talents
in Universities of Zhejiang Province” and “Zhijiang Young
Social Science Scholar of Zhejiang Province”.

Ms. CAl has been serving as an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of
Wangneng Environment Co., Ltd., an environment
protection company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002034) since December 2017, Zhejiang Kang
Long Da Special Protection Technology Co., Ltd., a textile
manufacturing company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 603665) since October 2017 and
has served as an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee of Zhejiang Hals Vacuum
Ware Co., LTD., a commodity manufacturing company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002615),
since May 2021. As an independent non-executive director
and a member of the audit committee, she is responsible
for providing independent judgment and advice in relation
to general management and audit committee to those
listed companies. Ms. CAl served as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee
of Hangzhou lJizhi Mechatronic Co., Ltd.,, a machinery
manufacturing company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300553) from July 2015 to June
2021.

Ms. CAl obtained a doctoral degree in accounting from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law, the PRC,
in June 2013, a master’s degree from Brock University,
Canada, in October 2007 and bachelor’s degree from
Zhejiang University of Financial and Economics, the
PRC, in June 2006. She was admitted as a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in June 2011 and the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants in September 2010.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SHEN Guorong (JtEI%), aged 41, has been
appointed as an executive president of our Group in
September 2020, and he is primarily responsible for the
general management of regional projects. He has more
than 19 years of experience in the property management
service industry. He has joined our Group in October
2004 as a project manager and was responsible for the
overall management of projects till February 2005. He
subsequently served as an assistant of general manager
of Binjiang Property, and was responsible for the general
management and supervision from February 2005 to
December 2009. He was appointed as a deputy general
manager of our Group in December 2009.

Prior to joining our Group, he was a project manager
at Jiaye Sunshine Property Management Co., Ltd., a
company engaged in property management service
industry, from January 2002 to September 2004. He
was responsible for the overall project management. In
June 2017, Mr. SHEN was appointed as the chairman of
Jianggan District Property Management Institute. He was
also recognized as the Hangzhou Property Management
Bidding Expertise and the fellow of Hangzhou Property
Management Excellent Projects Evaluation Expert Base in
July 2014. In October 2022, Mr. Shen was appointed as
the president of the Property Management Association
of Shangcheng District.

Mr. SHEN graduated from Jiaxing University, the PRC,
with an associate degree in construction project
management in January 2011. In November 2013, he
was recognized as a registered Property Manager by the
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the
People’s Republic of China.
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Mr. WANG Guoyi (E B ), aged 60, has been appointed
as a vice president of our Group in September 2020. He is
primarily responsible for business development, engineering
management, pre-delivery examination management
and after-sale services. Mr. WANG has over 20 years of
experience in the property management service industry.
From March 2005 to December 2009, he served as an
engineering director in Binjiang Property and was responsible
for the engineering management. He was appointed as a
deputy general manager of our Group in December 2009.

Prior to joining our Group, he previously worked as an
engineer at Zhejiang Nandu Property Management Co.,
Ltd., a company engaged in property management,
from January 2000 to February 2005, where he
was responsible for engineering management and
consultancy. From November 1996 to June 1998, he
worked as a technician at the production department
of Pt. San Weei Indonesia Rattan Industry, a company
engaged in rattan manufacturing, exporting and
importing, where he was responsible for mechanical
maintenance. From December 1991 to November 1996,
he worked as an electrician at Hangzhou Chemistry
Building, a company engaged in chemical industry,
where he was responsible for electrical installation and
maintenance, as well as the operation of telephone
switchboard. From December 1984 to December 1991,
he served as an electrician at Hangzhou Standard
Head Factory, a company engaged in manufacturing
mechanical components, where he was responsible for
electrical maintenance at the mold workshop. From
December 1981 to December 1984, he served as an
electrician at Hangzhou Broadcast Equipment Factory
(previously known as Hangzhou Qianjiang Maobi Factory,
a company engaged in manufacturing broadcasting
equipment, where he was responsible for electrical
maintenance.

Mr. WANG obtained a high school diploma from
Hangzhou the Fifth High School, the PRC, in June 1980.
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Mr. CHENG Yanfei (Z#7®), aged 42, has been
appointed as a vice president of our Group since
September 2020 and is primarily responsible for the
general management of regional projects. He has more
than 20 years of experience in the property management
service industry. He has joined our Group in October
2005 as a project manager and was responsible for the
overall management of projects till January 2017. He was
subsequently served as a deputy regional manager of
Binjiang Property, and was responsible for the general
management and supervision from February 2017 to
September 2020.

Prior to joining our Group, he was a general manager at
Hangzhou Baiquan Property Management Co., Ltd. from
April 2005 to October 2005, a manager at Hangzhou
Dajia Property Operation and Management Co., Ltd. from
December 2003 to April 2005, a manager at Beijing CR
Land Property Management Co., Ltd. from April 2003 to
November 2003, and a manager at Beijing Shuntiantong
Property Management Co., Ltd. from September 2001 to
January 2002.

Mr. CHENG graduated from Northern Jiaotong University
with an associate degree in property management
in January 2003. In January 2008, he obtained the
certificate of property management project director in
Hangzhou.
registered property manager by the Ministry of Housing
and Urban-Rural Development of the People’s Republic
of China.

In November 2013, he was recognized as a
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Mr. LIN Meng (#3%f), aged 56, has been appointed
as a vice president of our Group in September 2020.
He is primarily responsible for business development,
pre-delivery consulting and brand operation. Mr. LIN
has almost 20 years of experience in the property
management service industry. Since 2009, he has served
as a project manager in Binjiang Property and has been
responsible for the overall management of projects. He
was appointed as a manager of our Group in September
2015 and was responsible for business development,
pre-delivery consulting and brand operation. Since
December 2018, he has served as a director of our Group
and has been responsible for business development,
pre-delivery consulting and brand operation.

Mr. LIN graduated from Zhejiang University with an
associate degree in administration in July 2006. In May
2006, he obtained the certificate of property enterprise
manager issued by the Department of Personnel
and Education of the Ministry of Construction. He
was appointed as the fellow of Early-stage Property
Bidding Expert Base by Hangzhou Housing Security and
Management Bureau in June 2020.

Mr. TANG Xiong (35 #), aged 42, joined our Group in
April 2021 as the financial controller and he is primarily
responsible for overall financial management of our
Group.
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Prior to joining the Group, he was appointed as an
industry financial director of Zhejiang New Century
Property Management Co., Ltd., a company engaged
in property services and management, and he was
responsible for property industry financial management
from April 2015 to April 2021. He was appointed as a
financial director of Huagiao New Century Grand Hotel
Lishui, a company engaged in hotel management, and he
was responsible for financial restructuring of the hotel
from February 2012 to April 2015. He was appointed
as a financial director of Gaosu New Century Hotel
International Anhui and he was responsible for the
general financial management during the preparation
and opening of the hotel from April 2011 to February
2012. He was appointed as a financial director of New
Century Resort Changzhou and he was responsible
for the general financial management from December
2010 to April 2011. He was appointed as an assistant to
financial director of New Century Resort Jiulong Lake
Ningbo and he was responsible for financial management
during the preparation of the hotel from February 2009
to December 2010. He was appointed as a manager
of investment and audit of New Century Hotel Group
and he was responsible for financial management of
the group from November 2007 to February 2009.
He was appointed as the chief accountant of Wuhan
Oriental Hotel and he was responsible for accounting
management from September 2002 to November 2007.

Mr. TANG graduated from Renmin University of China
with a bachelor’s degree in accounting in January
2021. In May 2004, he obtained the certificate of
intermediate accountant granted by Ministry of Finance
of the People’s Republic of China. He was admitted as
a certified management accountant of the Institute of
Certified Management Accountants of the United States
of America in January 2020.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The total proceeds from the Listing and Over-allotment
amounted to HK$455.3 million. The net proceeds from
the Listing were approximately HK$389.8 million (after
deducting listing expenses), which are intended to
be utilized in the manner as disclosed in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Prospectus. The net proceeds from the Over-allotment
were approximately HK$65.5 million (after deducting
over-allotment expenses), which are intended to be
utilized pro-rata in accordance with the purposes
described in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the Prospectus.



M2022F12 318 -

ESTHRE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

KAEBCEBAMEHIE As at 31 December 2022, the Group had utilized

FEREANR2048BEBT APHAMNAE ?&Z approximately HK$204.8 million of the net proceeds, and
T8 )% %8 #9250.58 & 8 7T o M2022412A31  the unutilized net proceeds amounted to approximately
H FMERBEZFESHABROAT: HK$250.5 million. As at 31 December 2022, the net

FERERR

proceeds had been utilized as follows:

RERRER R2022% R2022%F

EEZBA 1A18 RER 12A31H

Use of proceeds FeERERH i & B A EBA AEA
Proposed use

of net proceeds Unutilized Unutilized

according to the  amountas at1 Utilized amount amount as at 31
prospectus January 2022 during the year  December 2022

(Bg%ET) (BB#ET) (BB (BEBET)
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)

BENRARIZANNEE
A BRI 399 T
NMEER AR E—
SENAKERRET
BNTENEREAR
SENBEEER

BHAEEMEERBRS
ARBEREREAL

REREEEETS
IREERTRE

HEMHARNEREES
ERUEERAHT RS

Acquisition of property management

companies located in major cities in

the Yangtze River Delta to further

increase the Group's market share in

the existing market, and also in new

cities such as Shenzhen to expand

the Group's geographical coverage' 159.4 159.4 — 159.4
Updating the Group's management

service systems and recruiting and

nurturing talents 113.8 — - -
Investment in the asset management

platform to engage in the operation

of industrial parks? 91.1 91.1 — 91.1
Establishing joint venture companies or

platform through the cooperation

with local governments and property

developers? 45.5 — — -

EEEER—BEE As working capital and for other general
B corporate purposes 455 — — —
4553 250.5 0 250.5

1. AEBEER2023FN2A3BABZ B ESE 1. The Group planned to fully utilize this portion of proceeds by 31

ATE -

RxEE -

December 2023.

AEBEFER2023FN2ANBABZBLESHFE 2. The Group planned to fully utilize this portion of proceeds by 31

December 2023.

HZE2022612A318 - BRI 24REERFTA © 3. As at 31 December 2022, 24 cooperation platforms had been

established.
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PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is principally engaged in provision of
property management services, value-added services for
non-property owners and 5S value-added services in the
PRC. The analysis of the Group’s principal business for
the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in Note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 194 to
195 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

Having considered the needs of business development of
the Group and returns of shareholders of the Company,
the Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
for 2022 of HK$1.001 per share. The dividend ratio
of the year is approximately 60%. The proposed final
dividend amounted to approximately HK$276.7 million in
total, and shall be subject to approval by shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “"AGM?"). The final dividend is
expected to be paid to shareholders of the Company on
Thursday, 28 September 2023.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
On 19 March 2020, the Board had approved and adopted
a revised dividend policy as follows:

In accordance with the dividend policy, the Group
intends to distribute not less than 50% of its net profit
to its shareholders as dividend distribution for each year.
The Board will consider, among others, the following
factors when proposing to pay any dividend:

e  the business environment and various internal or
external factors which may affect the operation or
financial performance of the Group;

. the actual and estimated future financial
performance of the Group;

o the actual and estimated working capital
requirement, operation strategy and development
plan of the Group;

J legal and regulatory requirement;

. contractual restriction on the distribution of
dividend by the Group or subsidiaries of the Group;

. the taxation implication;
. interests of the shareholders; and
o other factors the Board may considers relevant.

The declaration of the dividend by the Company shall
be at the full discretion of the Board and be subject to
the Company Law of Cayman Islands and the Articles
of Association of the Company. Even though the
Board decides to propose and declare the distribution
of dividend, the form, frequency and amount of the
dividend distribution shall be subject to the factors
disclosed above and other factors which may affect the
Company. For details of the abovementioned revised
dividend policy, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 19 March 2020.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Group for the Reporting Period
and the Group's prospects are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 40 of this annual
report. The analysis of the Group during the Reporting
Period using key indicators of financial performance is set
out in the section headed “Financial Review” on pages
27 to 35.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises the importance of environmental
protection and adopted stringent measures for
environmental protection in order to ensure the
compliance to the prevailing environmental protection
laws and regulations.

Given the nature of operations of the Group, the Group
believes it is not subject to material environmental liability
risk or compliance costs. During the Reporting Period and
up to the date of this annual report, no fines or penalties
for non-compliance of the PRC environmental laws had
been imposed on us.

The environmental, social and governance report of the
Company is set out in pages 120 to 181 of this annual
report.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
the Group may be facing is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 35 to
38 of this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company strictly complied with the following laws
and regulations which may have a significant impact on
its operation: (a) the laws and regulations relating to
foreign investment; (b) the laws, regulations and policies
relating to qualification of property management service
company, appointment, fees, outsourcing and real
estate brokerage; (c) the laws and regulations relating to
intellectual property; (d) the laws and regulations relating
to merger and acquisition of domestic enterprises
by foreign investors; (e) the laws and regulations
relating to foreign exchange and taxation; (f) the laws
and regulations relating to labor and social security.
Meanwhile, a list of applicable laws and regulations was
established within the Company and updated from time
to time for compliance.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company was able to comply with the relevant laws
and regulations within and outside China which have
a significant impact on it, through the full cooperation
between its legal department and the external legal
advisors, and the Company’s continuous and effective
supervision.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years are set out
on pages 5 to 6 of this annual report. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the transaction
amounts of the Group’s top five customers accounted for
26.6% (2021: 27.2%) of the Group's total revenues while
the transaction amounts of the Group's single largest
customer accounted for 20.8% (2021: 21.8%) of the
Group's total revenues.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the transaction
amounts of the Group’s top five suppliers accounted
for 21.6% (2021: 12.7%) of the total purchases while
the transaction amounts of the Group's single largest
supplier accounted for 9.1% (2021: 7.8%) of the Group’s
total purchases.

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed in Note
28 to the consolidated financial statements, none
of the Directors,
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the number of the issued shares
of the Company) was interested in the top five customers
or suppliers of the Group.

any of their close associates or any

As a service-oriented enterprise, the Group has realized
employees’ service level and professional development
are critical to its development. During the Reporting
the Group continued to offer competitive
compensation packages and performance review
systems, enhance employee recognition initiatives and
rewards and provide various training opportunities to
enhance employees sense of belonging. During the year,
the performance of employees was satisfied and the
Group had not experienced any material labour disputes
or litigations.

Period,

The details of employment, salaries and benefits and staff
training of the Group during the Reporting Period are
set out in the paragraphs
policies” in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on page 40 of this annual report.

“Employees and remuneration

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s share capital has not changed during the
Reporting Period. Details are set out in Note 24(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 198 to 199 and Note 24(a) to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION
As at 31 December 2022, the reserves available for
distribution of the Company (including share premium
and retained profits of the Company) amounted to
RMB88.7 million.

PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
total amount of dividend proposed or paid by the Group
amounted to RMB247.2 million and RMB193.1 million,
respectively, representing an increase of approximately
28.0%. The increase was mainly due to the satisfactory
results of operation and importance attached to returns
for shareholders of the Company.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any
bank loans and other borrowings.

BTRBEMARA
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this annual report are as follows:

ZHU Lidong
ZHONG Ruogin

MO Jianhua
Ql Jiaqgi (@appointed on 1 June 2022)
CAl Xin

DING Jiangang
LI Kunjun
CAI Haijing

Mr. ZHU Lidong, MS. ZHONG Ruogin, Mr. QI lJiagi and
Mr. DING lJiangang shall retire by rotation, and offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM in accordance
with Articles 83(3), 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association.

A circular setting out, among other things, details of the
Directors subject to rotation and re-election at the AGM
will be dispatched to the Shareholders in due course.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 41 to
53 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM
THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and the Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors are in compliance with the
independent guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of
the guidelines.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

None of the Directors has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

For the details of the service contracts and the
appointment letters of the Directors, please see the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report, no Director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration policy and structure for Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy and to ensure that no Director or any of his/
her associates is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.
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In determining remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management, the Board will consider the remuneration
level of comparable companies, the time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group, individual performance of
respective Directors and the Company’s performance.
No Director shall be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, and the five
highest paid individuals during the Reporting Period
are set out in Note 7 and Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits
scheme of the Company are set out in Note 5(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution scheme administered
and operated by the local municipal governments. The
Group's PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are
calculated on certain percentages of the employee salary
as agreed by the local municipal government to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the defined contribution scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions will be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions.
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CHANGES OF INFORMATION IN RELATION
TO THE DIRECTORS

Ms. CAIl Haijing is currently an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of Zheliang Haers Vacuum Containers Co.,
Ltd., a daily necessities manufacturing company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002615).
She ceased to be the independent non-executive director
and the member of the audit committee of Hangzhou
Jizhi Mechatronic Co., Ltd., a machinery manufacturing
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 300553).

Save as disclosed above, there was no change to any
information required to be disclosed in relation to any
Director pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules during the period from the
publication date of interim report 2022 to the date of
this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at the 31 December 2022, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO") which had been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions in which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were recorded in the register required to be maintained
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
are set out as follows:

EERATF

RiEZ

<] LTV §:3:3- ROBE HE2/ %R BOBDL

Approximate

percentage of

Number of  Long/Short shareholding in

Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares position the Company

Rgght(REENHZ1) PREEANZAARRZZEES 35,640,000 A 12.89%
Mr. MO Jianhua (“Mr. Mo") (Note 1) Settlor of a discretionary trust and interest Long position

in controlled corporation
BN KA iE2) PRETHIEA 126,720,000 e 45.85%

Mr. Ql Jiaqgi (Note 2)

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Beneficiary of a discretionary trust

Long position
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Note:

(1) As at 31 December 2022, Haoyu Ventures Limited (“Haoyu”)
held 12.89% of issued share capital of the Company. The entire
issued share capital of Haoyu is held by Infiniti Trust (Asia)
Limited (through its nominee companies) as trustee of Great
Splendor Trust. Great Splendor Trust is a discretionary trust set
up by Mr. MO as settlor on 19 November 2018. The beneficiaries
of the Great Splendor Trust include Mr. MO and his certain
family members.

(2) As at 31 December 2022, Great Dragon Venture Limited (“Great
Dragon”) held 45.85% of issued share capital of the Company.
The entire issued share capital of Great Dragon is held by
Cantrust (Far East) Limited (through its nominee company) as
trustee of Bright Cloud Trust. Bright Cloud Trust is a discretionary
trust set up by Mr. QI Jinxing (“Mr. QI") as settlor on 19
November 2018. The beneficiaries of the Bright Cloud Trust
include Mr. QI, Mr. QI Jiagi and certain family members of Mr.
Ql.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions in which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were recorded in the register required to be maintained
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at any time during
the Reporting Period was the Company or its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the Directors or their
spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted
any right to subscribe for the share capital or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate,
or had exercised any such right.
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FTEREAROREBERAPHIEZR KX SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

B

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

720225 12A31H i AR B EEFF A © T~  As at 31 December 2022, to the knowledge of the

IALE(BEERARA&ZRBIT

B ABKINF  Directors of the Company, the following persons (other

RARRDRAEEROPHEBRIEZEZFESLE  than the Directors and chief executive of the Company)
EIEHEXVEFE 2R3N MAMRA ARG HEI  had interests or short positions in the shares or
BEERLRNARRIREEH&KHEKHIE336  underlying shares of the Company which were required
BEATHEFZECLMAZEZHAE to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2

and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register
of the Company required to be maintained pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:

EERATF
RiEZ
#E LTV $:-3:3-1 RAHE Hr/ %R BHEI
Approximate
percentage of
Number of  Long/Short shareholding in the
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares position Company
BEEMET) PREENEZETARXEEZEES 126,720,000 e 45.85%
Mr. QI (Note 1) Settlor of a discretionary trust and Long position
interest in controlled corporation
ERfi#r) ESBEAA 126,720,000 e 45.85%
Great Dragon (Note 1) Beneficial owner Long position
Bright Cloud Holding Limited (#75#1) R EZE#ER 126,720,000 HE 45.85%
Bright Cloud Holding Limited (Note 7) Interest in controlled corporation Long position
Cantrust (Far East) Limited (477£7) REARXBEEER 126,720,000 e 45.85%
Cantrust (Far East) Limited (Note 1) Trustee and interest in controlled Long position
corporation
AEBERE(REEDHZ2) PREANZAARTZEERESE 35,640,000 e 12.89%
Mr. ZHU Huiming (“Mr. ZHU") (Note 2) ~ Settlor of a discretionary trust and Long position
interest in controlled corporation
Splendid Force Holding Limited (#77£2) S 5@ ##% 35,640,000 e 12.89%
Splendid Force Holding Limited (Note 2)  Interest in controlled corporation Long position
rE(HH2) ESBEAA 35,640,000 e 12.89%
Haoyu (Note 2) Beneficial owner Long position
MARFEBRERAF(RRA22) ESEBA 35,640,000 e 12.89%
Jovial Success Global Holdings Limited ~ Beneficial owner Long position
("Jovial Success”) (Note 2)
Great Splendor Holding Limited (#/7£2) R kE#ZR 35,640,000 -] 12.89%
Great Splendor Holding Limited (Note 2)  Interest in controlled corporation Long position
Infiniti Trust (Asia) Limited (#/#2) REARXBEEER 71,280,000 e 25.79%
Infiniti Trust (Asia) Limited (Note 2) Trustee and interest in controlled Long position
corporation

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Notes:

(1) As at the 31 December 2022, Great Dragon holds 45.85% of
issued share capital of the Company. The entire issued share
capital of Great Dragon is held by Cantrust (Far East) Limited
(through its nominee company) as trustee of Bright Cloud Trust.
Bright Cloud Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Ql as
settlor on 19 November 2018. The beneficiaries of the Bright
Cloud Trust include Mr. Ql, Mr. QI Jiagi and certain family
members of Mr. Qi.

(2) As at the 31 December 2022, each of Jovial Success and
Haoyu hold 12.89% of issued share capital of the Company,
respectively. The entire issued share capital of Jovial Success
and Haoyu are held by Infiniti Trust (Asia) Limited (through its
nominee companies) as trustee of each Splendid Force Trust
and Great Splendor Trust, respectively. Splendid Force Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. ZHU as settlor on 19 November
2018. The beneficiaries of the Splendid Force Trust include Mr.
ZHU and his certain family members. Great Splendor Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. MO as settlor on 19 November
2018. The beneficiaries of the Great Splendor Trust include Mr.
MO and his certain family members.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, to
the knowledge of the Directors, none of any other
person (other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or to be recorded in the register
referred to in section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no share
option scheme has been adopted, granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT
No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group or in existence during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Articles of Association of the Company or the laws
of the Cayman Islands that would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.

FEHE 2022

;g

EIIRISEE

69



70

ESTHRE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TR F R
ARAEZERERBEEEEREEAKRER

NAEI(TERBRE]D - B2019F28218 5L~
B B ERREEEEG AT

ﬁﬁl@ﬁﬂﬁkﬁ%&;@ AR BT (RIER

BASERBEAEEFTANTAREX
$E\) THREEETBREAKEEKE
RAIKIN T EEERAEE (BEAEBREA)
REXRGHERIAKRTMAL Fﬁ%ﬁi“
AEEZIHEHEREDREKE 28 K=
K/ 345 & ( EX|E/RT1/7TNHEME7%HX$
BRA-RE RESIEMHN) ERKMHE
HERPENYEEERSE X TRERS
KESIEERBBREFNALBREFNE
MEBAREFFEET A#EE -

AR THRFARNFE B2RBERER -

AN B U B E R R S = 2022912
A3BIHFEHEEBEETIRFRENFE
Eﬁwu% LM’E$¢#EW%)§E§°

BUIFRITEZCREBEZERRKRFATIRE MK
ﬁrﬂ?’ﬁjé*’l’&ﬁ&wu ’ %F%EJT $7¥<nﬁb_/\$&

%/HHWZETT‘ /R Iﬁﬁuu HXHX%E w#
3B -

EENHBEEBNESR
BRARARFERAAEEN  RREHRN - HiEE
EAHRENBBEARTMNEAEEEXZBEE
SEEBK BT AERENGFNEBERH

Bl -

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company's controlling shareholders, Mr. QI
Jinxing and Great Dragon Ventures Limited (the
“Controlling Shareholders”) entered into the Deed
of Non-Competition on 21 February 2019 pursuant to
which the Controlling Shareholders has unconditionally
and irrevocably undertaken to and covenanted with the
Group that he or it will not (except through the Group
and any investment or interests held through the Group),
and will procure that his or its close associates (except
members of the Group) will not, directly or indirectly
(including through nominees), either on his own account
or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, among other things, invest in, participate
in, engage in and/or operate or be interested in (in
each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent,
employee or otherwise) any business which competes
or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
property management services, value-added services to
non-property owner and 5S value-added services in the
PRC.

Please refer to the Prospectus for details of the
Non-Competition Undertaking.

The Company has received annual confirmations from the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their compliance
with the Non-Competition Undertaking for the year
ended 31 December 2022 for disclosure in this annual
report.

Based on the information and confirmations provided
by the Controlling Shareholders, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the implementation
of Non-Competition Undertaking during the Reporting
Period, and confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with the Non-Competition Undertaking.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the
Directors or their associates had any interest in any
business which directly or indirectly compete or may
compete with the businesses of the Group during the
Reporting Period.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in “Connected Transactions” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, no controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

DIVIDEND WAIVED OR AGREED TO BE
WAIVED BY SHAREHOLDERS

As confirmed by the Board, for the year ended 31
December 2022, none of Shareholders has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions were set out
in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
Details of any related party transaction which constitutes
continuing connected transaction not exempted under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed below,
and other related party transactions did not constitute
connected transactions.

The Board confirms that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of the above related party
transactions.

On 11 July 2022, Ningbo Binrun Property Management
Company Limited (“Ningbo Binrun”) entered into the
Eastern Mansion Agreement with Hangzhou Bintong Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Bintong Real Estate”),
pursuant to which Ningbo Binrun has agreed to assume
the right to use of the Eastern Mansion car parking
spaces from Bintong Real Estate at a consideration of
RMB600,000.00. Such car parking spaces are located in
the Eastern Mansion Project.
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On 23 September 2022, Ningbo Binrun entered into
the Jiangnan Star Agreement, the Jiangnan Mansion
Agreement, the Wocheng Yinxiang Agreement and the
Noble Mansion Agreement with Hangzhou Jingbin Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Jingbin Real Estate”), Hangzhou
Binshun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Binshun Real Estate”),
Hangzhou Binhan Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Binhan Real
Estate”) and Ningbo Binjiang Weibao Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (“Weibao Real Estate”), respectively, pursuant
to which it shall assume the right to use and property
right of certain car parking spaces and the property
right of certain shops of the above projects at a total
consideration of RMB71,402,598.00. Pursuant to the
Jiangnan Star Agreement, Ningbo Binrun has agreed to
assume the property right of the Jiangnan Star shops
and the right to use of the Jiangnan Star car parking
spaces from Jingbin Real Estate at a consideration of
RMB8,020,923.00. Such shops and car parking spaces
are located in the Jiangnan Star Project. Pursuant to
the Jiangnan Mansion Agreement, Ningbo Binrun has
agreed to assume the right to use of the Jiangnan
Mansion car parking spaces from Binshun Real Estate at
a consideration of RMB46,035,000.00. Such car parking
spaces are located in the Jiangnan Mansion Project.
Pursuant to the Wocheng Yinxiang Agreement, Ningbo
Binrun has agreed to assume the right to use of the
Wocheng Yinxiang car parking spaces from Binhan Real
Estate at a consideration of RMB7,280,000.00. Such car
parking spaces are located in the Wocheng Yinxiang
Project. Pursuant to the Noble Mansion Agreement,
Ningbo Binrun has agreed to assume the property right
of the Noble Mansion shops and the property right of
the Noble Mansion car parking spaces from Weibao Real
Estate at a consideration of RMB10,066,675.00. Such
shops and car parking spaces are located in the Noble
Mansion Project.

For details of the above transactions, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 22 September
2022.
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As at the date of this annual report, Ningbo Binrun is
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Binjiang Real Estate is controlled by Mr. Ql Jinxing, one
of the controlling shareholders. Each of Jingbin Real
Estate, Bintong Real Estate, Binshun Real Estate, Binhan
Real Estate and Weibao Real Estate is a subsidiary of
Binjiang Real Estate, and is therefore a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the above acquisition
agreements constitute connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
above acquisition agreements were entered into with
companies controlled by Mr. Qi Jinxing within a 12-month
period and have similar nature upon their respective
executions. Accordingly, the acquisition agreements shall
be aggregated under Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules.
As the maximum applicable percentage ratios in respect
of the Acquisition Agreements exceed 0.1% but are
less than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the
Acquisition Agreements are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but exempt from the circular
and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Group has entered into continuing connected
transactions subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:
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As the property management services agreement
entered into by the Company (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries) and Binjiang Real Estate (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) (the “2021 Property
Management Services Agreement”) expired on 31
December 2021, and the Group expected to carry on
the transactions contemplated thereunder with Binjiang
Real Estate Group upon its expiry, on 16 December
2021 (after trading hours), the Company entered into
a 2022 property management services agreement
(the "2022 Property Management Services
Agreement”) to renew the transactions contemplated
under the 2021 Property Management Services
Agreement and regulate the transactions in relation to
the provision of property management services by the
Group to Binjiang Real Estate Group for their unsold
residential and non-residential property units. The 2022
Property Management Services Agreement is for a
term commencing on 1 January 2022 and expiring on
31 December 2022. For details of the 2022 Property
Management Services Agreement, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December 2021
and the circular of the Company dated 28 January 2022.
The 2022 Property Management Services Agreement
was approved by the independent shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 22 February 2022.

As the 2022 Property Management Services Agreement
expired on 31 December 2022, and the Group expected
to carry on the transactions contemplated thereunder
with Binjiang Real Estate Group upon its expiry, on 3
November 2022 (after trading hours), the Company
entered into a 2023 Master property management
services agreement (the “2023 Master Property
Management Services Agreement”) to renew the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 Property
Management Services Agreement. The 2023 Master
Property Management Services Agreement is for a
term commencing on 1 January 2023 and expiring on
31 December 2023. For details of the 2023 Master
Property Management Services Agreement, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 3
November 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 8
December 2022. The 2023 Master Property Management
Services Agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 30 December 2022.
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The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that it is in the interests of the
Company to continue the transactions under the 2022
Property Management Services Agreement and the 2023
Master Property Management Services Agreement in
2023. The Directors estimated that for each of the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023, the
maximum amount of the relevant property management
service fees payable by Binjiang Real Estate Group to the
Group will not exceed RMB72.0 million and RMB74.0
million, respectively. The actual transaction amount
for these continuing connected transactions in 2022 is
RMB36.6 million.

As the master consultancy agreement entered into by
the Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
and Binjiang Real Estate (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) (the “2021 Master Consultancy
Agreement”) expired on 31 December 2021, and
the Group expected to carry on the transactions
contemplated thereunder with Binjiang Real Estate upon
its expiry, on 16 December 2021 (after trading hours),
the Company entered into a 2022 master consultancy
agreement (the “2022 Master Consultancy
Agreement”) to renew the transactions contemplated
under the 2021 Master Consultancy Agreement and
regulate the transactions in relation to the provision
of property management consultancy services by the
Group to Binjiang Real Estate Group for its residential
property projects. The 2022 Master Consultancy
Agreement is for a term commencing on 1 January 2022
and expiring on 31 December 2022. For details of the
2022 Master Consultancy Agreement, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 16 December
2021.
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As the 2022 Master Consultancy Agreement expired on
31 December 2022, and the Group expected to carry
on the transactions contemplated thereunder with
Binjiang Real Estate upon its expiry, on 3 November
2022 (after trading hours), the Company entered into
a 2023 master consultancy agreement (the “2023
Master Consultancy Agreement”) to renew the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 Master
Consultancy Agreement. The 2023 Master Consultancy
Agreement is for a term commencing on 1 January 2023
and expiring on 31 December 2023. For details of the
2023 Master Consultancy Agreement, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 November 2022.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that it is in the interests of the
Company to continue the transactions under the 2022
Master Consultancy Agreement and the 2023 Master
Consultancy Agreement. The Directors estimated that for
each of the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023,
the maximum amount of service fees payable by the
Binjiang Real Estate Group to the Group will not exceed
RMB16.0 million and RMB20.0 million, respectively.
The actual transaction amount for these continuing
connected transactions in 2022 is RMB15.2 million.
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As the master pre-delivery management services
agreement entered into by the Company (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries) and Binjiang Real
Estate (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
(the "2021 Master Pre-delivery Management
Services Agreement”) expired on 31 December 2021,
and the Group expected to carry on the transactions
contemplated thereunder with Binjiang Real Estate
Group upon its expiry, on 16 December 2021 (after
trading hours), the Company entered into a 2022 master
pre-delivery management services agreement (the
“2022 Master Pre-delivery Management Services
Agreement”) to renew the transactions contemplated
under the 2021 Master Pre-delivery Management Services
Agreement and regulate the transactions in relation
to the provision of pre-delivery management services
by the Group to Binjiang Real Estate Group. The 2022
Master Pre-delivery Management Services Agreement is
for a term commencing on 1 January 2022 and expiring
on 31 December 2022. For details of the 2022 Master
Pre-delivery Management Services Agreement, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated
16 December 2021 and the circular of the Company
dated 28 January 2022. The 2022 Master Pre-delivery
Management Services Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 22 February 2022.

As the 2022 Master Pre-delivery Management
Services Agreement expired on 31 December 2022,
and the Group expected to carry on the transactions
contemplated thereunder with Binjiang Real Estate
Group upon its expiry, on 3 November 2022 (after
trading hours), the Company entered into a 2023
master pre-delivery management services agreement
(the “2023 Master Pre-delivery Management
Services Agreement”) to renew the transactions
contemplated under the 2022 Master Pre-delivery
Management Services Agreement. The 2023 Master
Pre-delivery Management Services Agreement is for
a term commencing on 1 January 2023 and expiring
on 31 December 2023. For details of the 2023 Master
Pre-delivery Management Services Agreement, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated
3 November 2022 and the circular of the Company
dated 8 December 2022. The 2023 Master Pre-delivery
Management Services Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 30 December 2022.
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The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that it is in the interests of the
Company to continue the transactions under the 2022
Master Pre-delivery Management Services Agreement
and the 2023 Master Pre-delivery Management Services
Agreement. The Directors estimated that for each of the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, the maximum
amount of service fees payable by the Binjiang Real
Estate Group to the Group will not exceed RMB350.0
million and RMB380.0 million, respectively. The actual
transaction amount for these continuing connected
transactions in 2022 is RMB265.9 million.

As the sales agency services framework agreement
and its supplemental agreements entered into by the
Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
and Binjiang Real Estate (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) (collectively, the “2021 Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement”) expired on 31
December 2021, and the Group expected to carry on
the transactions contemplated thereunder with Binjiang
Real Estate Group upon its expiry, on 16 December 2021
(after trading hours), the Company entered into a 2022
sales agency services framework agreement (the “2022
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement”)
to renew the transactions contemplated under the
2021 Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement and
regulate the transactions in relation to the provision of
sales agency services by the Group to Binjiang Real Estate
Group. The 2022 Sales Agency Services Framework
Agreement is for a term commencing on 1 January 2022
and expiring on 31 December 2022. For details of the
2022 Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
16 December 2021.
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On 3 November 2022 (after trading hours), due to
Binjiang Real Estate Group’s rapid business expansion and
the demand for sales agency services from the Group
increased, the Company entered into the Supplemental
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement with
Binjiang Real Estate to revise the existing annual cap
2022 from RMB23
million to RMB36 million. Save for such revision in the

for the year ending December 317,

annual cap, all other terms of the 2022 Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement shall remain valid and in
full force and effect. As the 2022 Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement expired on 31 December 2022,
and the Group expected to carry on the transactions
contemplated thereunder with Binjiang Real Estate Group
upon its expiry, on the same day (after trading hours),
the Company entered into a 2023 sales agency services
framework agreement (the “2023 Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement”) to renew the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement. The 2023 Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement is for a term commencing
on 1 January 2023 and expiring on 31 December 2023.
For details of the Supplemental Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement and the 2023 Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 November 2022.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that it is in the interests of the
Company to continue the transactions under the 2022
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement and the
2023 Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement. The
Directors estimated that for each of the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2023, the maximum amount of
service fees payable by the Binjiang Real Estate Group to
the Group will not exceed RMB36.0 million and RMB36.0
million, respectively. The actual transaction amount
for these continuing connected transactions in 2022 is
RMB26.5 million.
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As the master leasing agreement entered into by the
Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries)
and Binjiang Real Estate (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) (the “2021 Master Leasing Agreement”)
expired on 31 December 2021, and the Group expected
to carry on the transactions contemplated thereunder
with Binjiang Real Estate Group upon its expiry, on 16
December 2021 (after trading hours), the Company
entered into a 2022 master leasing agreement (the
“2022 Master Leasing Agreement”) to renew the
transactions contemplated under the 2021 Master
Leasing Agreement and regulate the transactions in
relation to the leasing of certain properties by the Group
from Binjiang Real Estate Group. The 2022 Master
Leasing Agreement is for a term commencing on 1
January 2022 and expiring on 31 December 2022. For
details of the 2022 Master Leasing Agreement, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 16
December 2021.

As the 2022 Master Leasing Agreement has expired on
31 December 2022, and the Group expected to carry on
the transactions contemplated thereunder with Binjiang
Real Estate Group upon its expiry, on 3 November 2022
(after trading hours), the Company entered into a 2023
master leasing agreement (the “2023 Master Leasing
Agreement”) to renew the transactions contemplated
under the 2022 Master Leasing Agreement. The 2023
Master Leasing Agreement is for a term commencing on
1 January 2023 and expiring on 31 December 2023. For
details of the 2023 Master Leasing Agreement, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 3
November 2022.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that it is in the interests of the
Company to continue the transactions under the 2022
Master Leasing Agreement and the 2023 Master Leasing
Agreement. The Directors estimated that for each of
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, the
maximum amount of rental fees payable by the Group to
the Binjiang Real Estate Group will not exceed RMB4.0
million and RMB4.0 million, respectively. The actual
transaction amount for these continuing connected
transactions in 2022 is RMB2.2 million.
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The Company entered into the 2022 Catering Services
Framework Agreement (the “2022 Catering Services
Framework Agreement”) with Binjiang Real Estate
on 23 September 2022, in order to meet the Company's
ordinary business entertainment needs and the temporary
management service needs of certain property service
projects, pursuant to which, the Group would purchase
catering services from catering companies with relevant
service licenses under Binjiang Real Estate, and the
annual cap for the year ending December 31, 2022 under
the 2022 Catering Services Framework Agreement was
determinated. The term of the 2022 Catering Services
Framework Agreement was for a term commencing on 1
January 2022 and expiring on 31 December 2022.

As the 2022 Catering Services Framework Agreement has
expired on 31 December 2022, and the Group expected
to carry on the transactions contemplated thereunder
with Binjiang Real Estate Group upon its expiry, on 3
November 2022 (after trading hours), the Company
entered into a 2023 catering services framework
agreement (the “2023 Catering Services Framework
Agreement”) to renew the transactions contemplated
under the 2022 Catering Services Framework Agreement.
The 2023 Catering Services Framework Agreement is
for a term commencing on 1 January 2023 and expiring
on 31 December 2023. For details of the 2023 Catering
Services Framework Agreement, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 November 2022.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that it is in the interests of the
Company to continue the transactions under the 2022
Catering Services Framework Agreement and the 2023
Catering Services Framework Agreement. The Directors
estimated that for each of the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2023, the maximum amount of rental fees
payable by the Group to the Binjiang Real Estate Group
will not exceed RMB3.0 million and RMB4.0 million,
respectively. The actual transaction amount for these
continuing connected transactions in 2022 is RMBO0.3
million.
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As the highest of the applicable percentage ratios for the
transactions contemplated under the 2023 Master Leasing
Agreement, the 2023 Master Consultancy Agreement,
the 2023 Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement
and the 2023 Catering Services Framework Agreement
are more than 0.1%, and all the applicable percentage
ratios are less than 5%, the transactions under each of the
agreements are subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, but exempt from the circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for
the transactions contemplated under the 2023 Master
Pre-delivery Management Service Agreement and the
2023 Property Management Services Agreement are
more than 5% and the total consideration is more than
HK$10,000,000, the transactions contemplated under
the Master Pre-delivery Management Service Agreement
are subject to announcement, circular and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that, during the year, these transactions
have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s
business;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better terms
available or obtained by the Group from an
independent third party; and

(©) in accordance with the respective agreements,
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.



ARAEZRZBMRETESAMASEM
HCE B ER X ERIE30005% RERDINE
EMBENERLEHNAINEE TR
W2 E(EBHAEM0EBINEE LT
RAPTA B E R ZH O R BEAED ] 5t
AEEFEREIZFELER ZBEMHZR
1 B AR BIE14A 5615 3 A S BN Ll 45 4
FRER BB A L E IR WA R

1. BEZREFRBEXBMEAEHAEE
REMEXHIRRESTSHE -

2. RABASBRHERSHORSME @ #
EXRETRBNEZBMBEMRER
BREXHUFABTERTEHRRBAE
B 5 E (B BRAETT »

3. BIERRETRNEZBMBEMRE
FEWREXZUFETEATERER
BEREXSHMBEWEIL -

4. REBEFEMEXHEREmME  HEZER
EEBEZEMEEMRERSERE
XZEBBARBFENFE LR -

AR A A B AR B B & B A 2022
FRAJNBILEFENFERE RS R0 % BAD
B 1 &l 7 o

ESTHRE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Company has engaged its auditor to report on
the continuing connected transactions of the Group
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
(Revised) “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued a letter containing
the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules:

1. Nothing had come to its attention that may cause it
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions had not been approved by the Board.

2. For transactions involving the provision of services
by the Group, nothing had come to its attention
that may cause it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group.

3. Nothing had come to its attention that may
cause it to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions.

4. With respect to the aggregate amount of each of
the continuing connected transactions, nothing
had come to its attention that may cause it to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions had exceeded the annual caps as set by
the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.
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For details of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions, including specific terms or program under
each agreement and material information about pricing
policies and guidance, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 3 November 2022 and the circular
of the Company dated 8 December 2022. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules during the Reporting Period. During the
Reporting Period, the Group complied with the value and
the transaction terms pursuant to these pricing policies
and guidance when carrying on continuing connected
transactions.

CHARITY DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the charitable and other
donations made by the Group amounted to RMB18,000.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
were not involved in any material legal proceeding or
arbitration. To the best knowledge of the Directors, there
is no material legal proceeding or claim which is pending
or threatened against the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
coverage for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of potential legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising from corporate activities.
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The Directors, Secretary and other senior officers of the
Company at anytime, whether at present or in the past,
and the liquidator or trustees (if any) acting or who have
acted in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
and each of them, and each of their heirs, executors and
administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their
heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts; and
none of them shall be answerable for the acts, receipts,
neglects or defaults of the other or others of them or
for joining in any receipts for the sake of conformity, or
for any bankers or other persons with whom any moneys
or effects belonging to the Company shall or may be
lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for insufficiency
or deficiency of any security upon which any moneys of
or belonging to the Company shall be placed out on or
invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or damage
which may happen in the execution of their respective
offices or trusts, or in relation thereto; provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said
persons.

Each shareholder agrees to waive any claim or right of
action he might have, whether individually or by or in the
right of the Company, against any Director on account
of any action taken by such Director, or the failure of
such Director to take any action in the performance of
his duties with or for the Company; provided that such
waiver shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to such Director.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

1. The Company intends to amend the amended and
restated articles of association of the Company.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 24 March 2023 and circular to be issued by
the Company for further details.

2. Subsequent to the end of the Reporting Period, the
Directors proposed a final dividend. Further details
are disclosed in note 24(c)(i) of the consolidated
financial statement.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) has, together with the Company’s
management, reviewed the annual results and the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, and discussed matters in relation to audit, risk
management, internal control and financial statements,
including reviewing the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high level of
corporate governance practices. Information about the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
88 to 119 in this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required by the Listing Rules and at least 25% of the
Company’s entire issued share capital were held by the
public during the Reporting Period and up to the latest
practicable date (i.e. 14 April 2023).
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AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as auditor for the year ended
31 December 2022. KPMG has audited the accompanying
financial statements which were prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards. There
has no change in the auditor of the Company since the
Listing date.

KPMG is subject to retirement and, being eligible, offers
itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A
resolution for re-appointment of KPMG as auditor will be
proposed at the AGM.

By Order of the Board
ZHU Lidong
Chairman and executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022.

The Group strives to become “the brand leader in the
property industry and the standard setter of high-end
quality”, carrying the corporate purpose of
first, service first, quality first”, bearing in mind the
service concept of “serving with heart and filling home
with love”, and under the guidance of the quality
policy of “sincerity, innovation, perfection, safety,
health and green”, the Group continues to implement
standardization, actively benchmarking with its excellent

“owner

counterparts and improving its own management level,
striving to make the Group’s brand better, stronger and
more reputable.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders of the Company and to enhance
corporate value and accountability of the Company.
During the Reporting Period, the Company has adopted
and complied with all applicable code provisions under
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate
Governance Code” or "CG Code”) in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, except for the following deviations:
Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. However, the
Company does not have a separate chairman and chief
executive officer and the responsibility of both chairman
and chief executive officer vest in Mr. Zhu Lidong. The
Board believes that vesting the responsibilities of both
chairman and president in the same person has the
benefit of ensuring the consistent leadership within the
Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning of the Group. Besides, with three
independent non-executive Directors out of a total of
eight Directors in the Board, there will be sufficient
independent voice within the Board to protect the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole. In addition, all decisions of the Board shall be
passed by majority vote. Therefore, the Board considers
that the balance of power and authority for the present
arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly and effectively. The Board will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of
the Board and chief executive officer of the Company
at a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking
into account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.
Save as disclosed above, the Company complied with the
Corporate Governance Code during the Reporting Period.
The Company will continue to strictly abide by the
corporate governance requirements under the Corporate
Governance Code and the Listing Rules.

STRBEEARAR FERE 2022

;g

89



20

ERERBME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Exg

EFESREASENERRBREE YEEALE
BHREEREALEREBGLREA -EF
CEMAKRENSRERERAAEERE
ERELEENENIREE REEARRAE
BB EHEE EFSCKINBEEES R
Eg ERHEXKZES AQAFMZES
(FMEBEE]) ARFAERZES(RS
ZEg ) RARAIRKZES ((KBEET])
(B EEEZEEE) EFCCRAXTFE
FEZEEREZHEREMFNRT -

EREFERRBRFAZEN  ETHERZE
BEER  BRAUKBAUTERARA KRR
MaEm A AEITHRE -

ARRFTEIMH B BTN EAEFRRLEEER
BEERR  ITREFERZRRBRIREHEE -

EEg4dAm

RAERAY EFEOMANTEE =
EHNTEER BB EATEEMAR
ST

RIR(EFETELR
7T A8 #)
BEE

S
BN g (R2022F6A1HEZ (F)
25

Tzl
FHE
25

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of
the Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions
and monitors business and performance. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established
four Board committees, including the Audit Committee,
the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the strategy committee of the
Company (the “Strategy Committee”) (collectively,
the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to
the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties
in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Company plans to arrange appropriate insurance
coverage in respect of liability arising from legal action
against its Directors, and will conduct annual review on
such insurance coverage.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
two executive Directors, three non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors as set out
below:

ZHU Lidong (Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer)
ZHONG Ruogin

MO lJianhua
Ql Jiaqi (@ppointed on 1 June 2022)
CAl Xin

DING Jiangang
LI Kunjun
CAI Haijing
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The biographies of the Directors are set out in section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has met the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules, which relates to the appointment
of independent non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considers each of them to be
independent.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors
as set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report, none of
the Directors has any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) with any other Directors or any chief
executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and expertise to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Strategy Committee and Remuneration Committee.

As regards the code provision under the CG Code
requiring directors to disclose the number and nature
of offices held in listed companies or organizations and
other significant commitments as well as their identity
and the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have
agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in
a timely manner.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All newly appointed Directors would be provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that
they have a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as their responsibilities
under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide
Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors
are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Company encourages continuous professional
development training for all the Directors to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The joint company
secretaries of the Company update and provide the
Directors with written training materials in relation to
their roles, functions and duties from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all current
Directors have received relevant training on corporate
governance and regulatory issues, and have provided
their training records. In view of the above, the Company
considers that all Directors have complied with code
provision C.1.4 of the CG Code.
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Way of training

A summary of the continuous professional developments
in relation to the business of the Group received by the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 is as
follows:

AR

Training topics

HITES

Executive Director

KIUR =&

ZHU Lidong Meeting
EREE Ve

ZHONG Ruogin Meeting/Training

FHITES

Non-executive Director

RgE =
MO Jianhua Meeting
B0 A =

Ql Jiaqi Meeting
28 =

CAl Xin Meeting
BAIFHITES

Independent Non-executive Director
T Ml =
DING Jiangang Meeting
IR E B

LI Kunjun Meeting
2B =

CAl Haijing Meeting

EERTEMERBERER
Corporate governance/Industry related training/
Laws and regulations

EERTEMRB ERERMB
Corporate governance/Industry related training/
Laws and regulations/Finance

EERTEMRB ERER
Corporate governance/Industry related training/
Laws and regulations

EERMATEMER EREM
Corporate governance/Industry related training/
Laws and regulations

TEERTERBERER
Corporate governance/Industry related training/
Laws and regulations

RER/EEER

Corporate governance/Laws and regulations

RER/IREER

Corporate governance/Laws and regulations

DREEREEER I
Corporate governance/Laws and regulations/

Finance
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. However, the Company does not have
a separate chairman and chief executive officer and
the responsibility of both chairman and chief executive
officer vest in Mr. ZHU. The Board believes that vesting
the responsibilities of both chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring the
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning of the
Group. Besides, with three independent non-executive
Directors out of a total of eight Directors in the Board,
there will be sufficient independent voice within the
Board to protect the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole. In addition, all decisions of the
Board shall be passed by majority vote. Therefore, the
Board considers that the balance of power and authority
for the present arrangement will not be impaired and
this structure will enable the Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Board
will continue to review and consider splitting the roles of
chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company at a time when it is appropriate and suitable by
taking into account the circumstances of the Group as a
whole.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, subject to termination in
accordance with the requirements of the service contract.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company, with a term of
3 years, subject to termination in accordance with the
requirements of the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company, subject to termination in accordance with the
requirements of the letter of appointment.
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None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at each annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with Article 84 of the Articles
of Association. Appointed as an addition to the Board
or to fill a casual vacancy on the Board will be subject
to re-election by the Shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting or the first general meeting
of the Company respectively after the appointment. In
addition, when an independent non-executive Director
proposed for re-election has served the Company for
more than nine years, his/her re-election will be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved at the annual
general meeting.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the Board'’s structure, size and composition,
and for making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-election and succession planning of
Directors.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly, at least four times a year. Notices of
no less than fourteen days are given for all regular Board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and discuss matters in the agenda for a regular
meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given by the
Company. The agenda and accompanying Board papers
are included in the notice and dispatched at least three
days before the Board meetings or Board Committee
meetings to ensure that the Directors have sufficient
time to review the papers and be adequately prepared
for the meetings. When Directors or committee members
are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of
the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity
to make their views known to the Chairman prior to
the meeting. Minutes of meetings shall be kept by the
company secretary with copies circulated to all Directors
for information and records.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings are recorded in sufficient detail on the matters
considered by the Board and the Board Committees and
the decisions reached, including any concerns raised
by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the
Directors for comments within a reasonable time after
the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes
of the Board meetings are open for inspection by all
Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 9 Board

REEGEE  2ABRERFFARERIULNKE  meetings, 2 extraordinary general meeting and one
BFEXRg - Xi%ﬁfﬁ% @ @& &M EHA  annual general meeting were held and the attendance of
FREMNBEREN T each Director at the Board meetings and annual general
meeting are set out in the table below:
HE CERHE BE SEKEE LUE SEKREE
EEng Name of Directors ESEERNY RRBIREXRYE RREFREXREHY
Attended/ Attended/
Attended/ Eligible Eligible
Eligible to attend the to attend the
to attend the extraordinary  annual general
Board meetings general meeting meeting
KRIRFEE Mr. ZHU Lidong 9/9 2/2 11
BEELL Ms. ZHONG Ruogin 9/9 2/2 1/1
BgELt Mr. MO Jianhua 9/9 2/2 171
BB o A Mr. QI Jiaqi' 5/5 1/1 0/0
BEEE Mr. CAI Xin 9/9 2/2 171
T2l %k A4 Mr. DING Jiangang 8/9 2/2 1/1
B LA Mr. LI Kunjun 9/9 2/2 171
2Bt Ms. CAIl Haijing 9/9 2/2 1/1
B it - Notes:

1~ HMEFAEER0NF6AIBEEeSRBmEDA
RRFFENTES  ARARBMEFEERST
BE2022F12A3MBABHGREEFE E#H - 1X
BRENAGERTEZRBRRRBEFRS - BIEF
EEHBERIFNTESTLS
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1. Mr. QI Jiagi was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company at the Board meeting on 1 June 2022. The Company held
five Board meetings, one extraordinary general meeting and no
annual general meeting from the date of appointment of Mr. QI
Jiagi to 31 December 2022. Mr. QI Jiagi attended the meetings as a
non-executive Director.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions of the Directors
and relevant employees (the “Securities Transactions
Code”). The Company had made specific enquiry with all
Directors whether they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
and the Securities Dealing Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The Company's employees, who are likely to be in
possession of inside information of the Company, have
also been subject to the Model Code for securities
transactions. No incident of non-compliance of the
Model Code by the Company’s relevant employees
was noted by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including: approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters. The Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company's expense. The Directors are
encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s
senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the management.
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MECHANISMS TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT
VIEWS

The Company ensures independent views and input are
available to the Board via the below mechanisms:

1. The Board composition and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors should
be reviewed by the Nomination Committee on
an annual basis, in particular the portion of the
independent non-executive Directors and the
independence of the independent non-executive
director who has served for more than nine years.

2. A written confirmation was received by the
Company under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in
relation to his/her independence to the Company.
The Company considers all its independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

3. In view of good corporate governance practices
and to avoid conflict of interests, the Directors who
are also directors and/or senior management of the
Company’s controlling shareholders and/or certain
subsidiaries of the controlling shareholders, would
abstain from voting in the relevant Board resolutions
in relation to the transactions with the controlling
shareholders and/or its associates.

4. The chairman of the Board shall meet with
independent non-executive Directors at least once
annually.

5. All members of the Board can seek independent
professional advice when necessary to perform their
responsibilities in accordance with the company
policy.

The Board reviews the mechanisms for ensuring
independent views and input are available to the Board
on an annual basis, whether in terms of proportion,
recruitment and independence of independent
non-executive directors, and their contribution and
access to external independent professional advice.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the corporate governance functions of the Group, which
include:

(a)

(b)

(@

(d)

(e)

(f)

review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices in complying with legal and regulatory
requirements;

review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and
senior management;

develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees
and the Directors;

develop and review the Company’'s corporate
governance policies and practices, make
recommendations and report on related issues to
the Board;

review the Company’'s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosures in the Corporate Governance
Report; and

review and monitor the Company’s compliance with
its whistleblowing policy.

Major duties of the Board in 2022 were as follows:

approve the change of the term of reference of the
Remuneration Committee and the address of the
principal place of business in Hong Kong;

consider and approve related matters of connected
transactions;

discuss and formulate strategic plans of the
Company;,

discuss and adjust the management structure and
employment policy of the Company;

review the internal control report of the Company
and reviewed the compliance of corporate
governance of the Company;

FEHE 2022

;g

BRI

929



100

ERERBME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o EHMEMLETNREISMEBRECK
&

© ERAQTRAESNAHRRER LR
ok

EXgZEE

ERZBEEHR-_AKEEAR IHESFLL
(EFE) TEREERTHELLE 28R
BYFATES -

ERZEeZAEBAMPEFEREITHRE -
EHRMEBEARRNMB RS  BREER
NEEGRG YETEFEINRKIIRNE
MEMEE BERZECAREERAR/EAR
ERZEBYMNZERREMBERRETAE -

ERZZEENIERENT:

—_

EERASETHERFEXEEARTH R
FEMBHRROTEN BHPBRER
AR HEMEREBABRTEE &
B BZUBAIEERE ABEERERK
MINEBZBE2HRE  UEHARF N
FHIREFRE PHHRERER B
KRARAWUBERRARFERSE LK
B ¥FERENERTEB)FTERS
VBN UERMBRLBEMHBE
MBHBENERAB(BRFIZTHNE
BRENEARENE BEIHSNF
EEBANEEEANSR) WERLXAKE
HAR & B TS R R 1R TR B B B A% 3R 5 2E R
FEREFRB ARG N LR 2 E
BRERAEHRE  ANHEHRIMBEHRERRA
RUEMHBBAANBEE  SHBHRRD
7 i B BRF S8R AR Bl R HO B K 8
AR

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

review and adopt the revised anti-corruption and
whistle-blowing polices; and

J monitor and review the anti-corruption and internal
reporting practice of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Audit Committee comprises three members, all being
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. CAl
Haijing (chairman), Mr. DING Jiangang and Mr. LI Kunjun.

The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board
in fulfilling its responsibilities to review and monitor
the Company's financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems, and to perform any other
duties as may be delegated by the Board from time to
time. The Audit Committee has the authority to engage
independent legal and other advisors and conduct
investigations as it considers necessary.

The major duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1. to monitor the integrity of the Group's interim and
annual results and interim and annual financial
statements. To meet with the chief financial officer
and other senior management of the Company
to receive, consider and discuss reports from
management, the internal audit team and the
external auditors in order to review the Company's
interim and annual results, interim reports and
annual reports, to monitor the integrity of the
Company's financial statements and annual reports
and accounts, half-year reports and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review the
materiality of the financial reporting contained in
the statements and reports (including the business
logic and accounting treatment of new businesses,
the annual aggregation of connected transactions
and regulation) to ensure that the Group's
consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards and in compliance with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules,
and that such internal controls as are considered
necessary for the preparation of the financial
statements are such that they are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
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to be primarily responsible for reviewing and
monitoring the independence and objectivity
of the external auditor and the objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process. To review the
annual letters received from the external auditors
confirming their independence and objectivity, to
meet with the external auditors' representatives to
consider the scope of their audit and to approve
their fees and the scope and appropriateness of
the non-audit services to be provided, to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors, to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditors, and to
address any questions of resignation or dismissal of
such auditors;

to review the Group's risk management and
internal control systems and to review the scope,
coverage and effectiveness of the internal audit
function. To discuss the risk management and
internal control system with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to
have an effective system in place. The discussion
should include consideration of the adequacy of
the Company's resources, staff qualifications and
experience in the accounting and financial reporting
functions, as well as the adequacy of training
courses and related budgets. Review the Group's
process for assessing its control environment and
managing material risks, including sustainability
risks, to assist the Board in assessing the overall
governance, risk management and internal
control framework and maintaining effective risk
management and internal control systems, to
obtain and consider risk management reports,
management reports, etc. and to review the
effectiveness of the Company's risk management
and internal control systems; and
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to establish and review the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices. To receive and
review regular compliance reports on corporate
governance matters and other reports on corporate
governance, including the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and to ensure that any deviation from
the CG Code is properly explained and disclosed in
the annual reports.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. The major tasks of the Audit Committee in
2022 are as follows:

review the annual results of the Group for the year
2021;

review the interim results of the Group for the year
2022,

review the auditor's report on the Group's audit
plan and strategy;

hold four meetings with the auditors to consider the
auditors' report on the scope, strategy, procedures
and results of their independent review of the
interim financial report for 2022 and the annual
audit of the consolidated financial statements for
2021 and 2022;

separate communications with the auditors, the
chief financial officer and the internal audit team
in the absence of management to review the
independence of the auditors and the objectivity
and effectiveness of the audit process, review the
audit fees and non-audit service fees payable to
the auditors and recommend to the Board the re-
appointment of KPMG as external auditor after
considering its performance and independence;

review and discuss the Group's connected
transactions;
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J review the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal controls (including the
Company's internal controls over fraud risks and
the handling and identification of business conflicts
between major Shareholders in relation to listed
companies, etc.) and risk management systems and
procedures. The Board did not deviate from any
recommendation made by the Audit Committee on
the selection, appointment, retirement or dismissal
of the external auditor; and

° review the internal audit function, and confirm it is
adequate and effective.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit
Committee held 4 meetings and the attendance record
of the Audit Committee members is set out in the table

below:
HE/BITERERE
Name of Audit Attendance/Number
ERZEEERBERE Committee Members of meetings held
ARGt (TE) Ms. CAl Haijing (chairman) 4/4
TR %k A4 Mr. DING Jiangang 4/4
FHBLEAE Mr. LI Kunjun 4/4

FHNZEEREH-_ZREAR  IMLE
VIERTEZTEZAEE(ER)IREFHFKL
T URFERTESTERELL -

FMZEemEIERSN T

1. BRARARZREZTLSAEEENT M
BRNMREE MR IZIERMEERAE
MEFHRTHLEFHMEE  MEFSIE
nepe g X

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
members including two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. DING Jiangang (chairman) and Ms.
CAl Haijing as well as a non-executive Director, Mr. MO
Jianhua.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

1.  to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;
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10.

1.

to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board'’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment to
ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

to consult with the Company’s chairman and/or
the president/managing director/chief executive
officer about their remuneration proposals for other
executive Directors;

to review and/or approve matters relating to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules; and

to consider all other matters as referred to the
Committee by the Board.
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The written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Major works of the
Remuneration Committee in 2022 were as follows:

o review the remuneration policy of the Group;
o evaluate the performance of the executive Directors
and approve the terms of service contracts with the

executive Directors; and

. review the remuneration of each Director and make
recommendations on its adjustment to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Remuneration Committee held 2 meeting and the

BRLEREH AT &R attendance record of the Remuneration Committee
members is set out in the table below:
HE BT3B RH
Name of Remuneration Attendance/Number
FWEEERENRS Committee Members of meetings held

TERE®(EE) Mr. DING Jiangang (chairman) 1/2
2BEzL Ms. CAIl Haijing 2/2
REERsE Mr. MO Jianhua 2/2

REZESHNA-ZKEEAN  BIWAE
VIHFRTESRTTEZMEERFHELRE - A
FATTES BFEIFERIRELE(ER) -

REZEENIBREMT:

. ELEBFRIESFENRE ABLAE
R(BIERE - Zalt  MBLRER)
W 5t AE 7] 2 BL & 28 2 B B X A) 5 RS i 3
HEFRSEENEBRLES:

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three
members including two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. DING Jiangang and Mr. LI Kunjun
as well as an executive Director and chairman of the
Board, Mr. ZHU Lidong (chairman).

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

1. to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, diversity, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

STRBEEARAR FERE 2022
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2.

to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the

“Nomination Policy”).

Pursuant to the Nomination

Policy, the Nomination Committee carefully considers,
including but not limited to the following criteria for
evaluating, selecting and recommending candidates for
directors to the Board:

diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, experience, cultural and educational
background, professional level, skills and
knowledge;

sufficient time to perform their duties effectively;
their services to other listed and unlisted companies
shall be limited to a reasonable amount;
qualifications, including skills, achievements and
experience gained in the relevant industries involved
in the Company’s business;

independence;

integrity and reliability;

potential contribution that the person may made to
the Board; and

commitment to enhancing and maximizing
shareholders’ value.

The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will
then be put to the Board for decision.
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The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. Major works of the
Nomination Committee in 2022 were as follows:

° review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, diversity, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

o assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

o make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Nomination Committee held 2 meetings and the
attendance record of the Nomination Committee
members is set out in the table below:

HE BT3B RH

Name of Nomination Attendance/number
REZEENERSR Committee Members of meetings held
KRNI R&EE(EE) Mr. ZHU Lidong (chairman) 2/2
THBLEA Mr. LI Kunjun 2/2
TER LA Mr. DING Jiangang 1/2
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board remains committed to enhance its operating
efficiency and maintain high standards of corporate
governance on a continuing basis and recognizes the
vital importance of the diversity of the Board with
regard to the maintenance of competitive advantage
and sustainable development. Therefore, the Company
has adopted a board diversity policy. In designing the
composition of the Board, the Company has taken into
account the diversity of the Board from various aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, industry experience, technical
and professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge,
length of service and time to be devoted as a Director
of the Company. The Company will consider its own
business model and special needs from time to time as
well. The ultimate decision will be made based on the
merits of the selected candidates and the contributions
they can bring to the Board.

The Board strives to ensure the appropriate balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are
essential for the implementation of its business strategies
of the Board and the effective operation of the Board.
As of the date of this annual report, the eight directors
include two women. The Company considers that the
Board has achieved gender diversity. The Company will
continue to maintain at least two female Directors on
the Board. Each of the Directors is aged between 35 and
59. Their industry experience covers such a wide range
of fields such as real estate, investment and financing,
accounting and auditing, media and market research.

The Board is of opinion that the composition of the
Board of the Company is sufficiently diversified. The
Nomination Committee reviews the diversity policy from
time to time to ensure the sustainability and effectiveness
of the policy and will continue to review the diversity of
the composition of the Board.
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As of 31 December 2022, the proportion of female
and male employees of the Group (excluding Directors)
were approximately 48.3% and 51.7% respectively. As
such, the Company also considers that it has achieved
gender diversity among its employees. For the Group,
recruitment is considered regardless of gender, as any
position in the Group does not require any ability or skill
that is considered to outperform another gender.

STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The Strategy Committee currently comprises seven
members including two independent non-executive
Directors Mr. DING Jiangang and Mr. LI Kunjun, three
MO Jianhua (chairman),
Mr. Ql Jiagi and Mr. CAl Xin as well as two executive
Directors Mr. ZHU Lidong and Ms. ZHONG Ruogqin.

non-executive Directors Mr.

The major duties of the Strategy Committee of the
Company are as follows:

1.  to review and make recommendation to the Board
on business development;

2. to provide advice to the Board on significant
investment, merger, acquisition and disposal; and

3. to perform other duties and responsibilities as may
be assigned by the Board.

The written terms of reference of the Strategy Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. Major works of the Strategy Committee in
2022 were as follows:

1.  to review and make recommendation to the Board
on business development.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Strategy
Committee held 1 meeting and the attendance record of

the Strategy Committee members is set out in the table

below:

HE BITEBRH
Attendance/number
of meetings held

BERELE(EE) Mr. MO Jianhua (chairman) 11
KRIREAE Mr. ZHU Lidong 1/1
EHEL LT Mr. ZHONG Ruogin 1/1
EHEEAE Mr. CAI Xin 1/1
T &M%k A& Mr. DING Jiangang 0/1
FHEBERE Mr. LI Kunjun 1/1
BN A A Mr. QI Jiaqi 0/0
EEHM REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

ARFIE2EERESTM T RAUBHHRE
ME7ZBEENSER  SERERIES -
WHEREBFNEXRERERE2022512 431
HEFEHMS -

SAE R B MM
HE2022F12A31BLEFE - ARa e &
EREBEZ2RRINATFRFIEESR
S3E)MB S HY T

The Company has made full disclosure of remunerations
of Directors by name, amount and type in Note 7 to the
financial statements. No director has waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments for the year ended 31 December
2022.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The remuneration of senior management of the Company
(whose biographies are set out on pages 49 to 53 of this
annual report) for the year ended 31 December 2022
falls under the following bands:

AE
e &R Band of remuneration Number
T — AR#1,000,0007T Nil — RMB1,000,000
R A R#1,000,0007T Over RMB1,000,000 5

EERRMBHRROMBRREE

EEPHARSERUAEEE 20225124
BSHIEFENMBREANBE  UEEQTF
HREARNR RAEB MR - W5 AEE
ZELASELFE  BWRE SHIEEHT
;fgo
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022, which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group,
and presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Group's performance and prospects.
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The management of the Company has provided to the
Board such explanation and information as are necessary
to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment
of the Group’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions, which
may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditors regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 182 to 193 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

In the course of business operation, the Group is subject
to various risks, including business risks, financial risks,
compliance risks, and operational and other risks.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
Company’s risk management and internal control
systems, and is responsible for reviewing the
effectiveness of such systems. The Audit Committee
is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
records, internal control procedures and risk management
systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement, loss
or fraud. During the Reporting Period, the Company
has established the internal audit function, which is
carried out and reviewed by the Audit Committee, in
order to independently evaluate the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control system
and timely report to the Board.

BIRGEBERAR FEHRSE 2022
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The Company has established comprehensive risk
management and internal control processes through
which the Company monitors, evaluates and manages
the risks that the Company is exposed to its business
activities. The risk management procedure of the
Company is based on the well-defined risk identification
standards, risk monitor responsibilities and risk control
measure of each major classification. The management
of the Company actively monitors the regional economy,
trend of property management services industry,
reliance on continuing connected transactions and
changes in applicable laws and regulations, and assesses
income and expenditure and absorptive capacity of
business expansions. The recommendations submitted
by independent consultant have been accepted by
the Company and implemented in stages, to further
enhance the policies, procedures and practices of
its internal control and risk management. The risk
management procedure of the Company clearly specifies
the management duties, authorization and approval of
each party in respect of the major risk identification
and management, and develops clear written policy for
significant risk management process and circulate it to all
managements and staffs. The Company’s internal control
procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance
for achieving objectives, including efficient and stable
operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations.

In order to effectively reduce unnecessary financial risks
and operational risks, and thus ensure the realization
of corporate business objectives, the Company has
designated specific departments to perform internal
control and audit functions, establish a sound internal
control system, monitor the implementation of the
system, and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness
of internal control and risk management systems
annually. For the significant risks affecting the Group’s
business and operations, the management has ensured
that appropriate measures have been taken to provide
reasonable protection for compliance with laws and
regulations and improve the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations. The Board and management of the
Company also evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness
of the relevant systems annually, and consider and
implement the recommendations proposed by the
specific departments for the improvement of systems.
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The Directors and senior management of the Company
regularly receive training relating to continuing disclosure
obligation of listed company. The Company also
engaged external legal consultant to obtain professional
guidance on disclosure obligations in respect of inside
information. The management of the Company is
responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining
the effectiveness of the internal control system, which
includes monitoring on compliance with disclosure
obligations in respect of inside information. The Board
is responsible for supervising the appropriateness and
efficiency of the internal control measure carried by
management.

The Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012.

The Company has established a system, including
management regulations, processes and procedures for
external information dissemination, to comply with the
disclosure obligations in relation to price-sensitive and/
or inside information. The major steps involved are as
follows:

o The Board and the company secretary identify
the existence of inside information in a systematic
and timely manner through regular financial and
operational reports;

o monitoring business and corporate developments
and events through core management to enable
timely identification of information that may
constitute inside information;

J extensive disclosure of information to the public
through channels such as financial reports,
announcements and the Company’s website;

ensuring inside information is kept strictly
confidential before it is disclosed to the public; and

ETIREEEAR AT E/EHE 2022
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e authorizing designated personnel (including
Directors and company secretary) to communicate
with Shareholders, investors and analysts, subject to
compliance with the relevant disclosure obligations
and requirements under the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
has adopted various measures to ensure the effective
implementation of the internal control system, including
through the review of the Group’s internal control system
and provision of guidance in respect of the internal
control policies, responsibilities and duties of the listing
company'’s directors and management under the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws and regulations for
the Directors, senior management and employees. The
Board had reviewed the risk management and internal
control system of the Group 4 times. The Board and the
management has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and considered it
sufficient and effective.

The Company has adopted an inside information policy in
accordance with the SFO and the Listing Rules to ensure
the confidentiality of handling inside information and the
publication of respective disclosure to the public as soon
as practicable. The Company will make corresponding
information disclosure timely with regard to information
that is unlikely to maintain confidentiality, so as to
ensure effective protection of the rights and interests of
investors and stakeholders.

In conclusion, the Company believes that its internal
control system is sufficient and effective.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the auditor’s
remuneration for the annual audit services and review
services were RMB1.9 million and RMBO0.5 million
respectively and the aggregate amount was RMB2.4
million. The fee for non-audit services, mainly the review
of environmental, social and governance report, and tax
consulting was RMBO0.2 million.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. ZHONG Ruogin, one of the Company’s executive
Directors, is also one of the joint company secretaries of
the Company.

Ms. AU Wai Ching (“Ms. AU") has been appointed
as the Joint Company Secretary and an authorized
representative of the Company under Rule 3.05 of
the Listing Rules, an authorized representative of
the Company pursuant to Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and an authorized person of the Company under Rule
19.05(2) of the Listing Rules for the acceptance of
service of process and notices in Hong Kong on behalf
of the Company (collectively known as the “Authorized
Representatives”) with effect from 10 November
2021. Ms. AU is a senior manager of SWCS Corporate
Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited with over 10 years
of experience in corporate secretarial services. Ms. AU
obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration
and a master’'s degree in professional accounting and
corporate governance from City University of Hong
Kong. Ms. AU is an associate member of both The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom.

The primary contact within the Company with Ms. AU is
Ms. ZHONG Ruogin.

BIRGEBERAR FEHRSE 2022
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The Company has applied to the Stock Exchange for, and
the Stock Exchange has granted a new waiver (the “New
Waiver”) to the Company from strict compliance with
requirements under Rules 3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing
Rules for a period from the date of appointment of Ms.
AU as the Joint Company Secretary (i.e. 10 November
2021) to 14 March 2022 (i.e. the remaining period of the
Waiver Period) (the “New Waiver Period”) in relation
to the eligibility of Ms. ZHONG to act as one of the Joint
Company Secretaries. The New Waiver is granted on
the conditions that: (i) Ms. ZHONG must be assisted by
Ms. AU during the New Waiver Period; and (i) the New
Waiver could be revoked if there are material breaches of
the Listing Rules by the Company. Before the end of the
New Waiver Period, the Company must demonstrate and
seek the Stock Exchange’s confirmation that Ms. ZHONG,
having had the benefit of Ms. AU’s assistance during the
New Waiver Period, has attained the relevant experience
and is capable of discharging the functions of a company
secretary under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules such that
a further waiver will not be necessary. The New Waiver
applies to Ms. AU’s appointment as the Joint Company
Secretary only. The Stock Exchange may withdraw or
change the New Waiver if the Company’s situation
changes.

The New Waiver Period expired on 14 March 2022. The
Stock Exchange had agreed that Ms. ZHONG Ruogin
was qualified to act as the company secretary of the
Company under Rule 3.28 and Rule 8.17 of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. ZHONG
and Ms. AU have undertaken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in accordance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP

The Company considers that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and understanding of the Group’s business,
performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information on the Company for the
shareholders and investors to make informed investment
decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides
opportunity for shareholders to communicate directly
with the Directors. The chairman of the Board and the
chairmen of the Board Committees of the Company
attends the annual general meeting to answer
shareholders’ questions. The auditor also attends the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
auditor’s report and auditor’s independence.

To promote effective communication and to build an
inter-relationship and communication channel between
the Company and the Shareholders, the Company adopts
a shareholders’ communication policy and maintains a
website at http:/www.hzbjwy.com, where the up-to-date
information on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available
for public access.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board
has reviewed the shareholders’ communication policy,
including the actions taken at the general meetings,
the handling of enquiries received and the various
communication channels available. The Company
considers that the shareholders’ communication policy
has been effectively implemented during the year ended
31 December 2022.

BIRGEEARAR FERME 2022
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, a
separate resolution will be proposed for each issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual
directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and
the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING AND PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS

According to the Articles of Association, the Shareholders
may put forward proposals at the general meeting of the
Company for consideration. Any one or more member(s)
of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be convened by the Company for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board to convene such general
meeting shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director,
the procedures are available on the website of the
Company.
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ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries
about the Company to the Board may send their
enquiries to the Investor Relations of the Company at its
headquarters through email at ir@binjiangfuwu.com.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum of Association and the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Memorandum and
Articles”) have been amended and restated, with effect
from the Listing Date. Save for the aforesaid disclosed,
during the Reporting Period, no change has been made
to the Memorandum and Articles.

Besides, the Company plans to amend its memorandum
and articles of association. For details, please refer to the
announcement dated 24 March 2023 and the circular to
be issued by the Company.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance
Report ("ESG Report”) issued by the Group to present
the achievement of the Group regarding its management
policies in the environmental and social aspects and the
fulfilment of environmental and social responsibilities in
2022.

This report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27
of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

ESG report is released annually and this report covers
the year from January 2022 to December 2022. The next
report for 2023 is expected to be released in April 2024.

The reporting entities are the Company and its
subsidiaries. The data in respect of their policies, social
responsibilities and environmental protection efforts
cover all of the Group’s business lines.

The data used in this report are derived from the internal
documents and related statistical materials of the Group.
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This report is prepared based on the following principles:

Materiality: The Group identifies major ESG issues
through materiality assessment, and the relevant process
and results have been disclosed in this report.

Quantitative: The Group makes quantitative disclosure
of the key performance indicators with historical data in
the areas of “environmental” and “social” according to
the requirements of the “Key Performance Indicators”
in the Appendix 27 the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules on
the Stock Exchange, makes quantitative disclosure of
forward-looking information such as targets as much as
possible, and will gradually improve the statistical process
to achieve full disclosure in the future.

Balance: This report objectively, fairly and truly discloses the
Group's work performance and practice in environmental
and social matters in 2022, and discloses the problems
encountered and improvement measures in a responsible
manner.

Consistency: The Group follows a consistent statistical
method for disclosure. In this report, the Group
had maintained the same statistical method for the
information as disclosed in the previous year's report.
For the information disclosed for the first time, the
Group will adopt a consistent statistical method for ESG
information disclosure in subsequent years, in order to
facilitate meaningful comparisons from year to year.

This report will be posted on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the official website of the Group.
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STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Assuming full responsibility for the Group’'s ESG
strategy and reporting, the Board is responsible
for assessing and determining the Group’s ESG
related risks, and ensuring that the Group has
an appropriate and effective system for ESG risk
management and internal monitoring.

The business development opportunities of the
Group stem from the society's pursuit of better
quality of life. Because of this, the Group pays
special attention to the sustainable development,
establish and improve the ESG governance system,
and have the review and decision-making of major
ESG issues led by the Board, including identifying
and evaluating ESG risks, formulating ESG strategies
and policies, establishing management policies
and plans, approving and reviewing ESG target
management, and approving the annual ESG report
and other management content.

Based on the external environment and the Group’s
development strategy, the Group conducted
research on internal and external stakeholders
during the Reporting Period, identified key ESG
issues, and clarified work priorities, including:
corporate governance, risk and crisis management,
employees’ rights and benefits, development and
training, customer relationship management and
community development and services, with focus
on reviewing the above issues and improving
performance in daily work, and carried out target
management accordingly. In the future, the Group
will continue to adjust the strategy and promotion
method of sustainable development management
according to the expectations of stakeholders
and the actual operation of the Group, so as to
continuously improve the level of sustainable
development.
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This report disclosed details of the progress and
effectiveness of the ESG work of the Group in
2022. The Board, as the highest responsible and
decision-making body for ESG matters, warrants
that there are no false representations or misleading
statements contained in, or material omissions from
this report, and accepts all responsibilities for the
truthfulness and accuracy of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW

The Group has always adhered to the service
concept of “serving with heart and filling
home with love” and the principle of “owner
first, service first, quality first”. The Group
aims to secure the well-being of owners and
residents through more professional and
standardized services. At the same time,
the Group adheres to the quality policy of
“sincerity, innovation, perfection, safety,
health and green” and strives to always keep
its corporate social responsibility in mind.
These policies and principles instill the concept
of sustainable development into every aspect
of the Group’s governance and business and
enable the Group to realize economic, social
and environmental benefits.
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The Group has established a top-down ESG
governance structure where the Board is
responsible for monitoring environmental and
social issues, including risk assessment, task
prioritization and risk management, supervising
and reviewing the performance of the Group
on the environmental and social issues and
providing the direction and guideline for the
sustainable development of the Group. An ESG
report working commission, which is led by
high-ranking managerial personnel and includes
intermediate level managers. The working
commission consists of representatives from all
regular management divisions of the Group,
including the Board Office, the Integrated
Management Department, the Finance
Department, the Human Resource Department,
the Brand Operations Department and all
Service Centers. The working commission is
responsible for promoting, communicating and
implementing the strategies, measures and
feedback of the Group on issues related to ESG,
which plays an active role in the sustainable
development of the Group.
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The Group’s ESG stakeholders mainly
include the employees, suppliers, customers,
shareholders and investors, local government,
and the communities where the Group’s
business operates. The Group believes
that listening to and understanding the
opinions of stakeholders will provide a solid
foundation for the long-term development
and success of the Group. The Group actively
explores various channels to maintain good
communication with stakeholders, to enhance
the stakeholders’ understanding of the Group’s
development and operational policies, and
to provide more opportunities for them to
put forward suggestions so that the Group
can provide them with timely and effective
feedback regarding their concerns. In this way,
the Group ensures that it is cooperating and
working alongside stakeholders to achieve
mutual benefits.

EOLIS SRR AT FERE 2022
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AEREs
Stakeholders

BENELY

Target & focus

RENRARL

Method of
communication
and exchange

B

Government

LR
2 ARAR
KERTBREHS
feat%

Respond to state
policies

Operate according to
laws and regulations
Pay taxes in
accordance with laws
Promote employment

2EABRRM A
GCHEEL M
BEIEHYENL
BR
BESHUFYE
Take partin
discussions when
relevant policies are
being formulated,

and share enterprise
experience

Guide and influence
public policies actively
Engage in dialogue
with the local
government

BR

Shareholders

FBERAG5E
RRERRE
FBAREE
RAERE

Business strategy

& operating
performance

Protect shareholder's
legal rights

Business sustainability
Company
transparency

EERE

B2 hRE %
EERRE
RREERR

Information
disclosures

The board meeting,
shareholders' meeting
and investors' meeting
of exchange

Direct communication
among shareholders
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BI
Employees

ZMEN
EaRE
B4R
ZEER

i 344
Payment & welfare
Guarantee of rights
and interests
Career development
Safety and health
Corporate culture

ENGEERE
Employee
representative at the
Board of Supervisors
Trade union
Employee
representative
conference
Employee survey and
provision of timely
feedback

Enhance information
disclosure

EF

Customers

« XIEREE RE

RERE
i3a
BilfRE
TRRREEE

Timely service
Safety of
householders
Privacy protection
Steadily improve
service quality

REEDARAR

RHARK
ENREERE

Communicate during
the service offering
process

Owners survey and
provision of timely
feedback

Complaint hotline
Enhance information
disclosures

ftERH
Suppliers

o ARETHRELN

AR ERIER
RRAL
e BHRR

Abide by commercial
ethics & state laws
and rules

Be transparent and
fair

Fulfil commitments,
achieve mutual
benefits and enable
win-win cooperation

Announce the supplier
management rules
Contract negotiation
Daily business
exchange

Enhance information
disclosures

LE
Community

BRtERD
BEHEBRR
RAHERE
REHEIR

Hold community
activities

Assist in community
construction

Secure community
welfare

Promote the
community's
development

EEHRFR B84
i

Communicate with
local government and
organisations
Exchange ideas with
community members
Enhance information
disclosures
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o HEFSAHNEMN
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o REETHRER

¢ Implement state
policies, and abide
by state laws and
regulations

o Accept supervision
and check-ups

¢ (reate more posts to
boost the employment
rate

¢ Guide garbage
classification activities
in cooperation with
the government

¢ Declare taxes in a
timely manner

» §RFEGD
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¢ Take action to
implement garbage
classification

o Number of persons
employed

BR

Shareholders

eHARRES
E@” R

BREEER S
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Hold shareholders'
meetings regularly
Hold board mestings
reqularly

Hold mestings of
exchange with
investors

Disclose statutory
issues in a timely
manner

REEE - RETH
REME

Stock value and
dividend returns

Stock market value

BI
Employees
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RUBINE
Enhance trainings

for employees in
respect of culture and
technical skills
Improve living and
working environment
for employees
Guarantee employees'
rights and benefits,
and upgrade their
welfare level

Health and safety
quarantees for
employees

Establish an employee
trade union
BIHIAR
M BAHE
AREEIRFE
Number of hours of
employee training
Remuneration and
welfare system

The sum of money
donated to employee
with financial
difficulties
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EF

Customers

o BEREL BEL

v ERETRERAE

v HEPRFRERR
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+ Service normalisation
and standardisation

o Conduct reqular
customer satisfaction
surveys

* Respond to client
complaints and
provide them with
feedback in a timely
manner

o Eamestly protect
customer privacy

o BILRARE

© BFRHEE

o RPRLEERE

¢ Investments in
greening

+ Number of customer
complaints

+ Solutions for handling
customer privacy cases

fERH
Suppliers

N
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TELEREEM
BRERRATEHR
FHhe

RERNER

Set up an open
and transparent bid
invitation system
Setupa
communication
platform for suppliers
Perfect the supplier
selection system
Offer equal
opportunities to
suppliers

ARENZ
REE

Contract performance
fate

Assessment of
supplier

BEILRGEEAR AR FERE 2022

LE
Community

ERRTHEERE
g

EULINE
ALDG ERNE
REEIZEZED

Regularly hold
activities to benefit
community residents
Encourage good
deeds

Be passionate about
public welfare, and
contribute to society
Conduct employee
volunteer activities

FAHSHLEE
HERERA
EIsR%ED
Examples of good
deeds
Investments in social
welfare causes
Volunteer activities
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The Group attached importance to the
identification and management of ESG issues.
The Group conducted interviews, surveys
and other activities to collect the opinions
and feedbacks from stakeholders in order to
identify material ESG issues and made specific
disclosures in the report accordingly so to
enhance the sustainable development and
management effectively. The Group will also
continually pay attention to all stakeholders,
constantly review and update the materiality
assessment, and include external stakeholders
when the conditions are right, so as to achieve
a more accurate and thorough understanding
of the demands of various parties, and
to provide guidance and direction to the
enterprise’s business operations and controls
over environmental and social governance.

In 2022, the Group identified industry-related
ESG issues based on relevant guidelines
on sustainability information disclosure,
such as the ”Material Issues Database”
formulated by the Sustainability Accounting
Standards Board (SASB), and based on the
analysis and summary of the results of the
materiality assessment of ESG issues from
all stakeholders, and formed the following
materiality assessment matrix, which is
prepared in considering the stakeholders’ focus
on corporate operations and environmental
and social governance and in accordance with
the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guidelines. The Group focuses
on social fields such as rights and interests
of employees, development and trainings,
community development and customer
relationship management, and environmental
issues such as use of energy and climate
change.
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ways to save energy and water during its
operation,
initiating environmentally friendly measures

and strike a balance between

and maintaining service quality.

2022
E 4 AEHE EEH 8 2021542
2022 Ranking 2021

Issues ranking Materiality changes rankings
A tXER 1 REEE 13 4
Governance Corporate governance Materially important
RE RRRErER 1 REEE - 1
Governance Risk and crisis management Materially important
RE HEEE 3 BEEE 1 4
Governance Business ethics Materially important
e BEEP 3 BEEZR I 2
Social High-quality customers Materially important
e FERZEBLRE 3 REEE — 3
Social Information security and Materially important

privacy protection
B5 AlEZ (L 6 BEEE 112 18
Environmental  Climate change Materially important
e BTG EREN 7 REEE 12 9
Social Employee rights and Materially important

benefits
e ST 8 BEEE 12 6
Social Labor criteria Materially important
A ESGE R 9 EEEE |2 11
Governance ESG governance Materially important
BE BENHHER 10 REEE At ER 2223
Environmental ~ Waste discharge Materially important Integrated

management issues
e BERFER2 11 E 1 12
Social Occupational health and Important

safety
e BR R 12 £ |4 8
Social Development & training Important
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2022

T HEHA
2022

Issues ranking

HRENBABERNTE 13
Impact on the environment
and natural resources

RRE 14
Energy management

(iR gad 15
Low-carbon community

BEMTEHR 16
Responsible marketing

KE R A 17
Water Usage

SRl e TS 18
Diversity & equal

opportunity

FE K BE B 19
Wastewater discharge

mERBIER 20
Greenhouse gas (GHG)

emissions

e e 21
Supply chain management

HF MR 2
Digital community
HEERERGEEY 23

Community development
and charity activities

BEREEN 24

Waste gas emissions
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2022 ESG materiality Matrix of Binjiang Service

Y Governance Issues
BRRTERE

Environmental Issues

RIGHE

Social Issues

B iewmm

>

EIRGEIAR AT FERE 2022 131



132

RE  HERERHRE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RERE

REAHHENREBENEE  XEE
RAVEREEARFBERENRRRE
BEf-EHRELNMBERBRES X~ &F
B @A RRRENERN  BHEE
THREEREREE BERERKH
ERHYRBEFRNEAZE  REFHRER
B E -

AEBBRBET(PEARAMBERER
TR ORI A R LR B &0 49 BE TR KD
FHERBERREBEAZENZRER
THRSEENRERENE - HER
REBMEEIMG AEEELEREM -
ERHRK BERIAEMR  ABEERS
MEEAF HEIRFIEFNERR
TRETTARRE KERLIHED
HEMERRAREE LIZERTE2EET
METBERRFRERER  WNEAK HEE
BoRAORE DERERER 3|82
BEIKEHN RERNBENAEE
MAEERAARENES -

It o - AN & B B 4€ 3 38 GB/T24001-2016
/15014001 : 20153R IR B IR B2 KRR F -
ERYASEBEARBEEFEMMOHT
ERMEGEHKBEN —BERET A&
BT ER T TEHHEEREETE
BEAME—FERMNENL -

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a socially and environmentally responsible
corporate citizen, the Group is fully aware of its
responsibilities in environmental protection. In the
process of daily operations and development, the
Group maintains an emphasis on the importance
of environmental protection, actively implementing
green and low-carbon development strategies,
minimizing the negative impact of business
development on the environment, and trying to
generally have a positive effect on the environment.

The Group strictly abides by laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the development
of the Group, such as the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Conserving
Energy and strives to ceaselessly implement its
environmental protection measures. In order to
strengthen environmental protection awareness, the
Group monitored the use of electrical appliances,
water conservation, paperless office measures,
business vehicle management, and other areas, so
as to regulate employees’ environmental protection
behavior in daily operations. The promotion and
implementation of the green office system have
greatly enhanced the awareness of all employees in
saving energy and reducing consumption, playing a
significant role in strengthening the management of
water and electricity consumption, reducing waste,
effectively reducing energy consumption, guiding
all employees to form the habit of saving resources
and protecting environment and promoting the
sustainable development of the Group.

In addition, the Group has a GB/T24001-2016
ISO14001:2015 certified environmental management
system, which affirms the Group’s achievements in
environmental management. Going forward, the
Group will work to further develop and optimize
the environmental management system.
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Carbon emissions and environmental
protection

The Group paid special attention to low
carbon emission and environmental protection,
actively responded to the country’s energy
saving and emission reduction initiatives
The Group’s carbon emission was mainly
generated by the use of electricity and
natural gas in projects under its management
and automobile fuel consumption, with
an annual volume of 475.59 tonnes. The
Group integrates energy conservation and
consumption reduction measures into interna
management and encourages employees to
reduce carbon emissions in various ways. With
regard to company-financed vehicles, their
use is controlled and managed in a unified
manner by the Integrated Management
Office. Employees are encouraged to make
contribution to environmental protection
by using public transportation. The Group
advocates for a paperless office and
encourages the use of recycled paper and
double-sided printing. In these ways, the
Group strives to reduce carbon emissions by
reducing paper use. Please refer to the “Use
of Resources” section below for information
regarding the Group'’s electricity consumption.
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BE B 2R Source of emissions 20214
2021
WE—EHEEHEME_S1  Scope 1: Direct emissions 374.25 1,023.87
REE) (tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent)
#E—:FEEHEMRME=SF1  Scope 2: Indirect emissions 101.34 158,299.99
e &) (tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent)
BEREYENEF (=41 greenhouse gas emissions 475.59 159,253.86
mEE) (tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent)
EREEM_atiREE Intensity (tonnes/operating 0.24 0.11
ARBBEETEZERAN) income of RMB1,000,000)
i1 ERAEENEBBNE  HEETIEAR Note 1: Given the Group’s business attributes, which

2

iF3

EWRRRERTERR » 20226 K%
HENBRBEREBSEEARIGMH -

HEATREHBBRETBRERSG
5t 4 220200 M 884 + GHG Protocol »
(IPCC, 2014 : AR # 12014 : i & &
£ BAEEREZLENEZEESER
KA EREE—TEME - F T4
MEZTITHRAREERBEREE
FEREER(ETT - 20114F57) M4
BHRATEFM (BRGTRERR
2010) st B AT1S °

MEEEREERBEFREAR LR
BRFERMLELZ ESQNEM
202F R RS EMFH A B
MEF)F2012F B & EHFY
CO2HEM A FRTEFTE
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Note 2:

Note 3:

have a limited impact on energy use on managed
projects, the 2022 environmental scope data only
includes the Group’s office premises.

The calculation of direct greenhouse gas emissions
is based on Appendix 4 to the China Energy
Statistical Yearbook 2020, GHG Protocol, IPCC,
2014: Climate Change 2014: Comprehensive
Report, Report of the First Working Group, the
Second Working Group and the Third Working
Group of the Fifth Assessment Report of the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change,
Guidelines for the Compilation of Provincial
Greenhouse Gas Inventories (Trial, May 2011) and
Energy Statistics Manual (Department of Energy,
National Bureau of Statistics, 2010).

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions are calculated
based on the average carbon dioxide emission
factor of China’s regional power grids in 2012 in
the “Average Carbon Dioxide Emission Factors of
China’s Regional Power Grids in 2011 and 2012"
issued by the National Development and Reform
Commission of the People’s Republic of China.
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BE R BERR YD Exhaust Emissions 20224 20214

2022 2021
REW(BL: T5) Nitrogen oxide (unit: kg) 136.64 735.70
ey (B TR) Sulfur oxide (unit: kg) 2.51 61.44
BRI (BN Fe) Granulates (unit: kg) 10.06 90.62

4 MEERT A 0 2022 B9 BE R HE B & iR
REESBERAREMELR -

NFE L E FEFME

AEBBEEBT(PEARKNE
B 68 B )5 R R | oa) MCAE &
D BHEER ST R)FERE
BHBEEVMETHIRERE - R
DTER-BE-—EMBEINHML
CRETIF BETHERA  h% -
ER HEHEBEFLTIENAF
28 - AFZTIBARSENR
D ARETEDIRERST - BE -
ER HeEBENaEETaR
LRBEEER R #BE EE-
AR DEAANSER  AAFER
MREE BAMBEEEEN

Note 4: As mentioned in Note 1, the 2022 emissions
data includes only the Group's office.

Garbage classification

The Group strictly abides by the laws and
regulations such as the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste of the People’s Republic of China and
the Implementation Plan for the Domestic
Waste Classification System to implement
classified management of waste. Garbage
classification is essential for social governance
and relies on the cooperation and participation
of the government, enterprises, residents,
social organizations and other sectors. The
government, enterprises, residents, social
organizations and other stakeholders are able
to promote their self and mutual regulation,
service, education and supervision through
cooperating and participating in garbage
classification. Contentment, happiness and
sense of security of people lie in the efforts
made by all sectors in garbage classification.
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As domestic garbage classification has
far-reaching significant for environmental
protection, it is essential to encourage the
extensive participation and action of the
population. The Group’s practice should be
changed from producing garbage to classifying
garbage while property owners should assume
their responsibilities in garbage management.
Driven by policy guidance and internal factors,
the Group has adopted a number of measures
to classify garbage at its source, in an effort
to instill in people the concept of garbage
classification. During the year, the Group
further enhanced property owners’ awareness
on domestic garbage, classification rate and
disposal accuracy through voluntary services,
regular seminars, disposal guidance, regulatory
management, and other measures.

In 2022, 10 of the Group's service centers
received awards related to “waste separation”.
In addition to daily domestic garbage
classification, the Group has also standardized
the treatment of waste and domestic sewage
resulting from home maintenance. For
maintenance waste generated in projects
under the Group’s management, the property
service center first places the waste in special
warehouses on a temporary basis. They
will then be collected and disposed of by
the recovery units certified by the relevant
qualification authority after the disposal
scheme is approved. The Group verifies the
qualification of the recovery units on an
annual basis. With regards to domestic sewage
discharge, the Group strictly complies with
the relevant provisions of the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, so as to eliminate any non-compliant
discharge that may have a negative impact on
the environment.
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In terms of the Group’s business, during
the reporting year, the Group did not have
any non-compliance matters with laws and
regulations that have a material impact on
the Group in terms of air and greenhouse
gas emissions, pollutant discharge to water
and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes.

The Group regards resource conservation
as a vital part of its development strategy
and operational approach and is committed
to constantly monitoring and improving the
Group's environmental protection performance.
The resources used by the Group mainly
include electricity, natural gas, gasoline and
water. Among which, electricity and water are
the main resources used and consumed by us.

Smart renovations for energy
conservation

The Group’s carbon emissions are mainly
caused by electricity consumption. In
the reporting year, the Group consumed
electricity of 174,428.00 KWh in total. In
order to reduce energy consumption and
conduct reasonable planning and efficient
management of electricity consumption, the
Group formulated the Binjiang Property Green
Office Management System, which regulates
the temperature of air conditioners at the entry
and exit, and implements “lights off when
people leave and machine stop” for power
facilities in the office. In addition, the Group
also encourages employees to use natural
lighting and ventilation as much as possible to
reduce the use of electrical appliances.

BIRGEEARAR FERME 2022

137



RiE B RERHKE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2022% 20214

2022 2021

KAR(LFK) Natural Gas (cubic meters) = 331,433.04
Aom (B Gasoline (0'000 litres) 17.07 13.58
WNEBN(TRE) Outsourced power (kWh) 174,428.00  224,990,446.21

GatREM(TRLE)

Comprehensive energy consumption
(kWh)

1,666,164.09  229,764,412.28

Comprehensive energy consumption

EH%/AE% T “%Hﬂl?\) per thousand yuan of revenue (kWh/
operating income of RMB1,000

Yuan)

A5 EE1ATIL - 20224 MY RE TR (F B EUE
RARBREEERAH - XEAX
E@WABAES TIEDR2021
FRETREHRE 2020485 H
MABMAGFERARRERE -

6 BHARERERARBTEAREMNEA
B RE AR A B R AT E 8 A (GB/
T2589-2020)) F W) 2 E A F 5t & A1

B -

ZELE BRAK
$§%§L‘M§ﬁﬁﬁﬂz1 KEE  EE
DEKHERIEE EERMK - fK:
FERBKBRETEBE BAE
B R &K K E R 8 R & & 4K
EBRMNEAEER  BEHRARSHKE
INEE R EI AR R 0 2022F F - K
EBETEBEERBPLESERIE

KEUNEJEBRE -

AN A P S
AEEBE HBEE AREA
EHRAWR L BAEE - BIEA
THEBBER S LENE 25
e EERE=EAR
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0.84 164.24

Note 5. As mentioned in Note 1, the energy usage
statistics for 2022 include only the Group's office.
Also, as the Group's office in the office building
has been renovated with facilities in late 2021,
there will be no natural gas consumption in the
Group's office in 2022.

Note 6: Comprehensive energy consumption is calculated
based on the conversion factors in the General
Principles for Calculation of Comprehensive Energy
Consumption (GB/T2589-2020), the national
standard of the People’s Republic of China.

Multiple measures for water recycling
The Group mainly uses municipal water,
and uses river water and reclaimed water
in some qualified projects, and has no
problem in accessing to water resources, but
the Group is fully aware of the shortage of
freshwater resources and importance of water
conservation and actively plan and construct
urban water-efficient communities. In 2022,
service centers under the Group were awarded
the provincial honorary commendation of
“Water-efficient Communities”.

When carrying out daily operation and
maintenance of the community environment,
the Group reasonably reduces the frequency
of water refreshing, reduce labor intensity
and improve work efficiency through scientific
maintenance, and with the assistance of robots
and other methods, to reach the triple goals of
achieving environmental, social and economic
benefits.



RIR - eERERHE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

20225 20214
2022 2021
FKE(GZLHK) Water consumption (cubic meters) 1,336  2,378,039.46
RKEE Water consumption density cubic
(UAX/AREBET meters/operating income of
EEWAN) RMB1,000,000) 0.67 1.70
77 WEFRT I - 2022F K E R Note 7:  As mentioned in Note 1, the 2022 water
BRESER QG - consumption statistics include only the Group's
office.

REFELNRREZREEMS - In terms of managing environmental targets
AEEBRBEEHKEHD KRE for its own operations, the Group aims to
IR A WD I5 P AR ER R K E TR A reduce water and energy use (and therefore
BERE ACGEMB AL ERMNRZER emissions and greenhouse gas emissions) in its
BEMNER  ERFHENR offices by promoting a green office, which is
REBBESHKAES - BERK also beneficial to its operational cost control.
SEWTHB R RIGMMAEKRE - In terms of mobile energy use, as the Group's
BEEBETEHERMBERE S business expands, the demand for business
R - WEE IR IR A & HEBE travel is likely to grow and it is difficult to set
MEEENERNZEZRAEAR s aggregate targets at this stage, but the Group
BReEREAmMS  BEAEEZE is considering setting intensity targets.
BHENE AR - A HTHERARE

R BERRBERETEER

F CEBEREBEEERERETER

REBFEPNIRZEEEEEMS - For the management of environmental
HRASEENEENEEBEEHRELE objectives in business impact, as the number
ERFEE RS BEBHEANABYE of property projects under the Group's
2 ERITRBENEEMER management is growing rapidly and the types
BHRIEFTRKUARMEBEEKTE - 88 of projects are becoming more diversified,
FXRFURBRERBEBEN - KER considering the maintenance needs of
FAZERR BERAEER different types of property projects under
g RFEASE  KERMER management and the large differences in
Mwm BN ENMBEYHES T material consumption level, energy consumption
EHRBEER  BRERBAEM level, greenhouse gas emissions and water use,
T OAKERERAERNMERE it is difficult for the Group to set quantitative
Az EATERBEENER emission reduction targets in terms of energy
T FE K BE FE W TR AR = R 8 BE use efficiency, water use efficiency, emissions
W BAEBLRET  BEHEENR and waste at this stage. However, from a
RERBOEBEZERE TR long-term perspective, the Group insists on
AEwsMNMEEBRERENRLZ improving the efficiency of resource and
TEE W FERAEFTEFERER energy use, reducing energy consumption
FHEEMDT TR EERR LR - without compromising service quality to
KEBRMMEBFEBRL - ANERK reduce greenhouse gas emissions, reducing
L FTEGEEHHER - the probability of maintenance, extending

service life and reducing the severity through
optimizing design, scientific investigation and
timely response, and are gradually accumulating
and analyzing the energy, water and material
consumption of different property types
by adopting digital means, to formulate
quantitative targets in the above aspects in the
future.
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System empowering green office

In 2022, the Group stepped up the information
system construction, so that sign-in, contracting
and administrative approval processes can all be
performed electronically.

As the Group’s business consists of property
management, the Group business activities
does not involve significant consumption of
natural resources nor a significant impact
on the environment. However, the Group
is well aware of the possible environmental
impact of day-to-day business operations.
The Group takes its own actions to mitigate
climate change, protect biodiversity, prevent
soil and water resources from being polluted,
and maintain a sound and sustainable
ecological environment with practical actions.
The Group actively conveys environmental
protection awareness to owners, employees
and other stakeholders. By carrying out
environmental protection publicity activities
across the country, The Group strives to convey
environmental protection culture such as
protecting plants, reusing recyclable resources,
and garbage classification in the community,
and jointly build a good environment in the
community.

The Group adheres to the concept of saving
energy, building beautiful community, and
protecting environment, integrates the concept
of protecting environment into community
construction, plans and improves the greening
and garden area of the community, and
creates a green and environmentally friendly
community, while providing owners and
employees with comfortable living and working
place.
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The Group will continue strengthening
its environmental management system to
ensure its compliance with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations and make
contributions to the common environmental
protection cause of mankind.

Global warming, sea level rise and abnormal
weather intermittently affect people’s work
and life and have become main concerns of
the society. Enterprises face tough challenges
of addressing climate changes. With reference
to the framework set out in the TCFD (Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures),
the Group has assessed risks and opportunities
arising from climate changes and formulated
strategies for managing risks and identifying
and managing indicators and objectives.

Climate-related risks include risks in relation to
the transition to a low-carbon economy (the
“Transition Risks”) and risks in relation to
the physical impact of climate changes (the
“Physical Risks"”). Transition Risks include
policy and legal risks, technical risks, market
risks, reputational risks while Physical Risks
include acute risks (such as typhoons, floods
and other extreme weather conditions) and
chronic risks (persistent high temperatures
and other changes in climate pattern). In order
to address climate changes, in addition to
preventing risks, the Group will also put great
efforts in identifying opportunities, including
resource efficiency, energy sources, products
and services, markets and resilience.
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The Board is responsible for supervising
environmental and social issues of the Group,
including risk assessment, task prioritization
and risk management. The Board is also
responsible for identifying and analyzing the
impact of climate changes on the Group's
business activities with relevant departments,
so as to fully manage climate-related risks and
grasp opportunities.

For the acute Physical Risks, as the Group is
mainly engaged in the provision of property
management services, typhoons, rainstorms,
high temperature and other extreme weather
conditions may affect the projects under the
Group’s management in different extent and
may pose more challenges to the Group’s
property management.

The Group pays close attention to climate
change and has taken a series of climate-related
risk prevention measures in its daily operations.

In 2022, in response to the increase in
typhoons and rainstorms in summer, the
Group developed the Flood Control Emergency
Plan, which has made clear arrangements
for the prevention before, during and after
the occurrence of extreme weather such as
thunderstorms and typhoons, and requires
each service center to carry out extreme
weather prevention training and exercises.

Through continuous improvement of relevant
emergency plans and active implementation
of work arrangements, the Group has formed
standard operating procedures internally to
respond to the impact of extreme weather
quickly and adequately.
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In terms of chronic Physical Risks, due to the
impact of global warming, on the one hand,
the operating costs of the property projects
under management of the Group may increase.
On the other hand, with the increasing calls for
energy conservation and emission reduction
in the whole society, the Group foresees that
this will prompt us to continuously integrate
more green and low-carbon development
concepts and measures into the Group’s daily
operating management. The Group will reduce
the risk of rising maintenance costs brought
about by climate change through reasonable
arrangements for greening and maintenance
and strengthening outdoor pipe network
maintenance.

The Group put much emphasis on energy
conservation and emission reduction in its
daily business operations, adopts effective
standardized management measures and
supervision mechanisms to effectively reduce
energy consumption, fully respond to chronic
Physical Risks, and expects to reduce the
probability and impact of risks.

In terms of Transition Risks, the Group will
continue to pay attention to the impact of
climate change on the Group’s business,
fully meet the requirement s of policies,
and further improve strategy formulation,
risk management, indicator and target
identification and management, and work with
all sectors of society to address climate change
and achieve common sustainable development.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

As a property service provider, the Group has been
providing long term and stable job vacancies to
the society which satisfies massive employment
demands and maintains good relationship with its
employees. In addition, as administrative division
does not extend to the scope of communities,
community properties bear the responsibility of
security maintenance. With an aim to achieve
safety, stability, harmony and happiness within the
community, the Group is committed to maintaining
social stability.

The Group has formulated a standardized
recruitment process that ensures that
employees will be provided reasonable
remuneration, a non-discriminatory working
atmosphere, fair and just promotion
opportunities, and various training
opportunities that meet their needs for
diversified development. This process
also ensures that employees will be given
recognition and incentives based on their
performance. When the Group helps its
employees with their career development, it
is also laying a solid foundation for the future
development of the enterprise.

Fair and equal talent recruitment

The Group adheres to the recruitment principle
of fair competition and conducts open
selections in an orderly manner. The Group
recruits employees through various channels
such as labor market fairs, online recruitment,
campus recruitment, and others. The Group
actively promotes cooperation between
schools and enterprises, implement trainee
management plans, give outstanding students
internship opportunities, and provide retention
opportunities for those with outstanding
performance.
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Campus recruitment: “Eyas Program,
promising future

“Eyas Program” is a university students
growth program by the Group and an
important part of talent reserve strategy
of the Group. The Group divided campus
recruitment positions into two categories,
“project management” and “professional
management”, based on business categories
and conducted extensive recruitment on
students majoring in property management,
engineering and technology, greening and
gardening, physical education and human
resources.

Online live streaming: In 2022, the Group's
live broadcast for online recruitment of
management trainees went live, had online
recruitment promotion via live broadcast
20 times, with 1,300 viewed, and about
500 followed the Group’s account.

Offline seminars: In 2022, the Group
organized 23 job fairs, among which 5
on-site seminars covering Jiangxi and
Hangzhou, 18 online and on-site recruitments
covering Jiangxi, Hunan and Guizhou, and
226 participated in these activities.

BTRBEEAR AR FERE 2022
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University-enterprise cooperation:
The Group recruits interns in a timely
manner, arrange formal pre-employment
training and retention assessment for
interns for relevant posts, clarify the
selection and retention standards of
interns, improve the entry standards
of interns, and establish cooperative
relationship with relevant colleges and
universities to meet the needs of rapid
business development and talent reserve
of the Group. In 2022, the Group
recruited a total of 101 interns.

Social recruitment: The Group
recruits outstanding talents in the
market, continues to input advanced
technology or management concepts
into the Group to enhance the overall
competitiveness of its talents.

Internal recommendation: The
Group encourages all employees
of the Group to participate in
recruitment and attract more
outstanding talents for the Group.
In 2022, the number of projects
under the Group’s management
increased from 196 to 286, and
its demand for employees increase
significantly, which offers great
employment opportunities to
the society. As of the end of the
Reporting Period, the Group had a
total of 10,336 employees (2021:
7,225).
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The Group has a planned and clear promotion
path for employees. The Group has a
prioritized promotion mechanism for internal
personnel under the same conditions to
provide guarantee for the development of
employees within the Group. During the
reporting year, a total of 50 mid-level staff
members (2021: 96) were promoted within
the Group, accounting for 56% of the total
number of new mid-level staff members (2020:
75%). The Group provides equal promotion
opportunities for junior staff in various
divisions to encourage them to grow and
surpass themselves, and to contribute more to
the development of the Group.

The Group strives to make its remuneration
in line with prevailing industry rate. For the
aspects in which the Group lags behind other
enterprises, the Group will strive to improve to
the average level to increase the attraction for
talents for the Group. In the future, the Group
will further specify its position requirements
to recruit suitable staff and provide on-the-job
trainings to reduce turnover rate of the coming
year.

In the process of managing human resource,
the Group formulates standard working-hour
systems in strict accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Labor Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China. The Group
provides reasonable overtime pay and subsidies
for overtime hours. The Group follows the
regulations on statutory holidays and arrange
employees to take vacations. For employees
who must remain on duty, such as guards,
cleaners and other special positions, the
Group provides rest days or overtime payment.
When an employee resigns, the Group pays
compensation according to the Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China, as
well as certain humanitarian compensation
according to the actual situation. These
measures effectively protect the rights and
interests of employees.

STRBEEARAT EERE 2022
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B0 K - AEBEIMAR The proportion of the Group’s employees (all
PBREIEXABERLET: are full-time employees) at the end of 2022
listed below:
2022F 1h t
Proportion in
2022
% Bl S 51.74%
Gender Male 51.74%
% 48.26%
Female 48.26%
FiR 205R AR 1.13%
Age Under 20 1.13%
20-40%% 57.44%
20-40 57.44%
405% A £ 41.43%
Above 40 41.43%
B & ET@mET 86.42%
Seniority levels Ordinary staff 86.42%
MRERANB 10.41%
Junior managerial staff 10.41%
REEBEEAB 3.08%
Middle managerial staff 3.08%
BRERE 0.10%
Senior managerial staff 0.10%
RV W] HEAER 10.24%
Geographical distribution Maintenance staff 10.24%
ERAR 25.46%
Customer service Staff 25.46%
®FF 26.64%
Security staff 26.64%
R~ #1E 21.52%
Cleaning &greening staff 21.52%
EEANE 13.58%
Management staff 13.58%
H it 2.55%
Others 2.55%
i 15 7 e T 96.70%
Region Zhejiang 96.70%
tif 1.36%
Shanghai 1.36%
L ER 0.71%
Jiangsu 0.71%
PN 0.67%
Jiangxi 0.67%
isara) 0.31%
Hainan 0.31%
el 0.25%
Shenzhen 0.25%
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Employee benefits

The Group considers its employees to be its
most important asset and strives to give them
maximum and meticulous care. The Group
tries to make it so that they feel they are part
of a warm family when they are working in
the Group. According to the specific needs of
its employees, the Group provides significant
benefits for them in various ways. The Group
cares about what its employees think, and
the Group is eager to meet their needs. The
Group provides them with the following
benefits: lunch allowance, accommodation,
festival gifts, physical examinations, heatstroke
prevention, targeted financial relief and
employee insurance. In 2022, the Group also
bought employer liability insurance for retired
employees who have been re-hired by the
Group in order to provide protection for their
health and safety.

The Group reviewed the above welfare system
and employee needs on a regular basis and
ensured multiple measures and policies have
been applied. These measures allowed the
employees to feel the care and warmth of the
Group, and effectively alleviated the problem
of staff turnover in the property service
industry under current environment.

BIRGEBERAR FEHRSE 2022
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During the reporting year, the turnover rates
are as follows. As the Group is in the property
service industry, the main lost employees are
security personnel and cleaners and other
grassroots employees. In this regard, the
Group has taken measures such as adjustment
of standard wages for posts, reasonable
arrangement of employee shifts, and taken
a number of care and welfare measures for
employees, so that the relevant turnover rate is
lower than the average level in the industry.

RERARYS e% B

By geographical location
>4075 I Lt T LH =3
>80 Zhejiang Shanghai Jiangsu Jiangxi  Hainan

7}< 7 o

RERIE S

By gender
EER%ZE/ % g b4
Turnover rate/% Male Female
2022% 15.40  15.09
2022
201 16.48 18.46
2021

AEBESEERB TREMETE
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TRREZZETEHRERFMBE
R ETEHNRER WK
BF(PEARAMBEZ2EEE)
(REARAMBEE EHPEE)A
(RABMBEERMERRE)
ZHRBERER KRR IRMH
— e BEE- FENIIER

5 o

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

1139 29.61 0.19 0.36 0.26 -

13.59 33.68 0.47 0.49 0.30 -

The Group attaches great importance to the
health of employees and the safety of the
working environment. The Group has stipulated
control procedures for environmental safety
operations and occupational health and safety
operations in the enterprise management
manual. The Group strictly abides by relevant
laws and regulations such as the Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases, and
the Norms for the Management of Labor
Protective Articles for Employers, so as to
provide employees with a safe, healthy and
comfortable working environment.
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Protective gears

The Integrated Management department
purchases safety protection equipment
regularly, and the purchased products are
required to be designated with the product
safety qualification identification mark issued
by the national testing institution. The division
is not allowed to buy unqualified products.
Public protective equipment is kept in special
custody to ensure that each service center can
respond effectively and in a timely manner
in the event of an emergency. During the
reporting period, the Group’s investment in
production safety reached RMB436,400.

Occupational health system for
employees’ health

Physical health and personal safety are the
basic guarantees necessary for people to
pursue a better life. The Group adheres
to this people-oriented concept and
attaches importance to the health of its
employees. In addition to providing regular
physical examinations to employees, the
Comprehensive Management Division
establishes health records for all staff and
workers, and cooperates with other divisions
to identify, prevent and treat diseases in
accordance with the Law on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases of the
People’s Republic of China, so as to ensure
early diagnosis and treatment of any potential
diseases.

The construction of the Group’s occupational
health and safety management system has
achieved its initial results, and the system has
obtained GB/T45001-2020 and 1SO45001:2018
certification.
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202%F - AEBEABIARA LT
fE 2R 3 22 3B E HUE A & T (20214 ¢
TA 20205 - 1A) 20225 Z K T
BERAT:

In 2022, the Group recorded 1 death caused
by traffic accident during the commute (2021:
1 person, 2020: 1 person), and the detail of
work injury as below:

ERITHBAREL:A)

Number of work-related

injuries up to the grade

(unit: number)
ERTHBEAIIEAH

RE-—FTMBEEXAEZEEE -

ReBIZ2E# REAEH
HEMBIAaZE AEETF

HAEBEIEIXZT2HA 2022
FOoAEBEILZE2HAEHEIRE
B K iE13,067/\F - 2B A A
10,949A - Eff - BEMBE I Xtk
Bl 5267.35% * LM B T2 A
32.65% ' BHIBERWMT ¢

Lost days due to work injury
up to the grade

2022%F 20214F
2022 2021

6 2

418 187

In order to further strengthen the safety
management of the Group, raise the safety
awareness of employees, and ensure the safety
of the Group's property and employees’ lives,
the Group organizes employees to receive
safety training on a regular basis. In 2022,
the Group’s employees had attended safety
training for a total of 13,067 hours, with a
total of 10,949 participants. 67.35% male
employees and 32.65% female employees had
at tended the safety education and training.
The specific data is as follows:

20225 20015
2022 2021

ABFIRR AR B R
gl 8 (B R 2iAE (BB
Average Average
Safety education and training training time training time
ZEHEHEY category Participants  (unit: hours) Participants (unit: hours)
RBE2E Traffic Safety Training 3,028 1 4,831 1
Z2UE Safety education 3,745 1.5 114 15
B % 2E Fire Safety Training 4,011 1.5 78 1.5
Hf % 2555 Other types of safety training 70 1 463 1
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Modern enterprises compete in terms of
talents. As the advancement of knowledge
and technology accelerate, enterprises
are required to innovate continuously and
introduce new technologies and philosophy
through staff training. Staff training enhances
the understanding of enterprise decision
and executive ability of staff and enables
the Group’s staff to familiarize with its
management philosophy and advanced
management approach. The advancement
of the Group's staff strengthens the Group’s
competitiveness continuously.

On the basis of the Operation Guidelines
for New Employee Induction Training, the
Development Plan and Operation Guidelines
for the Eyas Plan, and the Management
Measures for the Recruitment, Training and
Retention of Interns issued by the Group in
2021, the Group issued the Operating Rules
on Star Housekeeper Rating (2022) and the
Mentorship Management System (2022
version) in 2022. It is committed to regulating
staff training and improving the staff training
system, formulating an exclusive development
path for each employee, stimulating the
potential of employees, and supporting their
development, so as to further facilitates the
talent development efforts and helps the
Group retain outstanding talents and achieve
long-term development.

BIRGEBERAR FEHRSE 2022
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Talent echelon for career development
The Group anticipates talent demand based
on its business development and identifies
external engagement needs based on the
status of human resources. In 2022, the Group
completed a well-established chain for training
talents, which include the Set Sail Scheme
designed for training new joiners, the Voyager
Scheme designed for training professionals,
and the Navigator Scheme designed for
training core staff members. The Group
continued to perform scientific training for
and evaluation on staff at different stages and
posts based on their capabilities, personalities
and career development needs to select talents
to form a talent echelon and establish a sound
talent development mechanism.

—  Set Sail Scheme

For the newly recruited grass-root s
employees such as butlers, engineering
personnel, security personnel and
cleaners, the Group provides them with
general courses and training materials
required for specific posts in accordance
with the Operation Guidelines for New
Employee Pre-job Training:

° general courses: corporate culture,
human resources system, and
etiquette;

o training materials required for
specific posts: post introduction,
post safety knowledge.

In order to help new employees quickly
master the skills required for posts, their
instructors will guide them according
to the Task List. The project managers
and the instructors will jointly check and
review whether the new employees have
mastered the required skills according
to the Appraisal Form for Employees in
Performing Tasks.
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— Navigator Scheme

Eagle Plan

For new management personnel,
the Group designs training programs
based on their competency models,
provide systematic training as well
as asking them to put what they
have learned into practice, so as
to continue to build a talent pool.
The Group conducts offline training
for management personnel, and
let them learn independently on
the online plat form, and make
task list for them according to
job requirements to improve their
business capability and management
capability.

Tercel Plan

For new project managers,
according to the needs of the
Group's strategic development
and the establishment of a talent
echelon, the Group focuses its
training on three aspects: changing
cognition, teamwork, and ability
improvement. The Group has
developed 12 targeted training
courses, and formulated diversified
and long-term training programs
with mentor providing guidance and
these programs help the Company
to develop talents from within.

BTIRGREBRAR FERE 2022
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— Eyas Plan

The Group is well aware that the
cultivation of talents recruited from
universities is of great significance to
the improvement of business quality
and project management. Therefore,
the Group continues to improve the
management trainee projects system and
optimize related processes. The Plan can
be highlighted as below:

1. Through standard and procedural
training under a half-year
mentorship program, a talent
echelon has been built to provide
a pool of talents for the company’s
future development.

2. Theories are put into practice
under mentors’ guidance for
comprehensive development of
management trainees: mentors train
management trainees in six areas
of online self-study, on-the-job
practice, weekly journal, interview,
reading and work reporting over
half a year.

In 2022, there were a total of 11 training sessions for
management trainees, 76% of participants passed the
training test and 85% were retained, 19% higher than
the retaining rate recorded in 2021.
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development

Offline training

In order to effectively help employees
to enrich their professional skills,
expand their professional abilities, and
cultivate high-level professional ethics
and behaviours, the Group has launched
various types of offline training programs
for talents at different levels, and
organized professional training lecturers
to give lectures. The relevant departments
of the Group conducts qualification
assessment on lecturers before the

training courses. After the lecture, the
trainees will rate on the quality of the
training courses to ensure their quality
and effectiveness.

202F - AEBEREEHET
B R T

In 2022, the offline training provided by
the Group is as follows:

20225 2015
2022 2021

FHER =R

BAAR (B E) BAINR (BN

Number of Training hours Number of  Training hours

EHEE Training programs participants  (unit: hours) participants (unit: hours)

ARSI Orientation training 12,887 12,887 4,546 4717

EESEAT Vocational skills training 21,926 202,071 9,749 49,449
XA Professional qualification

training 449 19,552 746 11,274

BREE Learning from peers 386 2,388 208 2,014

AR Legal training 240 360 74 222

@i Total 35,888 237,258 15323 67,676

EITIREEERBR AT FEERE 2022 157
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Online training

In 2022, in order to further create a
learning atmosphere in the Group and
set up the development path for talents,
the Group has continuously updated the
“Binjiang Academy”, an online training
platform, which includes standardized
courseware, learning results tracking and
learning maps, etc.,, so that employees
can learn by themselves.

During the Reporting Period, training
courses for induction training, star
housekeepers, supervisors and project
managers were made available on
the platform, covering 83 courses on
engineering, landscaping and pre-sale
customer service etiquette under the
professional lines of business and
company-level standard courses. In 2022,
through the training platform, the Group
arranged 253 online examinations, issued
31 learning maps, assigned 210 learning
tasks, conducted 22 live broadcast and
a total of 4,715 valid sign-ins were
recorded. Through the introduction of
the online learning platform, the Group
has effectively improved the efficiency
of employee training and operations of
the Group, and further met the Group’s
talent training needs in the process of
rapid development.
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The proportion of training hours by
gender and level is shown in the table
below:

WNEHR BHRHELE THRIBR WNEHR HHAHE FHRIBR
(A) Batt (1) (A) AGBA (1)
Percentage Percentage
of the of the
corresponding corresponding
number at the Average number at the Average
End of 2022 end of the training hours  End of 2021 end of the training hours
(number) period (hours) (number) period (hours)
RISBMET 6,305 100% 1972 3725 100% 1187
Male trainee
Xillzit 8T 4,031 100% 3.2 3,500 100% 6.70
Female trainee
Trained non-management 7,545 100% 26.21 6,354 100% 937
KHl%ERE
Trained management 2,791 100% 203 871 100% 14.20

XIERE
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When a training is completed, the Group
conducts a training evaluation on the
training arrangement, course content and
the lecturer. According to the Group’s
evaluation, the average satisfaction
rating of management trainees on the
course content was 4.94 out of 5 and the
average satisfaction rating on the lecturer
was also 4.94 out of 5. The average
satisfaction rating of project managers
on the overall arrangement is 4.95 out
of 5 and the average satisfaction rating
on the course content is 4.96 out of 5.
Going forward, the Group will further
enhance the coverage and effectiveness
of its training, especially the Training
Department’s core capability to ensure
the continued development of talents
and positive corporate culture, so that
employees and the Group can grow and
succeed together.

BIRGEBERAR FEHRSE 2022
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Legal compliance and rights protection
In strict accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations of the People’s Republic of
China, such as the Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Social
Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Group protects the lawful rights
and interests of their employees. The Group
and its subsidiaries pay salaries on time
without any arrears and pay social insurance
premiums and housing fund for employees.
As of the end of the Reporting Period, the
Group's social insurance and housing fund fully
covered all employees except for those who
have retired but were recruited again by the
Group or its subsidiaries.

The Group attaches great importance to the
communication among employees, care much
about them, and creates an equal, respectful
and harmonious working environment for
them. The Group maintains an atmosphere
of harmony and common progress within
the Group, listen carefully to employees’
valuable opinions and make improvements
according to the opinions, and continuously
improve employees’ sense of belonging and
satisfaction.

In 2022, the Group conducted a satisfaction
survey on front-line employees, junior and
middle management. The results indicated
by the survey from the three perspectives
of team management satisfaction, personal
engagement and identification with the
company were satisfactory, and the Group
listened to employees’ feedback and
suggestions through various channels.
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In the future, the Group will continue to
broaden the communication channels for
employees, improve the establishment of
the employee rights protection system, and
continue to pay attention to the needs and
feedback of employees in work and life.

Prohibition of forced labor and child
labor

Young children represent the future of the
country, and their healthy growth must be
protected in all walks of life throughout the
country. In accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China, such as the Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Protection of Minors
and the Provisions on the Prohibition of Child
Labor, the Group and its subsidiaries explicitly
prohibit the employment of persons under
the age of 18 and conduct strict examinations
in the recruitment process so as avoid the
employment of underage individuals. The
human resources department of the Group
conducts random checks on the employment
situation from time to time. If child labor is
found, the relevant internal personnel will
be held accountable and reported to the
regulatory authorities.

The Group fully respects the freedom of its
employees and does not conduct any improper
activities, such as withholding their valid
certificates, collecting deposits, engaging in
forced labor or defaulting on remuneration
during the period of employment. The
Group has also set up an internal supervision
mechanism to ensure that no breaching
behavior will occur.

During the reporting period, the Group has
no underage employment or forced labour
occurred.

BTRBEEARAR FERSE 2022
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The Group strictly controls the selection
of suppliers for material procurement and
service outsourcing, and its purchase control
procedures have clearly specified rules for
supplier selection, the procurement process,
and verification of purchased products and
suppliers’ services. At the same time, through
effective communication, the Group constantly
consolidates and expands its partnerships
with suppliers to stabilize supply channels and
ensure the supply quality.

Annual evaluations for the procurement
management

The Group’s Brand Operations Department
and Integrated Management Department are
responsible respectively for the procurement
of materials and outsourced services needed
by the Group for property service operations.
When selecting suppliers, the regional business
units must first report to the headquarter.
Then, the procurement assessment team,
which consists of the functional departments
of the headquarter and the regional business
units, evaluates, examines and verifies
the suppliers, and produces a Supplier
Investigation/Evaluation Form. After this Form
is approved by the general manager, the
suppliers in the form will be included in the
List of Qualified Suppliers. In 2022, the Group
took new measures in evaluating its suppliers.
Through questionnaire and sampling, the
Group has been conducting annual evaluations
of certain product and service suppliers. The
evaluation perspectives, the proportion of
scores, and the items covered in the evaluation
are subject to further confirmation of relevant
functions. Standards for evaluation have also
been updated for fine tuning. The Group raises
targeted questions for specific products or
services to understand the actual utilization of
these products or services. For example, asking
whether a clothing material is easy to fade and
pill, or whether the maintenance personnel are
certified to work.



R - HERERBME
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

75 0008 Hf £ FE R ) B IR AN IR B 4R In order to strengthen supplier management
fl - REZESOFHHEHERET and procurement control, the Procurement
BT OHEEIERBHET Commission evaluates the suppliers each
ESHOHEITUER  BIBEAE year to eliminate any underperformed or
AHEEHEFSBHERSE - unqualified suppliers. The Commission also
EMREREXRBESE - ®E reqgularly updates the List of Qualified Suppliers
HA - AEBE3RBEEFIRILES to ensure procurement quality. During the
B TEZEERBMNELRRA  2F Reporting Period, the Group terminated the
AREETEHAZKIEESENH partnership with 3 suppliers mainly due to
JER - BLE202F K AEBHE service quality and pricing factors, none of the
INFEEHEEMNAERESGE @ & suppliers are terminated due to environmental
2021 E R1005K 4 1132% ° and social factors. As at the end of 2022, a

total of 132 suppliers were included on the
Group's list of collective procurement, up by
32% compared to 100 suppliers as at the end
of 2021.

AEBEREEEIHIBEROT The distribution of the Group’s collecting
suppliers is as follows:

20224 20214F
B R Unit: Number 2022 2021
HTE N Within Zhejiang Province 126 95
AL N Outside Zhejiang Province 6 5

ETRGEEARAT FEERE 2022 163
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Multiple considerations and green
procurement

The Group has established a multi-dimensioned
assessment system for its suppliers. The
assessment team, headed by the headquarter
of the Group, consists of over 30 members,
including financial personnel, regional staff,
vice president and president. The number
of the assessment team members may vary
depending on the business type. Assessment
staff varies based on different types of
business including new cleaning outsourcing
and service outsourcing, and will be more
specified and professional. Each service center
corresponds to an outsourcing supplier and
procurement proposals will be optimized
based on regions. Outsourcing suppliers will
be provided training from both parties, i.e.,
training offered by the supplier itself and
training offered by the Group. At the same
time, the Group will purchase insurance for the
personnel sent by suppliers. In addition, the
Group conducts inspections that last for one
to two months on the safety of all tools of all
businesses of the Group, including outsourcing
business, biannually. By engineering staff and
staff on secondment from other departments.

When selecting suppliers, the Group has
relevant system and practice for selecting
suppliers of environmentally friendly products
and requiring suppliers to provide the latest
model of energy saving and environmentally
friendly products for service centers to
select. The Group regularly updates the
procurement list to replace general products
with environmentally friendly products.
For example, the Group replaced the more
polluting lead-acid batteries with more
energy-efficient and greener lithium batteries.
The Group follows up product information
and sign contracts in a timely manner to
standardize service centers’ procurement.
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Responsible Procurement

The Group attaches importance to the
environmental and social governance
performance of suppliers. In the Supplier
Investigation/Evaluation Form, the quality,
environment and occupational health system
authentication of the supplier constitutes 20
points (out of 100 in total). The supplier’s
corporate image, market reputation and
social evaluation accounts for 10 points. The
Group pays special attention to suppliers that
have a significant impact on society and the
environment, and exerts influence on them in
the following ways:

— The Group informs them of its
management policy in relation to quality,
the environment, and occupational health
and safety.

— The Group informs them of its requirements
regarding the environment and occupational
health and safety.

— If necessary, the Group makes a written
request to the supplier, or specifies
its requirements for environmental
protection, and occupational health and
safety management in related contracts
and agreements.

STRBEEARAT EERE 2022
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First class quality as the industry
benchmark

Based on the enterprise principle of “owner
first, service first and quality first,” the Group’s
quality policy focuses on “sincerity, innovation,
safety, health and green development,” and
treats every customer with sincerity. The
Group uses scientific, reasonable and advanced
technology and concepts to provide excellent
services to customers. In strict accordance with
the requirements of the Property Management
Regulations issued by the State Council,
the Group has compiled the Operational
Instructions, Service Standards of Binjiang
Property Residential Quarters and Standardized
Management Manual of Binjiang Service,
which requires that every work process must
be improved with the ultimate goal of meeting
owners' needs.

Ensure star quality

The Group’s aspiration of property service
is to refine its service quality continuously.
After years of practical experience and
innovations, the Group has established three
major service models with “three major value
service systems” as its core content. These
are, the community services based on the
characteristics of the property, individualised
service based on householder needs and
property management service based on the
property’s use as an investment product.
The Group was selected as Top 100 Property
Service Companies for 2022 and Outstanding
Residential Property Service Provider in 2022.
The core value of the Group's service is to
provide owners with a safe, comfortable and
warm living or office environment, while
maximising the value of properties of owners.
For this reason, the Group earnestly controls
property service standards and quality, and
ceaselessly promote the construction and
development of the Quality Management
System, which is certified by the GB/T19001-
2016/1SO09001:2015 Authentication Standard.
The Group strives to offer reliable and
excellent services.



202F - EEEENTEETEZAE
EAppMEBEZEWNEF  BEFP
gl EREFEE TEXERED
BOHMETORNERBRL #5
BEEUUE WM TRESEE -

LHESHEH 2288

AEBRABEINRERZ 2
MEEENLE REEXINZ
EEMERBOELRTIHE - XK
BAEAEIRBEZEMNENR
BERTeREHE THHZ2E
BETEREE BRFAAELE
FEEHRANERIOO%ENR B
BIXTE2E BRAEXE DY
XERAI-ABREFE AKH
EEETEAEHEETATIE:

AEEHEHZ2ERTHERNRITE
BiaE DEEEINTE  EX
ERBPRLOEBEELAEBIBR
BE MR ITRESEED &
BRAMEZREES) AN &4
EEMEESEEREHLHIKASR
TR A E R A A AL
EHHBE > BREZEEANER
EHHED B ENEED A ETH
HARERMABRH I &
AREREEZBRELARHA
FBETMMERKL AKEEYHS
NRERBELEEBBERETHEM
BE MEBEMELE UWER
B S RN R - 20224
E AEETHZEEEESRHE
BEOHEDERLBPESTRIES

Sk
IN°

RIR - eERERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In 2022, the Group optimized and improved
the Binxiang Life application and the Binxiang
Shop applet, to make it easier for customers to
register/sign in, place an order for consultation,
and have a clearer picture of delivery progress
with the newly added real-time update of
shipping and delivery status.

Focusing on key areas to ensure safety
As protecting the safety of owners is the
fundamental duty of property service
providers, the Group place great importance
on the health and safety of owners. The Group
promises to provide safe accommodations
for owners, adhere to the safety inspection
system, and regularly carry out item-by-item
inspections for safety risks. The Group also
promises to ensure that all safety hazards are
rectified within the time limit in a manner that
“involves the owners, puts the government
in charge, and is coordinated by property
management.” During the reporting year, the
Group mainly focused on the following tasks
in each residential project:

The Group adopts the policy of “focusing
on fire prevention and managing fire safety
through fire prevention and fire-fighting” for
fire safety management, and requires each
service center to organize fire drills at least
once a year with the purpose of enhancing
the fire prevention awareness and emergency
response capacity of staff members and
residents. In addition, the overall Management
Department provided firefighting knowledge
and skills training to certain persons from
each service center and set up voluntary fire
brigades. The voluntary fire brigades are
required to put out any fires and evacuate
people before the arrival of the fire fighters,
so as to minimize personal casualties and
property loss. In order to eliminate fire
accidents caused by battery flammability, the
Group also checked battery motors placed
at upper floors and required that the battery
motors be moved to the ground floor. In 2022,
the Group won a number of top rankings in
district fire drill competitions.
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In addition, based on the high level of
alertness to large-scale public health incidents
and the dedication to community safety, the
Group's management quickly set up a special
leadership team to ensure that all measures
were fully implemented by anticipating
the development situation in advance and
coordinating staff arrangements and material
procurement. Property management staff
came up at that time and took prompt action
to protect community safety and provide
thoughtful services. The speed of emergency
response, professionalism in management, and
the ability to allocate personnel and supplies
have won wide recognition and praise from
homeowners and the local government.
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Latest policy to protect privacy

The Group believes that effective protection
and management of owners’ privacy is an
essential factor in the establishment of
long-term trust and friendly cooperation
between owners and the property service
provider. The Group strictly complies with
the Personal Information Protection Act and
other relevant laws and regulations relating
to personal data and privacy protection,
and make clear provisions in the Operation
Instructions. On the one hand, property
service personnel are required to sign a
“confidentiality agreement” when they
start to work for us to strictly keep the
owners’ information and related materials
confidential. The owner 's informational files
must be sealed and stored at the time when
the house is delivered. On the other hand,
the Group has formulated the Management
Regulations for the Information System,
Computers and Network. The Group also only
allows electronic informational materials to
be accessed by authorized users. Access to
the information must first be examined and
approved by the department head in order
to ensure that the network runs efficiently
and that electronic informational materials
are effectively protected. In 2022, the Group
installed the face recognition system in
24 residential projects. To better protect
the homeowners’ privacy, the Group has
retained the existing access control system
for homeowners to choose. By 2022, the face
recognition systems installed by the Group
have reached a cumulative coverage ratio of
12.63% residential projects.
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Listening to opinions for improvement
The Group’s success depends on the
satisfaction of householders. To uncover weak
points in its services, the Group makes every
effort to listen to the voices of householders
in order to increase their satisfaction and
improve the Group's service quality. The Group
per forms owner satisfaction assessments
with regard to property services in a variety of
ways and conduct owner satisfaction surveys
in several levels, namely a comprehensive
survey conducted by the Group at the end
of each year, an interim sample survey
conducted by the Company, a monthly
telephone sample survey and a quarterly
communication with owners’ committees.
Through the multidimensional survey data the
Group acquires, the Group performs overall
and specific assessments on the work quality
and achievements of each service center.
The Group regards each survey as a valuable
opportunity for communication to understand
the actual needs of owners. The Group makes
vertical comparison between results of annual
satisfaction surveys, so as to improve its
services and address the needs of owners.

In 2022, the Group launched a questionnaire
survey to owners (office buildings, residences)
on customer service, engineering maintenance
services, order maintenance services, cleaning
and greening services, park cultural activities,
and complaint management, according to
the statistical findings of home owners
satisfaction sampling survey, the respondents’
overall satisfaction score on the Group’s
service quality was 92.4, home owners were
relatively satisfied with the Group’s service
quality as shown by various data. Going
forward, the Group will serve homeowners
with commitment and enthusiasm and respond
proactively to their opinions and suggestions.
The Group will coordinate, communicate and
work with various units to improve service
quality and win more support, recognition and
trust from homeowners.
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Upholding integrity and constantly
guarding against corruption

Misconduct in commercial activities, such
as embezzlement, bribery, extortion,
money laundering, violating the enterprise’s
interests, violating the principle of fair trade
or damaging the enterprise’s reputation,
will seriously disrupt the Group’s normal
management and operations. The Group
therefore firmly opposes and expressly
prohibits these types of misconducts.

In consideration of the Law of the People’s
Republic of China against Unfair Competition,
the Group has put in place specific provisions
for anti-corruption control processes in its
operational instructions. The Group has
also set up a comprehensive and detailed
anti-corruption system. To enhance the
construction of a clean governance and
democratic super vision mechanism inside
the Group, the Group executes the system in
a comprehensive manner. The system has a
zero-tolerance policy, and the Group works
to ensure the system has no blind spots. The
anti-corruption system is based on macro
planning, the enterprise’s real circumstances,
temporary and permanent goals, and short
and long-term goals.

The Group also conducts anti-corruption and
anti-money laundering training for the member
of the Board and key management personnel,
make sure they know the consequences of
conflicts of interest and corruption and bribery,
and ensure that directors and employees are
familiar with and understand the policies and
procedures formulated by the Group to prevent
corruption and bribery, and understand the
price of corruption.
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Open reporting channel and improving
mechanism to prevent corruption

In August 2017, the Group established an
internal discipline supervision and inspection
team, and appointed the Wang Guoyi, the vice
president, as the team leader. The Group set
up a super vision and report bulletin boards
at the headquarter and service centers, and
provided contact phone numbers, mailboxes
and mailing addresses to ensure that any
unfair actions or disciplinary violations within
the Group can be effectively communicated
through open channels. At the same time,
the Group encourages reform and innovation
and has sought to enhance the supervision
and management of the enterprise’s assets by
establishing a restraint mechanism. The Group
also enhanced the corporate governance
structure to enable checks and balances.
The Group works to improve the enterprise
management personnel selection system, and
the Group has established a standardized
employment mechanism. In this way, the
Group can prevent instances of corruption
from the very start.

Reporting channel:
o Email of Anti-Corruption: fwb@hzbjwy.com

During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not receive any complaint or report regarding
anti-corruption.

The Group is committed to building a
harmonious and inclusive relationship between
the enterprise and communities. In daily
operational management, the Group takes into
consideration the community’s interests and
the needs of residents and actively organizes
various kinds of community activities. While
cultivating a sense of belonging for residents,
the Group also seeks to realize social corporate
benefits at a higher level.
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Pay attention to people’s livelihood and
revitalize the countryside

In order to adhere to the assistance
principle of “people’s livelihood first, mutual
benefit, win-win cooperation, and common
development”, the Group has adopted
measures such as allocating more resources
to impoverished villages, providing support
for projects, and establishing mechanisms,
to strengthen cooperation and exchanges
with impoverished villages and make the
comprehensive strength of villages to a new
level. During the Reporting Period, the Group
signed an Assistance Partnership Framework
Agreement with Yajiang County in Ganzi
Prefecture to capitalize resources advantages
of private enterprises in Hangzhou to assist
Yajiang County to upgrade the construction
of the rural area. The Binjiang shop signed a
strategic agreement with Qianjiang Channel to
jointly participate in the Common Prosperity
Action initiated by China Zheshang Bank to
sell agricultural products from 26 counties
in mountainous areas of Zhejiang, such as
rice dumplings, eggs, grapefruits to help
local farmers increase income, boost rural
revitalization, promote local economic
development and achieve the goal of common
prosperity. The Group received the 2022 China
Zheshang Bank Common Prosperity Action
Award for its participation. In addition, the
Group signed a partnership agreement with
Tianshun Eco-Agriculture, one of its suppliers,
to assist in marketing premium agricultural
and side-line products from Sichuan, such as
yak meat, highland barley biscuits, yak milk,
etc., in Zhejiang. The Group’s employees have
actively participated in assistance through
product marketing and effectively promoted
economic development by selling local
agricultural products.

In 2022, the Group carried out recycling
activities through which 4.03 tons of used
books and papers and 25.17 tons of clothes
were collected.
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Handyman services for homeowners

As China has entered an aging society,
property service providers need to care
more about the elderly and provide more
convenience for owners who have the elderly
to take care of. The Group has been providing
services for the benefit of the people, and has
carried out a number of popular activities with
high participation of senior owners.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has
carried out a total of 576 service activities
to benefit the people, covering more than
28,800 persons. In terms of home-based
care for the aged, the Group provides the
elderly with reassuring services and care.
The Group’s service centres provide various
handyman services to elderly residents in local
communities during its daily operation to find
solutions for home care of elderly residents.

Diversified community activities

Binjiang Service has followed the tradition of
holding cultural activities during anniversaries
or festivals, each service center organizes
unique cultural activities that meet the
homeowners’ needs, wishes and satisfaction
based on the Group’s central planning. In
addition to traditional outdoor movie shows
and other on-site activities, the Group is
also trying new forms, such as co-organizing
the “Finding Your Light” video contest with
Tianmu News. The Group conducts satisfaction
surveys on the cultural activities held in
community during holidays for continuous
improvement.

In 2022, the service centers of the projects
under the management of the Group
held a total of 933 community cultural
activities during holidays, with about 74,600
participants.
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CONTENT INDEX

(B #H8RERBEED) =X
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Report Content
TEHERARE
A. Environmental
EBEA: HEHY
Aspect A1: Emissions
Al —REE 3IRGRE
ERBERARAREREHN  RAKRTHOET BEREEEENNELSH:
(a) R R
(b) ETHRTABEAZENEREZERROINER -
General Disclosure 3 Environmental
Information on: Protection

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

AL R EREBEREE - 31 HER
The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 3.1 Emissions

A2 ER@EENREREZEE)RZRBHAECIHEAE)R(WER ZE(MUSEREN - 315D
FRR I H)

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where 3.1 Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g., per unit of production volume, per facility).

A13 MEABEREVREVIEAE)IR(NER ZE(WNGEREN  §EREHNE) - i1
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g., per unit of Note 1
production volume, per facility).

A1.4 MEABREEENAEBAE) R (WER)ZE (MUEBESEN  BEREHNHE) - i1
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g., per unit of Note 1
production volume, per facility).

A15 R UMSMERRRAEINELERMERNST R - 328RMKA
Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 3.2 Use of Resources

A1.6 HIRBAEEREEREEYVN L RERMIIAAEEERAEINELARARRNSR - &1
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description of reduction Note 1
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Report Content

BHEA2:-ERER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

A2 —BEE 32BREA
BRERERBEERR KR EMEME) B EER
General Disclosure 3.2 Use of Resources

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials.

A2.1 RENEASNERR /AEEERME  RIMEREUTETARHE)REE (WUESE 328RER
BB BERMHE) -
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) 3.2 Use of Resources
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

A2  BEKERTE(NNEESEM SERBHE) - 32ERRA
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). 3.2 Use of Resources

A23 HRMAIUANRERERNAEERAEINELARMERNTR - 328REA
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 3.2 Use of Resources

A24  RERCRIGERKR LR EEMEE  URATINAKAGEEERAEINELEEMERNIR - 328RR7A
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency 3.2 Use of Resources
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

A25  REMMAREMHNEECHAEIR(WER) BEEENEE - il
Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to Note 1
per unit produced.

BHEA3RERAAER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 —RBE 33RARBAER
REBTAHRERRAEREXNEATBOUE -
General Disclosure 3.3 Environment
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and natural resources. and Natural
Resources
A3.1 HEXBEDHRERRARERNEAZERCRNERFBYENTY - 33RERANRER
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources and the 3.3 Environment
actions taken to manage them. and Natural
Resources
Ad —RKE BAERHREE L
BAREHERRAIREHETAEAYENEARBEBSENTE -
General Disclosure 3.4 Addressing

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and Climate Change
those which may impact, the issuer.

A4 HREERAREHETAEAYENERRRERZE REHTH - JARHERE
Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may 3.4 Addressing
impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them. Climate Change

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022



RIR - HERERBME
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

(B -HERERMERESDD Ef
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Report Content
TEHEBAE
B. Social
BERREIER
Employment and Labour Practices
BBl ER
Aspect B1: Employment
B1 —BEE 41 B
ERHEMLEE BRERER ITERY RE YEKE St REBAREMFBERE
ME -
(a) HE: R
(b) ETHRTABEAZENEREEZRROINEH -
General Disclosure Information on: 4.1 Employment

(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

B1.1 BiEp EREZ(WERBIAFRE) FREMNIHRASNEERE - 41 R
Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-or part-time), age group and 4.1 Employment
geographical region.

B1.2 BUR - FRANRMEIDNEERKLEX - 41 ER
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 4.1 Employment

EHB2: BEEZ2
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

B2 —RBE 12BFERRERS
BRREZ2TIERERREEEHEBELREN:
(a) HE: R
(b) ETHETABEAZENHERZEZRROIOER -
General Disclosure 4.2 Occupational
Information on: Health and
(@  the policies; and Safety

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.
B2.1 BE-F(BREERRFE)BFRITHOAR RIS ER - 2BERFEEL 2
Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years including the 4.2 Occupational
reporting year. Health and

Safety
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B22 REIBEKRAIEAHK-
Lost days due to work injury.
B2.3 HRMRBOBERFEEL2EE  AREBRTREERE

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

EEB3: B#RREN
Aspect B3: Development and Training
B3 —RBE
ERRAEERTIAERANABARRENIE - HRFIED -
General Disclosure
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.

B3.1 BURIREEEN(NBRERE PREEES)AINXIEEANL -
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).

B3.2 BURREEREAED BEEETARINTHEEY -

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee category.

[EEB4: %5 T %8
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
B4 —RBE
BAMIEETRRHETH:
@ R R
(b) BTHEOTABEAYENRAERRAGINER -
General Disclosure
Information on:
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour

B4.1 BB AEEPNEEAREETIRBHS T
Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labour.
B4.2 HOIAERRERBENAGERBEABAMKRBROSR -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
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EEEA

Operating Practices

EEBS: fEEER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

B5 —RBE A5HEBER
EEMERORERMEABEE -

General Disclosure 4.5 Supply Chain

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Management

B5.1 BpEIAINEESHAE - A5HERER

Number of suppliers by geographical region. 4.5 Supply Chain

Management

B5.2  HABMEREEEMEN  WESTAREMNHEHEUE ARGBEANRTRERTE - 45 REEER

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices are 4.5 Supply Chain

being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored. Management
B5.3 HOEBESIHERGERGNRERLERBOEN URABRTRERSE - A5 fERER
Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the supply chain, and 4.5 Supply Chain
how they are implemented and monitored. Management
B5.4 HIEREHSARRELZAREREMRRENED  AREBRTRERTE - 45 HERER
Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and services when 4.5 Supply Chain
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored. Management

EEB6: EmER
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

B6 —BRRE 46 EmELE
ERMREERNRENRRER L BE BRERMEBEEURBMAEN:
(a) HE: R
(b) BTHETABEAYENHRBERRAGINER -
General Disclosure 4.6 Product
Information on: Responsibility

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

B6.1 EERDERERAETAR 2 ERFEAMADNKNAD L - 2
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons. Note 2

B6.2 ERBRERMRBRBENRFBEAREHHE 46 EmEf
Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt with. 4.6 Product

Responsibility
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B6.3 HRREERREBOBAERFHANED

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property rights.
B6.4 HLEESRERERERBWEF -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

B6.5 HOHEEHBRERLBIE ARBERATREERE -
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
EMEB7: RES
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
B7 —RBE
EBMILHE 9% BFEREREN:
(a) HE: R
(b) ETHETABEARENHEREZEZRROINER -
General Disclosure
Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
B7.1 RERPAHETASEABERLICELANBE IR ARGOEHBARFDRER -
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
B7.2 W EEERERERF  UREBRTRERAFZE -
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
B7.3 HIRMEEREIRHENREFE -
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
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HE

Community

EEB:HERE

Aspect B8: Community Investment
B8 —RRE

43HERE

BRANHBE2ERTREEMEHERENEREXBIDEERLRBNEMHR

General Disclosure

4.8 Community

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the issuer  investment
operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BS.1 BIEMEB(NYE REFE SIFK BR X £E)- 18 HERE
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, 4.8 Community

sport).
B8.2 EEIERMPBERWMEERER) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

21 REENER TSR ETELE BFEEREEY
MEERMBEERMHANER: BEEERMEAEETR
BXTNEBFRRPHINED  BHHEREEHER
MRBETIHEZT  AREFERETRAM -

2 ASBARSHEMABL  ZEFTER -

Note 1:

Note 2:

investment
18 HERE
4.8 Community

investment

The Group's operations do not involve heavy industrial
production and there is no discharge of hazardous
waste or use of packaging materials; non-hazardous
waste is indistinguishable from domestic waste from
owners of projects under management and emissions
are closely related to the number of owners of the
size of projects under management and have not been
accounted for in this reporting year.

The Group has no relevant information for the current
reporting period and this indicator is not applicable.
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BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Binjiang Service Group Co. Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Binjiang Service Group Co. Ltd. (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
194 to 336, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code"”) together
with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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The Key Audit Matter
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group generated total revenue of RMB1,982.6
million which comprised revenue from
property management services, value-added
services to non-property owners and 5S value-
added services. Among which, revenue from
value-added services to non-property owners
for the year ended 31 December 2022 totaled
RMB540.2 million, increasing by 28.8% from
RMB419.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Refer to accounting policy note 1(s) and note 3

to the consolidated financial statements.

EEETERRNFNEESE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BETEHETHERGRARRYEREF B

T &

Our audit procedures to assess revenue recognition of
value-added services to non-property owners included

the following:

BERLETHEEEFEFERERBUAERZ
BRI S 2 RE - B MEEAR
understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
the key internal controls over the Group’s revenue
recognition of value-added services to non-
property owners;

NEA RN MERZTFPHORBE SR - AERE R
i A RE &2 88 W AHE 38 0 5 Tk R 1R 1

inspecting service contracts with customers on a
sample basis to understand and assess the terms
and conditions therein which may affect the
recognition of revenue;
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The Key Audit Matter

EEEFXEFTHRERBNRAZTZREM
MEBEBIFESEEROAERRARTAEIERE]D
Ko EL B R R) R B 2 R R DA K A R [ R
MRMARBE R ERARE - ZFEERS
BERTEREENNEEZHN D - EEEZ2ZE
TERBTABEREEINERERKREER
BEAKA -

The Group's revenue from value-added
services to non-property owners is mainly
derived from pre-delivery services and
consulting services to Hangzhou Binjiang Real
Estate Group Co., Ltd. (“Binjiang Real Estate”)
and its subsidiaries and associates, related
parties of the Group. These value-added
services contribute a significant part of the
Group’s gross profit. The Group recognises
such revenue over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Refer to accounting policy note 1(s) and note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements. (Continued)

EEETERRNFNEESE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

e MHHBFIALBVFANCHEN W ARS HEEMAR
BER REBEBIWEEEFHFXMH  #F &E
REESRNRITARE  WAAEHEBRARS
BEESENHRABRBEETER:

o comparing, on a sample basis, revenue transactions
recorded during the year with the underlying
service contracts, service acknowledgement
receipts and their supporting documents, invoices
and bank-in slips for settled balances and assessing
whether the related revenue had been recognised
in accordance with the Group’s revenue recognition
policies;

o MBI LEMBILIRE K EME QG K&
ERAIM RIS BAR LA K A1 58 = 75 R B BR 75 (B 4%
REMTSEE MEREARFEERNELRE
ENRE UHEEEERENSIEMN:

o comparing, on a sample basis, service prices
charged to Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries
and associates against service prices charged to
third parties and other market data, enquiring
of management the reasons for any significant
differences and assessing the reasonableness of
management explanations;

BT RE AR A FEHRE 2022

185



186

B 2 AR E

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

FARFXEERE)

SHETBREMIICIRGREMBRRME

° (&

=

w
N

HREXZEER
The Key Audit Matter

EEHFEFHERBUABRBEE R —
HHREZEE RAAKRATDESEH
REMESR BFEWRABCTHEHERD
HEIXERBRMANER VKB RN
EMEAFRRE -

We identified revenue recognition of value-
added services to non-property owners as a
key audit matter because revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the Group
and there is an inherent risk that revenue
could be recorded in an incorrect period or
could be subject to manipulation in order to
achieve financial targets and expectations.

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Refer to accounting policy note 1(s) and note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements. (Continued)

EEETERRNFNEESE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

e WEHFRAMBICENHERHEBHEXH (B
PRIGHERUIE M A HXHMER) AT EAE
B AREREZNSTHREER &

o comparing sales transactions recorded just before
and after the year end with the relevant underlying
documents, including service acknowledgement
receipts and their supporting documents and
invoices, to assess if the related revenue had been
recognised in the appropriate accounting period,;
and

e HLTHFANBENFXTIHERBURAER
BOMBEATFLE ABRBEEEETHEAED
R AR T i B AR XXAF -

o scrutinising all manual journal entries relating to
revenue of value-added servers to non-property
owners which were raised during the year,
enquiring of management the reasons for
such adjustments and inspecting underlying
documentation on a sample basis.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gross
trade receivables and a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) amounted to
RMB315.5 million and RMB51.5 million,
respectively.

EEENEBEIRRABEBIZAREIREY
FERBOEKHE -

The Group’s trade receivables comprise
mainly receivables from property owners and
property developers.

B 2 AR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Refer to accounting policy note 1(m), note 16
and note 25(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

ESETERRNMNEREEIE
How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENGEIRRFENEHAEEFERERBENEX

BFE/ETISE:

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance for

trade receivables included the following:

e BEEBETFEMREEZS  BEFZEKFES S
B o iRss D,\Eﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ:ﬁrmixﬁq%
BRRET ~ B R EER

B

e  obtaining an understanding of and evaluating the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls relating to credit control,
segmentation of trade receivables, ageing analysis
review, and estimation of credit loss allowances;

s ERBENTEHEAMNATOEESRERBIEE

BEEEBERRE

o evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating
the credit loss allowance with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standard,;

o MRMEE

HETHED
EHEEEMSRORR

o obtaining an understanding on the key data and
assumptions of the expected credit loss model
adopted by management, including the basis of
segmentation of trade receivables based on credit
loss characteristics, historical default data and
assumptions involved in management’s estimation

of loss rate;

BT RE AR A FEHRE 2022
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BREREHE
The Key Audit Matter

EREENRBRBHAGERREHSEDN
TREFHEBEERRN - EZRUFIANKE -
BEEEX  BAKBRAARERSESHR
MATIEEER KREESEEKREFER
EHEEFESFEN SR EEERE -
Management measure the loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL of trade
receivables based on the loss patterns for
different customers grouped according to the
shared credit risk characteristics, ageing of
trade receivables, historical loss rates, current
economic conditions and forward-looking
information at the end of each reporting
period.

EERESERURIBENTEREEEBEE
MER—HBEREZEE RERKEZIEIR
RENERHEERGEMBHRRMEE
BEXR MEHEEBENBEIFERAN
FEMMPIRERENE X HE -

We identified the ECL allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter because the
balance of trade receivables is material to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements
and the recognition of expected credit loss is
inherently subjective and requires the exercise
of significant management judgement.

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Refer to accounting policy note 1(m), note 16
and note 25(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

ESETERRNMNEREEIE
How the matter was addressed in our audit

e BEREHEERRREMRTELHR

AHFHEBEERERTAEERE

e assessing the appropriateness of management'’s
estimation of loss allowance and examining
the information used by management to derive
such estimates, including testing accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and

forward-looking information;

o EBHMBEITALBRE  BRNEMBRXT
FHEESERYCRIARRRENHEBSEEERE

&

o assessing whether items in the trade receivables
ageing report were categorised in the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing with the demand
notes, invoices and other relevant underlying

documentation, on a sample basis; and

s REEKEENGFEERBRAHRRENAERE

2022F12A3MBH EEREE -

o re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance
as at 31 December 2022 based on the Group's

credit loss allowance policies.

2 TmEEE
BEELGEAMEANER  BREAFAELED
BEE R AR WREE AL E MR AT E &
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Fung Ping Kwong.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#H Z£2022%12 A318 L F /€ for the year ended 31 December 2022

(LA A R ¥ 585 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2022% 20214
2022 2021
o3 AR%E Tt NG B
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
A Revenue 3(a) 1,982,633 1,398,947
58 & Ak AN Cost of sales (1,390,386) (949,270)
E A Gross profit 592,247 449,677
Efb g A Other revenue 4 15,126 9,946
HAb g A F 58 Other net income 4 484 808
HEREHAX Selling and marketing expenses (8,215) (3,766)
THRX Administrative expenses (62,133) (53,599)
Z S5 IA KR A4  Impairment loss on trade receivables
BEREESE and contract assets 25(a) (20,491) (12,140)
H b5 Other expenses (1,232) (1,141)
m&xNm®  Profitfrom operations 51578 389,785
=S ON Finance income 44,593 32,861
ELE=ED N Finance costs (2,744) (689)
WAWAFEH  Netfinanceincome . 5@ 41849 32,172
Dih B XA FIERE Share of profits less losses of
&8 associates 2,643 1,357
DIEA L EFERF  Share of profits less losses of
&5 8 a joint venture 786 (96)
B %t A FIE Profit before taxation 5 561,064 423,218
FTi3 Income tax 6 (142,096) (98,197)
FEFE Profit for the year 418,968 325,021
DT&FHE: Attributable to:
KRR = RE Equity shareholders of the Company 411,995 321,751
FE 15 B M 2 Non-controlling interests 6,973 3,270
418,968 325,021

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022



GEEEREMEERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B 2£2022F12 A318 L F [Z for the year ended 31 December 2022
(A A R#¥ 0% 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20224 20214
2022 2021
okza N EEesaian AREF T

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

FEXNHE

FEHMZHEKS
(HBRBEREHR D
HHARRK)

TeENsREER
HIE A

BERRRPBHRR
PREEZERZR

Profit for the year 418,968 325,021

Other comprehensive income
for the year (after tax and
reclassification adjustments)

ltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of the Company 10,325 (6,543)

HEAEEMHDEE
BEMIAER
AC RN NG

ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation

BWMEMEEZ of financial statements of overseas
PE 5 =% subsidiaries (6,596) 2,665
FEXEHBEAH Total comprehensive income
for the year 422,697 321,143
LR &F A Attributable to:
KRR =R Equity shareholders of the Company 415,724 317,873
JEIT B BE == Non-controlling interests 6,973 3,270
FEX2EKZAHE Total comprehensive income
for the year 422,697 321,143
BRER Earnings per share 9
AR #E Basic and diluted (RMB)
(AR®T) 1.49 1.16

F202BH Z$E336H 2 W B A H®MAX — The notes on pages 202 to 336 form part of these
oo ENARRERBRE 2R EFIBEHN  financial statements. Details of dividends payable to

M 5E24(c) °

equity shareholders of the Company are set out in note
24(c).
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SE BB R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

M20224512 A31H at 31 December 2022
(LA AN R ¥ 585 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2022% 20214
2022 2021
o3 ARE Tt NG B
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
IRBEE Non-current assets
KEME Investment properties 10 425 1,275
ME - - BMERERE Property, plant and equipment 10 26,486 19,030
REERANEE Investment in associates 12 7.932 5,289
REELENRE Investment in a joint venture 1,200 414
EERIEE E Deferred tax assets 23(b) 25,677 18,950
EHFER Time deposits 17 283,777 154,158
B~ IE Prepayments 13 8,425 3,270
353922 202,386
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 14 147,499 79,031
BHEE Contract assets 15 9,064 —
Bk EMEUFIE Trade and other receivables 16 343,471 173,390
BATVEGFAER Financial assets at fair value through

(BAFEFAERE]) profit or loss (“FVPL")

NEemEE 25(e) — 24,044
el -CR =Y Time deposits 17 132,133 243,019
IR HI 4R 1745 8% Restricted bank balances 18 58,012 57,020
HekBReEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 19 1,949,891 905,746

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2,640,070 1,482,250
REBAaE Current liabilities
EHEE Contract liabilities 20 907,338 143,630
BN EMEFIE Trade and other payables 21 672,445 495,865
HERE Lease liabilities 22 454 1,586
B HA B 18 Current taxation 23(a) 100,564 69,876
1,680,801 710,957
REBEEFESH Net current assets 959,269 771,293
BEERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,313,191 973,679
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SE BB R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

M20224512 A31H at 31 December 2022
(LA AN R ¥ 585 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2022% 20214F
2022 2021
B it ARE Tt NG S
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
HEBRE Lease liabilities 22 — 119
BEEFIBBAEE Deferred tax liabilities 23(b) 26,883 —
26,883 119
EEFE NET ASSETS 1,286,308 973,560
EAXRFEE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
N Share capital 24(b) 181 181
7 1 Reserves 24(d) 1,246,073 941,408
AATEZBRREM Total equity attributable to
BER equity shareholders of the
Company 1,246,254 941,589
FERES Non-controlling interests 40,054 31,971
HRER TOTAL EQUITY 1,286,308 973,560

B R2023F3824B EE 2 & M B E T

%o

ﬁwvvvvv
3R

N

m

H

éFH?

F336 8 2 i FE 18 Ak AN B 7% e ok —

Directors

financial statements.

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 24 March 2023.

The notes on pages 202 to 336 form part of these
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GEEREER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#H Z£2022%12 A318 L F /€ for the year ended 31 December 2022
(LA A R ¥ 585 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

AARERRRER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

PEAR
il
(&)
ik Re  RBGEE  AREE  AERE  EXEE  EENE g% ki b )
The
People’s
Republic
of China
("PRC") Non-
Share Share Capital statutory Exchange Retained controlling Total
Note capital premium resrve TeServes reserve profits Total interests equity
AREFT  ARETT  AREFR  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARETI  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Heaeli) B2
note 24(a)fi) - note 24(dii)

M2021E1818  Balance at 1 January
i 2021 181 412,534 (66,484) 25,451 543 469,400 841,625 16,708 858,333

WNEEEHE: Changes in equity for
2021:

EETIE Profit for the year - - - - - 31,751 31,751 3,200 325,01
Ef2ENE  Other comprehensive
income - - - - (3,878) - (3,878) - (3,878)
WEMBAR  Acquisition of additional
BiMER interests in a subsidlary - - 719 - - - 719 (967) (248)
BEEEH Dividends declared in
ERRE respect of the previous
year 24l - (13163 - - - - (13163 - (13163
KERHERRE Dividends declared in
respect of the current
year 24)) - (86,99) - - - - (86,996) - (86,99)
EFEEERE  Appropriation to statutory
reserve - - — 15,871 - (15,871) - - -
FEkeEEE  Capital injection from
non-controlling
interests - - - - - - — 12,960 12,960
2021512318 Balance at 31
4] December 2021 181 193,906 (65,765) 4130 (3,339 775,280 941,589 31971 973,560
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B 2£2022F12 A318 L F [Z for the year ended 31 December 2022
(LA AN R ¥ 5851 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

ARARERRER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Rx  REEE  E4RE PEEERE EXRE  EEAE g FERER
PRC Non-
Share Share Capital  statutory  Exchange Retained controlling
capital ~ premium reserve  reserves reserve profits Total interests Total equity
AEBTL ARRTR ARBTn ARETR ARWTR ARETn ARMTR AR%Tn ARET:
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Heuli) - Kz
note 4(a)fii)  note 24(a)\ii)
202251318 Balance at
L Vanary202 . L0 .70 2L 1T, ) B 5o B T s S
005 EHEH: Changes in equity for
2022:
EGHE Profit for the year - - - - — M9 411,99 6973 418,968
E2ENE  Other comprehensive
income - - - - 3729 - 3729 - 3729
WERELT  Acuisition of additional
TR interests in a subsidiary - - - - - - - (570) (570)
BEFER Dividends declared in
ERKE respect of the previous
year - (11,059) - - - - (11,059) - (11,059)
SRZETHE  Appropriation to statutory
reserve - - - 26,398 - (26,398) - - -
FEREZEE  Capitalinjection from
non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - 1,680 1,680
20225124318 Balance at 31
fs December 2022 181 82,847 (65,765) 67,720 394 1,160,877 1,246,254 40,054 1,286,308

F202E = F336A 2R A IEHK —

e

The notes on pages 202 to 336 form

financial statements.

part of these
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SERTRER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

#H Z£2022%12 A318 L F /€ for the year ended 31 December 2022

(LA A R ¥ 585 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2022%F 20214F
2022 2021
H it AR T T BN R
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

ReEFTH Operating activities
KEELXMRS Cash generated from operations 19(b) 1,214,172 338,079
EfHEMZEMESH  PRC Corporate Income tax paid 23(a) (91,252) (95,694)
RETHEEN Net cash generated from

b2 A operating activities 1,122,920 242,385
REED Investing activities
BEWE BEK Payments for the purchase of property,

B A K plant and equipment and intangible

EREEMNRK assets (21,762) (12,959)
HEME  BER Proceeds from disposal of property,

R A& P15 B plant and equipment 674 999
RadbtED Payments for investment in a joint

I E=EEN venture — (510)
W B B 8 A A Payments for acquisition of additional

ONE R T3 interests in a subsidiary (570) (248)
BRAFEFA Payments for purchase of FVPL

BEOBEMNR (102,000) (113,700)
BEAFEGFAER Proceeds from redemption of FVPL

&Y 8 [ AT 5 kIR 126,204 90,064
REEHEB® =1 Payments for time deposits with

& E BT SR 3K original maturity over three months (366,726) (372,789)
FERHBBB=MA Proceeds from maturity of time

B E HA fF K deposits with original maturity over

Fr 15 %18 three months 348,070 456,105
2 U F B Interest received 48,154 18,590
RETEERB Net cash generated from

ReFH investing activities 32,044 65,552
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

GERERER

B 2£2022F12 A318 L F [Z for the year ended 31 December 2022

(A A R#¥ 0% 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

20224 20214
2022 2021
M it NS R ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB"000
& SEE Financing activities
FEREREE Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests 1,680 12,960
ENMEEMEARAEZZE Capital element of lease rentals paid 19(c) (1,896) (2,323)
ERHEESHF B EE Interest element of lease rentals paid 19(c) (75) (136)
=Nl Dividends paid (111,059) (218,628)
mEEE A Net cash used in financing
ReFH activities (111,350) (208,127)
REeRBREEEY Net increase in cash and cash
BmFEE equivalents 1,043,614 99,810
MAIEBEHNESR Cash and cash equivalents at
REZEEY 1 January 19(a) 905,746 805,394
EXS8 o8 Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes 531 542
MW12B831HKWE £ K Cash and cash equivalents at
REEEY 31 December 19(a) 1,949,891 905,746
F202B E$336H 2 WIEBKABBE®ME — The notes on pages 202 to 336 form part of these
o o financial statements.
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SRE P BwRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B R BEIEBEI - A AREITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 EXREFEE

BILRGEBEABRAR (IFA2TF])
LEWBAR (REIAEE]) &
REMBHRRDBREMBEERD
B R B 75 ¥R S R A (T B B 3% 3R
HEA]) mE ZEREZARRE
RestEREEE ([EREE
HEAEEE]) RONMEEAN
18 51 B R B 75 5 £ R~ BB & 5
A ([EREFER]) REE-
ZEMBRERATEELERARK
PleBBERERBEBARSMA
[RAFREZ LR ERRER
N TXBEBEAEBMRERMAZERXN
BARTER ©

BERerEREEecEhE TH
R RS ERNER  ZFEF
RASEEMEtMEERERHK
AREXA - B 1)’ VR FE

AZEEEEHETRRLRML
MEHNEN MABEEHELE

BRAGE BB REPIAIRRNE
Al N B EE R R AR -

HE2022F12A3IBILFEZ&H£4E
PR ERBIERDR L ENB QG
AR AREEBRBERNRIREEDE
ROMEZS ©
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements
of Binjiang Service Group Co. Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “"Group”) have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB"”). These financial statements
also comply with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting period reflected in these financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries and the Group’s
interest in associates and a joint venture.



GE P BmRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 EXREFEE®SE)

AABR2017F7A6H IR B 2 B
55 PIZE22E R A% (19614 E358
EOl - EEEREFTRASHSE
MK A —REREBERAA °
KRR aE 25 R2019F3H158 %
BEBBERSGHER AR ([BRFT])
FREMTERD - AEEHEE
EBAERPRREMEEERE R
MR RT -

HAMBRRDIAARE(TAR
WHEY NEEHREON T
B REINEE - REAEMBHRERMA
BERASEERR  EEAF
Bt A ABSEZ2eREEREAYF
B 78R BR SN

ARBRARABTRAEAM KL Z
MERBNINGEER - ARFI KA
DAL B A 2 S8 B B R R
MEE®ERBTT -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 6 July 2017 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares were listed
on the Main Board on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 15 March 2019 (the “Listing”). The
principal activities of the Group are the
provision of property management services
and related services in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded
to the nearest thousand, which is the
presentation currency. It is prepared on the
historical cost basis except for financial assets
measured as fair value through profit or loss
which are stated at their fair value.

RMB is the functional currency for the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the
mainland China. The functional currency of
the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries
outside the mainland China are Hong Kong
dollars.
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SRE P BwRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 EXREFEE®SE)

RENTABEBETERESEARE
CHBBRRELEEERL SR
ERRERIEEE A WAR
NXHZ2mEENHE - HFER
R B hHEHBABRRIERNARE
RBRLRBBEBEATHEAGE
MEBEEMREAE  HERBRRD
HSRAEEMRBEESNEELA
BOREEELDH G2 EE - BRE
BRABEA BN ZFMEAT -

HETRABERR DIRFEEETI
mEte MIEFT @B ERER
FHERTHIM - Ble X % B AR
SRFHAERTER  WERETRE
BERARSAM  BlERETH
MR AKHEERGHETONE
Al e
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 EXREFEE®SE)

EEECRBYMBEBRAEAXN
FEBR G HRE LR R ATE
MHET RO TEEEN TR
R A A Y EE2 e

BERetEREEED BMHU IR
AEBAGSHBEEREMNE
PR A 75 RS R 2B RT

. PR B 15 $h 2 A 65k &
AR YE BERZE: H
1EBETE B 38 .2 FT 89 B 13 350 1’

e BB |EERFEIVRE
RIAN - B AR BERANR
BE - ERIUEEHY — EITA
#9689 5 A

ZEEHASEAHRANBETE
HHEXEMMBRRAZEEXZE
IITABMEBENEATE - KK
= 3 & R E AR AN ET B
REMEOFTEA KB

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note
2.

The Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB to
these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

e  Amendment to IFRS 16, Property, plant
and equipment: Proceeds before intended
use

. Amendments to IFRS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent
assets: Onerous contracts — cost of
fulfilling a contract

None of these amendments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.
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SRE P BwRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B R BEIEBEI - A AREITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 EREHRE®
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB BEIEBPEZEI - A AREEILYR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 EXREFEE®SE)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with note 1(o) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 1(f)) or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)),
unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

An associate is an entity in which the Group
or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby
the Group or Company and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB BEIEBPEZEI - A AREEILYR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 EXREFEE®SE)

RBERARIBLEEENKRER
o ZRNEAaMBERERIE
WAERKEDBAFELE GG
ADBRFELHEZLEER) A
fRohe RIBERm L RENT K
DN SR N SSE R
BRrEERRBAEEFBZ
AFEBHEREXANES (FH)
FHRAE REXNABEEEE -
BEZRENEERBEEMRA
EBERASEEDZKRE —FHH
RZBERRHEELENEM
EERE UK ZRERALASK
BAERRERRBEEFRNRE
REBREONEHNEREEBZ
A1 R B /&5 48 1 o 38 B (AL B R ())
(i MEBEAH AEEBFHG
EEBRTIRERBRENEMNZHE
R WEBE R LKA/ I B
D ARBENFERGERE QT
Yo BB 12 1) T 1R 3 4B A N E TR B
BEERGEBRRRER MAKHE
EHERKRERARERNFTER
fheEBmBARGaED M EAM
EEBMERAER -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee's identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). The cost of the
investment includes purchase price, other costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
investment, and any direct investment into
the associate or joint venture that forms part
of the Group's equity investment. Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see note 1(j)(ii)).
At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-
date excess over cost, the Group's share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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SRE P BwRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 BERSITHEE) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associates or the joint venture,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and

%$’§I’V£H§%§/A HAE
M REB L EREZE QR %
EEERE $EIE’J%EH§}

n> Fr>
I e

g

OH]

BEZT WA TBRERAEMEE - recognition of further losses is discontinued
WA REE AR AT EEERT - except to the extent that the Group has
FRERWERE RN HENBRSIN - incurred legal or constructive obligations or
HUMs  AEENEZESRER made payments on behalf of the investee.
EHENREREEMNLELEE £ For this purpose, the Group's interest is the
BRASBEHBEE ARG EDE carrying amount of the investment under the
KEFHE oA EBHME equity method together with the Group's any
HEm(nER HHEMRAEZR other long-term interests that in substance
KABHEEEBRIREZ(RHZE form part of the Group's net investment in the
1)) ° associate or the joint venture, after applying

the expected credit losses (ECLs) model to such
other long-term interests where applicable (see
note 1(j)(ii)).

AEEEABERAAREEDE Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
IRGMEENRERER UK transactions between the Group and its
SERBEREAANER BRM associates and joint venture are eliminated
HOoMRNEIBEETIAERER to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
EHRFTEREE LR BEMS investee, except where unrealised losses
AIENE R E R ER o provide evidence of an impairment of the asset

transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

MREE ARNREERARNEE If an investment in an associate becomes an
TEMNREINEGEDLENKRE investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
EBARBERRINRE  BIBF#E retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
HTEEFFE R Z_EHE the investment continues to be accounted for
BIEERESEK - under the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB BEIEBPEZEI - A AREEILYR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate
or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 1(f)).

In the Company's statement of financial
position, investments in associates and joint
venture are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(j)), unless classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

The Group’s and the Company’s policies
for investments in debt and equity financial
instruments, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are
set out below:

Investments in debt and equity financial
instruments are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investment. The investments are initially
stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B R BEIEBEI - A AREITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments other than equity
investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method (see note

1(s)(ii)(€)).

— fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of
contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

— fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the
fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity financial instruments is
classified as FVPL unless the equity investment
is not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity financial instruments, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(s)

(ii)(b).

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(i)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss. Rental income from
investment properties are accounted for as
described in note 1(s)(ii)(a).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the
costs of investment properties, less a residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their lease terms.

When the Group holds a property interest
under an operating lease to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an
investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease (see note 1(i)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest
as are applied to other investment property
leased under finance leases. Lease payments
are accounted for as described in note 1(i).

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note

10)(0).

— right-of-use assets arising from leases
over freehold or leasehold properties
where the Group is not the registered
owner of the property interest; and

— items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (see note

1()).



GE P BmRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 EXREFEE®SE)

BEEME BERXKBEHERBHKK
BREMHRA - BEREATIKAE 7
HIEE (AR IR E AR X TR E &
EEBEBREIMMAESHKA
ARBEELPAENBELEE
DN

EfEYME BEMRBEBEZEDE
EERENZEDAMTOMLE
FEARERIE - SRR A EBRER ©
HEAE A% %R B WSR2
AR AN B iR o

ME- BEMIKBHERBRBEL L
EMELANBESEDAZEBENLE
PIEREFEREESEZHEHN
ZHET YREBEIEEEARN

BRER -

TEDNEREREAERSAER
FHAMBENE  BEMREBEE
MR A EE AR RSREER

(B EWT
— WMAREBERERA 354
KRB
— A= 5
— HEFEEAN RIHHHEH
H b ¥ % B2 1% T 10 1 5t
AERFHRzREE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

ltems may be produced while bringing an
item of property, plant and equipment to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. The proceeds from selling
any such items and the related costs are
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value,
if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

—  office equipment, 3 — 5 years
furniture and fittings
— motor vehicles 5 years

shorter of the
unexpired term of

— other properties leased
for own use
lease and the
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Buildings’ estimated useful lives

Where parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

(i) As alessee

Where the contract contains a lease
component and non-lease component,
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the
present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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1

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when
a lease is capitalised is initially measured
at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 1(h) and 1(j)
(i). Depreciation is calculated to write-
off the costs of right-of-use asset, less a
residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their lease terms.

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.



e S R R B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BR=BEHEIH

1 EXg

()

(i)

TR (&)

ERAEBEANE)
REZeEMBERRERS KB
HERENRBILEER
RmEBE+—EARDH
EEENAOKEAMRE -

AEBERME  BFEEZRE]
FEFICTAREVEEE
MEMEEEXRIFEIF
ERNRBEEEHEEPRE
HENEREEE  RRN&E
EUMBARRPOIREZRA
ERaE-

ERHBEA

EAKEESEEA AKE
REERKREESEEE
ERNmAHEKEHE-
i E M HEARE EPTA RN

THRAE DR R KD RE
BEAEA AIoBEABMER

& GAAEMBEHEAL
BHE -

a K

J

BEHEERIIEHEES
El&ﬁﬁﬁiﬁg

EHNFHREIEE
R ETHEMNE S W
1R 1% MY 5 1(s)(ii)(a) FE 52 °

> o B S B
o - D>
u)ig%

5

LA AR®EITFR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-
term lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments
that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of
investment property in ‘property, plant
and equipment’ or ‘inventories’ if they
are held for sales in the ordinary course
of business and presents lease liabilities
separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with note 1(s)(ii)(a).
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1

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(ii) As a lessor (Continued)

When the Group is an intermediate
lessor, the sub-leases are classified as a
finance lease or as an operating lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head
lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described in
note 1(i)(i), then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for ECLs on the following items:

— financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables);

— contract assets as defined in IFRS 15
(see note 1(1)); and

— lease receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value are
not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

trade
and other receivables and contract
assets: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;

— fixed-rate financial assets,

— variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables,
amounts due from related parties (trade
nature) and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based
on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic condition at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any
is held)); or (ii) the financial asset is 90
days past due. The Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);
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(Continued)
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instruments, contract assets and

lease receivables (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(Continued)

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on
the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or
a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instruments credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with
a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value
reserve (recycling).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments, contract assets and
lease receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 1(s)(ii)(c) is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income
is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

— significant decrease in property
management and other service fees
collection rate;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;
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LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial

instruments, contract assets and

lease receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

(Continued)

— it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, lease receivable or contract asset
is written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are recognised
as a reversal of impairment in profit or
loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current
assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— investment properties;

— property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

— investment in associates and a joint
venture; and

— investment in subsidiaries, associates
and a joint venture in the Company's

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022

227



228

e SRR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(B REHAEI
BREHBRE ()

1

(i) R*ERBEEREE)

— AEAKEEHE
EEMAREEZER/A
FAE R B A B fE A
EBEMEZANRSE
FEEHAEER 8%
RBRERTSEHEER
BMEEBLEEFTERER
Z {4 R BB BR R R
# {4 5H R R & 7 8 Bh
REHEHRE - WEEL
BEEATBLNEM
BEMEEANRER
AlEEBLELER SN
AW &/NEEAR (B3R
TELEM)NAIKE S
B o

— EREEER
HWEESXEMBREE
FEUMEmEBRGER
AR E R BIRIBa
TRREAREERE R
TELEBEMERNRE
EREERSENAR LA
AR ELEEM(HEN
MADFEDBHEE
MR mEE ERIZLH
3 LA SRR > 5% B AL (3 B A
MR REMLEENKRE
B EEEMNK@MEND
SREERNEMEBAF
1B & B (fis A 51 8)
SEREEMRATEE) -

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

1

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current

assets (Continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Financial Instruments on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with IAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year (see notes

1)) (i) and (ii)).
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LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

()

impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the
end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories, including properties held for
re-sale, are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises
all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.



GE P BmRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB BEIEBPEZEI - A AREEILYR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

EXREBEE)

(i) EEHRAE
HMAammRANERERLER
& (1)) A R 2
T B5 Ko 5 s (5 B BE1(h)) B9 42
EFEGAAHMIBER A
TR EPRIZA KA

ESAHNMEEKRAEER
ERAHNZBERTATEE
EZAEERREFPERA
#)T B A R RX F R AN (B 20 48
BHEMD) WA AE[R
R K ¥R & B R BE SR E) U %5 AR
EZRER R SR QETR o Nl
ESAHMEERAREL
REREL - BEBEHOWEM
PR EE B ST 3 o

WA ABEZEREEHAA
FRIRENRAALMEH E
EHEMAREAREHRSE
an 3 AR 7% M B R ¢ N 8 HA R 1
WEl - AERENRRAEE
e - ERERBAHHA R
FRENEFTEHNBBOKX
AR BREEERSE  BEEM
Bt RAD#E T REREP
Y HR B9 A AN B fE R &= [ RT
A A EE & R KA () 20 A
AFHBEBHE) - TRAEOHHE
MWERAKRERNEREE Y
X BEARERETLEE)
RELRXH -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(ii) Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see note 1(k)(i))
and property, plant and equipment (see
note 1(h)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are those costs that the Group incurs
to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the
contract had not been obtained e.g.
an incremental sales commission.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are capitalised when incurred if the costs
relate to revenue which will be recognised
in a future reporting period and the costs
are expected to be recovered. Other costs
of obtaining a contract are expensed
when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate directly to an existing contract or
to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct
materials, allocations of costs, costs that
are explicitly chargeable to the customer
and other costs that are incurred only
because the Group entered into the
contract (for example, payments to sub-
contractors). Other costs of fulfilling a
contract, which are not capitalised as
inventory, property, plant and equipment
or intangible assets, are expensed as
incurred.
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1 BERSITHEE) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) HEaOKA&(E) (ii) Other contract costs (Continued)
BB ARG DK AR E K AR Capitalised contract costs are stated at
2 BERBEEEBYEK- cost less accumulated amortisation and
EEANAEENREES impairment losses. Impairment losses are
BOAEEEHRHARHBLEE recognised to the extent that the carrying
1R E sk AR 7% A 4 ER &Y amount of the contract cost asset
REGBER)MWKAER AR exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount
XZBEEEEHZEERXK of consideration that the Group expects
AR 75 A8 B8 &9 F 7] pK AN 89 5 58 to receive in exchange for the goods or
B ERBEEIRE - services to which the asset relates, less (ii)

any costs that relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

BB ARG LKA HE N E Amortisation of capitalised contract
REEHBAUNEFLERA costs is charged to profit or loss when
Nk - W BROFEHHE the revenue to which the asset relates
BT EE1(s) © is recognised. The accounting policy for

revenue recognition is set out in note

1(s).

fid A &= B R IR B S 49 P # T IR A contract asset is recognised when the Group
REBFEEFEERWKERRE Z A recognises revenue (see note 1(s)) before being
R (R M 1) BlIHER & unconditionally entitled to the consideration
HMEE - &R0EEREMIEGI) under the payment terms set out in the
S ERTBEREEEEETH contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs
iy - 30 P HLER X (B 89 4 A1 BX 3 B 15 in accordance with the policy set out in note
HREFNDEAERFKE(RWZE 1(j)(i) and are reclassified to receivables when
1(m)) ° the right to the consideration has become

unconditional (see note 1(m)).

WMEPRAEERAMBELE 2 A contract liability is recognised when the
AR E BBREHNERR customer pays consideration before the Group
BEEE1(s) o AN & B kB fm G recognises the related revenue (see note 1(s)).
MARARNEBERER KR ZA A contract liability would also be recognised
WERAAEERE  THEBEREL if the Group has an unconditional right to
BE-HEREBERT T EREE receive non-refundable consideration before
B F& e 3k 18 (R BT 75 1(m)) © the Group recognises the related revenue. In

such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see note 1(m)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant
financing component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method (see note 1(s)(ii)(c)).

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before
the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration, the amount is presented
as a contract asset (see note 1(1)).

All receivables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method less allowance for credit losses (see
note 1(j)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(j)(i).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

Contributions to the PRC local retirement
schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the
tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and are
not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions are recognised when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from sale of goods, the
provision of services or the use by others of
the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

The Group is the principal for its revenue
transactions and recognises revenue on a
gross basis, including the sales of furniture,
car parking places and storage rooms that are
sourced externally. In determining whether
the Group acts as a principal or as an agent,
it considers whether it obtains control of the
products before they are transferred to the
customers. Control refers to the Group’s ability
to direct the use of and obtain substantially all
of the remaining benefits from the products.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

()

Revenue from contracts with
customers

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third
parties such as value added tax or other
sales taxes.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer
for more than 12 months, revenue is
measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective
interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not
adjust the consideration for any effects of
a significant financing component if the
period of financing is 12 months or less.
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BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(a)

Property management service,
value-added services to non-
property owners and 5S value-
added services.

For property management service,
the Group recognises revenue in the
amount to which the Group has the
right to invoice based on the value
of performance completed to date.

For property management service
income arising from properties
managed under lump sum basis,
where the Group acts as principal,
the Group entitles to revenue at
the value of property management
service fee received. For property
management service income
arising from properties managed
under commission basis, where
the Group acts as an agent of the
property owners, the Group entitles
to revenue at a pre-determined
percentage or fixed amount of the
property management service fees
the property owners are obligated
to pay.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Value-added services to non-property
owners mainly include consulting services
to property developers and cleaning,
greening, repair and maintenance services
to property developers at the pre-delivery
stage. The Group recognises revenue over
time by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation.

5S value-added services mainly include
housekeeping services, brokerages
services, home decoration services, sales
of furniture, car parking places and
storage rooms and other community
value-added services to property owners.
For sales of goods, including sales of
furniture, parking places and storage
rooms, and brokerage services, the Group
recognises revenue at point in time when
the property owners take possession of
and accept the goods and services. For
home decoration services, the Group
recognises revenue over time by reference
to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligation. For housing keeping services
and other community value-added
services, the Group recognises revenue
when the services are rendered. Housing
keeping services and other community
value-added services are normally billable
immediately upon the services are
provided.

BIRGEBERAR FEHRSE 2022

241



242

e SRR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(BR=BEBREIN

1

EXRETBEE)

(i) EfRRERR AR MW

(a)

(b)

(c)

BEHE R HERA
BREKLEHERKEE
WAREEH R EH
B AEBRSTARESR

R ERmAEHEMESE
FREAXRERABEESRE

P15 U s HO IR S RIBR SN -
ERHOEEEERE
mERSREFHEEN
RBBOAKRBD - I
FEURRIEH AN KL
AEHENRREEN
SETHIRER /YA -

B
FLEPTRENEREWA
A 7 A SRR A 3R A9
TR ) & 7 E By AR

T 2 e A
MBI A R R B E R A
BEHERMBER - pLiZ
NN /NS S =i
AHM 2R S (A S8)
FHE R Y E(E B R ER
TRMEEMS  BERA
FERAREEMNMAK®
B-REEREN R
EEME  BEREMNEXE
P& EE B 8 5H R AN (BT
HEEEREBRBEI(R
FREEE1(1)3)) °

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

1

(Continued)

(ii) Revenue from other sources and
other income

(a)

(b)

(c)

Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under
operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are
earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
equity shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised
as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are
not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e.
gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 1(j)

().



GE P BmRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

EXREBEE)

(i)  Efl R A R H AW s

(&)

@) BT 8
i 7T A& 3 AR 3 R AR K
R B B RN KB KT E
HH & 1 BB
B 0 B 15K R R )
BR-BARBEAKHE
EELEMXHMHEBER
XEEWMERBEAR
RWERDTER S
A-BAREEAEEER
BE R AN B 46 B 1) 2 T AR
REZERA X FEBR
H W AP R =
REERERFHAR
EROZBIHEES -

FAMNINEZZEIHAMNERE
E-UINEAHENEREELEA
BRAIRBEHRNERBE - [&
AEERBEPER -

(Continued)

(ii) Revenue from other sources and
other income (Continued)

(@)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised
as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised initially as deferred
income and amortised to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the
useful life of the asset by way of
recognition in other revenues.

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the
Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group

if any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.
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1

(Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group
if any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a
Group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group's
parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts
of each segment item reported in the
financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various
service lines and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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2

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty in the
preparation of these financial statements are as
follows:

The impairment allowances for trade and other
receivables and contract assets are based on
assumptions about risk of expected credit
loss rates. The Group adjusts judgement in
making these assumption and selecting inputs
for computing such impairment loss, broadly
based on the available customers’ historical
data, existing market conditions including
forward looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Any change in such
assumptions and judgement would affect the
expected credit loss to be recognised and
hence the net profit in future years.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
carried forward and deductible temporary
differences are recognised and measured
based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the
relevant assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of each reporting date. In determining the
carrying amounts of deferred tax assets,
expected taxable profits are estimated which
involves a number of assumptions relating
to the operating environment of the Group
and require a significant level of judgement
exercised by the directors. Any change in such
assumptions and judgement would affect the
carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to be
recognised and hence the net profit in future
years.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORT

The principal activities of the Group are
property management services, value-added
services to non-property owners and 5S value-
added services.

Revenue represents income from property
management services, value-added services
to non-property owners and 5S value-added
services.
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3 WARDHE®RSE(BE) 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORT
(Continued)

EEXEEHANBRANSELOT The amount of each significant category of
revenue are as follows:

20225 20214
2022 2021
AR®T T N
RMB’000 RMB’000

BARMKEIEHREEEE Revenue from contracts with
15S5REENEFSHU  customers within the scope
A of IFRS 15

BERFRI MR TR A MK Revenue recognised over

Al time:
ER-BEN R Property management services 1,193,447 840,546
IEHEFEERS Value-added services to
non-property owners 540,187 419,542
5S 1% B AR 7% 5S value-added services 142,142 40,921

1,875,776 1,301,009
RESEEERMBKWA: Revenue recognised
at point in time:

5S #1E R (M iE) 5S value-added services (note) 105,726 97,016
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1,981,502 1,398,025
Ha R REW A Revenue from other sources
55 1B AR 1% 5S value-added services
— REMERLK A — Rental income from investment
properties 1,131 922

1,982,633 1,398,947

Wi BPREREE (BEHEERXRA B Note: For 5S value-added services that involve sale of
RHFEEE) ARMEHERBEL goods, including sales of furniture, car parking
LR HSS WERKME  REBR places and storage rooms, and brokerage services
XEHEREMERERG OB for property sales and leasing, the Group recognises
R A o revenues at point in time when the property owners
take possession of and accept the goods and

services.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORT
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group had transactions with one customer
exceeding 10% individually of its total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
one).

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised
in the future arising from contracts
with customers in existence at the
reporting date
For property management services and
value-added services to non-property
owners, the Group recognises revenue
in the amount to which the Group has a
right to invoice that corresponds directly
with the value of performance completed
to date. The Group has elected the
practical expedient for not to disclose
the remaining performance obligations
for these type of contracts. The majority
of the property management service
contracts do not have a fixed term. The
term of the contracts for consulting
services is generally set to expire when
the counterparties notify the Group that
the services are no longer required.

For 5S value-added services to property
owners that involved in community
value-added services and brokerage
services, they are rendered in a short
period of time and there is no unsatisfied
performance obligation at the end of
each reporting period.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORT
(Continued)

()

Revenue expected to be recognised
in the future arising from contracts
with customers in existence at the
reporting date (Continued)

For 5S value-added services to property
owners that involved in sales of furniture
in customised interior furnishing
services, the aggregated amount of
the transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations under
the Group's existing contracts as at 31
December 2022 is RMB14,695,000 (2021:
RMB15,887,000). The amount as at 31
December 2022 includes the interest
component of sales of furniture contracts
under which the Group obtains significant
financing benefits from the customers
(see note 1(s)). The Group will recognise
the expected revenue in future when the
furniture is delivered to and accepted by
the customers as follows:

20224 20214

2022 2021

AR Tt NG

RMB’000 RMB’000

20224 2022 — 14,459
20234 2023 10,074 1,428
20245 2024 951 —
20254 2025 3,670 —
14,695 15,887

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3 WARZE®HSE (@)

(i) RBESAHPEFEENEFEN
FEENWRARBRSERAER
R (E)

o K&K E S & AR 7 #95S 1
BRI E 72022612731
H 2REEAEEEFEYD
THRIR KRBT (KB D REST)
BHETHORZERBEAR
A R #1,141,101,0007T (2021
FARBZTIL) - THRIITAK
SEKNBEREHRSE B
RE K JE AR 80 78 B Uk

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORT
(Continued)

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised
in the future arising from contracts
with customers in existence at the
reporting date (Continued)

For 5S value-added services that involve
in the home decoration services, the
aggregated amount of the transaction
prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) under
the Group's existing contracts as at 31
December 2022 is RMB1,141,101,000
(2021: RMB nil). The following table

A shows the expected revenue of home
decoration services which will be
recognised by the Group in future when
the services are provided:

20224 20214

2022 2021

AR® T NG R

RMB’000 RMB’000

20234 2023 465,342 —
2024F 2024 631,236 —
20254 2025 44,523 —
1,141,101 —

ARAEFCHRERBAEHEES
TRERE - 2D EREAE
EsEsTREEERMY BEE
EREFIHEEXEREHEND
MR & T LAREE o

The directors of the Company have been
identified as the Group’s most senior executive
management. Operating segments are
identified on the basis of internal reports that
Group’s most senior executive management
reviews regularly in allocating resource to
segments and in assessing their performances.

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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(BR=BEBREIN

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3 WARDHHRE(E) 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORT
(Continued)
AEBENESTHEREERER The Group’'s most senior executive
HEBBEELERRERE I management makes resources allocation
BAEENEBRRER —BES decisions based on internal management
X% (MIEREBAERES functions and assess the Group's business
BRIEETE D) ETE o Ht performance as one integrated business
AEBREHRE -—BHAKLLEHE - Bt instead of by separate business lines or
W EZHEM D EHER - geographical regions. Accordingly, the Group
has only one operating segment and therefore,
no segment information is presented.
BHRAEBERBHRAEKB AR No geographical segment analysis is shown
BrX(BhkEP BEASEEIFERDD as all of the Group's revenue are derived from
ﬁ%ﬁ’]%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘qﬂ ' activities in, and from customers located in the
B it I #E 5| R & 5 E 5 AT o PRC and almost all of carrying values of the
Group’s non-current assets are situated in the
PRC.
4 HaWARHEMWKEFEE 4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET
INCOME
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARE Tt N i
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Hfth g A Other revenue
BT BY (BT &£ 3) Government grants (note (i) 7,653 6,676
ARG E R (#7427 (i)  Value-added tax deductible (note (i) 4,384 2,754
HA Others 3,089 516
15,126 9,946

() BEBEDIERBITTRERBRENE
BHBETBEIE -

iy AWENEERTIZEBFEANAEEET
ME AR N EREEROEIME -

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

(if)

Government grants mainly represent unconditional
discretionary financial support from local municipal
government authorities.

Value-added tax deductible mainly included additional
deduction of input value-added tax applicable to certain
subsidiaries of the Group.
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

HMWAREMK R FREE) 4 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET
INCOME (Continued)

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ T N iR
RMB’'000 RMB'000
His g A FH Other net income
HEME  BERRK Net loss on disposal of property, plant
ZEEFE and equipment (106) (524)
LAFEFABZEANEE Net realised and unrealised gains on
BN AREIR W R FER FVPL 160 408
SN EE IR 25 5 R Net foreign exchange gains 430 924
484 808
B B B R E 5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BREATFDEE IR (FTA) - Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
() MEWAFE (a) Net finance income
20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITE A B U A Interest income on bank deposits (44,593) (32,861)
BEPBRFERX Interest expense on advance
(H1 7#20) payments from customers
(note 20) 2,669 553
HEBEBNE Interest on lease liabilities
(K7 2E19(c)) (note 19(c)) 75 136
& R Net finance income (41,849) (32,172)
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5 BRBATFIE(E) 5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
(b) BEITERA (b) Staff costs
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARE Tt NG R
RMB’'000 RMB'000
HekEMEN Salaries and other benefits 738,272 552,039
FE G EIH K Contributions to defined
(K7 7)) contribution scheme (note (i) 56,138 49,773
794,410 601,812
A Included in:
HE KA Cost of sales 757,113 569,129
THHAX Administrative expenses 35,497 30,968
HEREHAX Selling and marketing expenses 1,800 1,715
794,410 601,812

AEENTENBARESRZ NG
75 T AT B IR K E R Y SE ARG
- AKENTENBARDELA
THRAHRENEEFEE TADLR
PRI U BB RKEA -

B FEEHER ARBEHEREMY
HZ LR EEBERKERNRD
EXRAME

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution
scheme administered and operated by the
local municipal governments. The Group’s PRC
subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated
on certain percentages of the employee salary as
agreed by the local municipal government to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits associated with
these schemes beyond the annual contributions
described above.
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BR 54 A U H () 5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)
(c) HtER (c) Other items
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB'000
& (KHat10) Depreciation (note 10)
— BB HWEK&ZE — owned property, plant and
equipment 5,704 4,219
—FRAEEE — right-of-use assets 1,387 1,035
—REME — investment properties 850 849
7,941 6,103
HESHAEAMBAOMY  Expenses related to short-term
leases 8,283 5,950
% SR BN & Auditors’ remuneration
— FEZERG — annual audit services 1,900 1,700
— EZHRB — review services 500 500
— H At R 7 — other services 214 85
e =D Cost of inventories 16,841 13,223

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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6 HKEEERHMEZEWZXRNFAE 6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

B STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
() REEEEREME2HEIKERA (a) Taxation in the consolidated
MY IE S statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income represents:

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB'000
B HA B 18 Current tax
PEEMRER PRC Corporate Income Tax 120,245 104,541
BEFEEETR Under-provision in respect
of prior years 1,695 86
121,940 104,627
I % B 1E Deferred tax
TR EBMES LD  Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (6,727) (6,430)
ANEBE B E QR FE Withholding tax on the profits of
B TR B (M 72 23(b)) the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
(note 23(b)) 26,883 —
20,156 (6,430)
142,096 98,197
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6 HGZEEZRHMZEWRERPFEBH 6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
(&) STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Continued)

(b) BiEMXERBAREIENS (b) Reconciliation between tax expense
FTAEZ ¥ iR and accounting profit at applicable
tax rates:

20225 20214
2022 2021
ARE T N
RMB’000 RMB’000

B B4 A R Profit before taxation 561,064 423,218

REERBRIEER Notional tax on profit before

MEERZ taxation, calculated at the rates
REAEGRHAF B Z  applicable to profits in the tax
BERBIA (KE20) jurisdictions concerned (note (i) 113,568 97,947
TR MBS 2 RIS 52 Tax effect of non-deductible
MR 2 HEA expenses, net of non-taxable
income 849 951
DG E RNE KA & D% Tax effect of share of results of
Epvd associates and a joint venture (857) (315)
RERKEA Tax effect of unused tax losses not
T IE B A recognised
ZRIERE 15 354
BRBERER Utilisation of tax losses previously
HIEEE not recognised (57) (826)
BAFERETR Under-provision in respect of prior
years 1,695 86
PEKBARRE Withholding tax on profits retained
FOEB BN by PRC subsidiaries (note (i)
(K7 &t (i) 26,883 —
EEMERY Actual tax expense 142,096 98,197
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(Rm=BHEAEIN
RERBEREMEEKRERNAEHR 6

6

[ 43s
("E)

(0]

(if)

REASHERABHRARBENR
ARRY  AKREBARMNEEHS
PEBEBARBENEFAMEH -

RESEIMA TN AEBENE QA
BARBEPHEAKT ARG HOUK
AR E A ATS X /16.5% © 2018
FHOFERMAS - AR HNOE
CEBATLERBMNBBRENTHE
H)— F (8.25%) s Fi + &8 T F B0 &
16.5% M - BN MEHHE A%
BvERRNTAEARETENGSH
WA MAEELEREBFGH
EE B8 (20214 : &) »

NEE R E B QR B E25% M B
KB ARBEH o ¥ MR2022F R
BNBECENETHEBAR 84
TRBEARBIEETHNEZRHE KA
o OB R % X12.5% (2021
F 5% FTEAERBR KA IR
20% (20214F : 20%) &) B = @& & 1
XFEHR BFHBARBIEET
BTEBAREIBEETHERER
ANEBD R R 1% BT E25% (2021
F:50%) T HEABERBUA - 1£20%
(20214F : 20%) B B R @ 4N 1 ZE P 15
i o

REFECEXMEVNEZEZRAER
MAI RIEBBRBEOLZHE
B Bt B200851 A1 H LA SR B HR &
MEmMSE  FPECEERETED
2 UER 9 B B R AR 10% 8Y B K AR TR
e - MABMBEBARNBEMSE -
EHREERNOKRSERBBNHER -
I 3t 50 AT R 0RO B RS HE RO FE
MEER -

7R2022F12A318 - A KB R R E
MBAR D RBEFENBMAEIN
H10% P EREBINHEERARE
26,883,0007T A IE LB 10 B (& © (2021
£128310: &)

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Continued)

(M)

(if)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Island and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

The income tax rate applicable to the Group’s
subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong for the
income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the
reporting period is 16.5%. A two-tiered profits tax
rates regime was introduced in 2018 whereby the
first HKD2 million in assessable profits earned by a
company will be taxed at half of the current tax rate
(8.25%) while the remaining profits will continue
to be taxed at 16.5%. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made as the Group did not
earn any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
during the reporting period (2021: Nil).

The Group’'s PRC subsidiaries are subject to
PRC income tax at 25%. For certain subsidiaries
recognised as a small profit enterprise in 2022, the
portion of annual taxable income amount, which
does not exceed RMB1 million, shall be computed
at a reduced rate of 12.5% (2021:12.5%) as taxable
income amount, and be subject to enterprise
income tax at 20% (2021:20%). And the portion
of annual taxable income, which exceeds RMB1
million but does not exceed RMB3 million, shall be
computed at a reduced rate of 25% (2021:50%)
as taxable income amount, and be subject to
enterprise income tax at 20% (2021:20%).

According to the PRC corporate income tax laws and
its implementation rules, dividends receivable by
non-PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises
are subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%,
unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements, for
profits earned since 1 January 2008. In respect of
dividends that are subject to the withholding tax,
provision for withholding tax is recognised for the
dividends that have been declared, and deferred tax
liability is recognised for those to be declared in the
foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2022, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB26,883,000 were recognised in respect of the
10% PRC dividend withholding tax that would be
payable on the distribution of the retained profits
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries (31 December 2021:
Nil).
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EE=HM

7

RIBEBEBREMEHIFE383MNIEELQF (B
BEERDEAMN ROE2HRENE

LA A R T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

EFHMNT Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:

BZ2022512B310 LEE
Year ended 31 December 2022
& RE
EEHd RENEF METAL BARTEET
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
AR%ETR AR%ETR AR®TR AR¥TR AR%ETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HIES Executive directors
RUR Zhu Lidong — 1,666 480 39 2,185
E5E Zhong Ruogin - 562 187 39 788
FHTES Non-executive directors
SRE Mo Jianhua — — — — —
2 Cai Xin - - — — —
RN Qi Jiagi (appointed on
(M2002E 1 June 2022)
6R1REZE) - - — = =
BU¥HTES Independent
non-executive directors
EGH Cai Haijing 100 — - - 100
TER Ding Jiangang 100 — - - 100
THE Li Kunjun 100 - - - 100
300 2,228 667 78 3,273

BIRGEEARAR FEME 2022
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(BRmBEHESI

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

7 EEHFME) 7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
BENEFENANBILEE
Year ended 31 December 2021
R
BNt REMEN BB RIRGTEMER @t
Salaries, Retirement
Directors'  allowances and Discretionary scheme
fees  benefits in kind bonuses contributions Total
ARETR ARETT ARETFT ARETTL ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HTEE Executive directors
RIRK Zhu Lidong - 1,581 480 34 2,095
ELE Zhong Ruogin — 495 205 34 734
FHTES Non-executive directors
Bz Mo Jianhua — — _ _ _
2z Cai Xin — — — — —
BUEYTES Independent non-executive
directors
255 Cai Haijing 100 - — — 100
TER Ding Jiangang 100 — - - 100
THE Li Kunjun 100 - — — 100
300 2,076 685 68 3,129
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(BR=BIEBEIN
REEFMAL 8

hE&aFMALES  —H(Q2021F
—RB)REE EFMRMEIRE - &
i PO 4% (20214F = /9 %) A 1 #9 3 B 42 3R
wm

LA A R T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
one (2021: one) is director whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other four (2021:
four) individuals are as follows:

20224 20214

2022 2021

AR®E T INGL R

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

4  ZBENMEWREF  Salaries, allowance and benefits-in-kind 3,930 3,455
B 15 7€ 41 Discretionary bonuses 1,651 1,752
RARET 2] 3 Retirement scheme contributions 152 103
5,733 5,310

/a5 (20214 %) & = # M A £ &9 B
TRNATHER :

The emoluments of the four (2021: four) individuals
with the highest emoluments
following bands:

are within the

£ %1,000,0007% 7T

1,000,001 7T &
1,500,000% 7T

1,500,001/ 7T &
2,000,000% 7T

Nil — HKD1,000,000

HKD1,000,001 — HKD1,500,000

HKD1,500,001 — HKD2,000,000

20225 20214
2022 2021

A A
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
4 4

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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9 BRER
BRERKE SR IZE £2022F12
A31B IEFEARRQ A # &= R R B FDE
A R #411,995,0007T (20214F : A R ¥
321,751,00070) & B 8 17 I 15 &9 o0 4 F
¥ B& #0276,407,000% (20214 : A0 # F
19 % 2276,407,000/% ) 5+ & -

B A 220229 M2021F12 A31H I F
B EEEENNBEITEIINRD
HERBESAFNEERSERERETR -

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

9

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per
share is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB411,995,000
(2021: RMB321,751,000) and the weighted average
number of 276,407,000 shares in issue during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: weighted
average number of 276,407,000 shares).

There were no dilutive potential shares outstanding
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021
and therefore the diluted earnings per share are
same as the basic earnings per share.
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10 REMEURNE - BERRE

(a) FRMEIEZH AR

10

e I ERAR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LA A R T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

BEERK
BAZRE HtnE 0% BER
RER%E RE  (RAXIE) Rt
Other
Office properties Sub-total
equipment, leased for  of Property,
furniture and Motor own use plantand Investment
fittings vehicles carried at cost  equipment  properties Total
AE¥TR  ARMTR  AR¥Tn  ARMTR ARETR  AR¥T:R
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB*000
BE: Cost:
RAONE1A1R At 1 January 2021 13,143 14,786 5,170 33,099 2,549 35,648
E Additions 6,407 3,28 1523 1,212 - 11,212
& Disposals (1,777) 6,408) - (8,185) - (8,185)
20215128318 At 31 December 2021 17,773 11,660 6,693 36,126 2,549 38,675
RE Additions 10,543 4154 586 15,283 - 15,283
il Disposals (1.499) (100) - (1,599) - (1,599)
Ex2H% e Effect of movements in
exchange rates - - 5 5 - 5
1022£128318 At 31 December 2022 26,817 15,714 1335 49,866 2,549 52,415
ZithE: Accumulated depreciation:
RONE1A1R At 1 January 2021 6,999 1121 4,384 18,504 425 18,929
R Charge for the year 2518 1,701 1,035 5,54 849 6,103
HERE Written back on disposals (1,032) (5,630) - (6,662) - (6,662)
20215128318 At 31 December 2021 8,485 3,192 5419 17,09% 1,274 18,370
ERx Charge for the year 3,128 2576 1,387 7,091 850 7,941
HERE Written back on disposals (795) (24) - (819) - (819)
Ex2H% e Effect of movements in exchange
rates - - 12 12 - 12
2022512318 At 31 December 2022 10,818 5,744 6,818 23,380 2,124 25,504
RERE: Net book value:
02212318 At 31 December 2022 15,999 9,970 517 26,486 425 26,911
B2021E 128318 At 31 December 2021 9,288 8,468 1214 19,030 1,275 20,305

BIRGEEARAR FEME 2022
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(BRmBEHESI
10 REWEURYE  BERR#EE) 10

(b) EREEE(BERENEUARY
% BEERE)

REEEEBRNIONEREEE
(BREBEBVMWEALRDE BER
RE)REFEEI>TMT:

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (including

investment property and property,
plant and equipment)
The analysis of the net book value of right-
of-use assets (including investment property
and property, plant and equipment) by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

20224 20214
12H31H 12H31H
31 December
2021
AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB'000
MIEERMEMY Other properties leased for own
(I EK AT ER) use, carried at depreciated cost
(K7 (1) (note (i) 517 1,274
KEME Investment properties, carried at
(LT E R AP BR) depreciated cost
— HEWEUBNMAE — leased properties to earn
WA (B ZEG) rental income (note (i) 425 1,275
942 2,549
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10 REVEURYE  BERKRE &) 10 INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

REZERODEERIEBEE> TN The analysis of expense items in relation to
i leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

20225 20214
2022 2021
ARMT T N
RMB’000 RMB’000

HHEBEESERE HH M Depreciation charge of right-
REEE(BRIEREWMZE  of-use assets (including
A% BENEME)  investment property and

TEZL: property, plant and equipment)
by class of underlying asset:
—MHEEANEMYE — Other properties leased for
own use 1,387 1,035
—REME — Investment properties 850 849
2,237 1,884
HEaEFB(MiE5a)  Interest on lease liabilities
(note 5(a)) 75 136
HERHEEFENAX Expense relating to short-term
(K7 7 5(c)) leases (note 5(c)) 8,283 5,950
FAHTRAEEEREREDE During the year, additions to right-of-
NEME BEEXBIOAER use assets (including investment property
A R #586,0007T (20214F : A R #& and property, plant and equipment) were
1,523,0007T) - % & # X B EHR & RMB586,000 (2021: RMB1,523,000). This
STHEMBERNNERCHEER amount primarily related to the capitalised
KA - lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.
FHEEEReRLAEE HEA Details of total cash outflow for leases, the
BEHSNZF1E 95 & R maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out
19(d) & Bif 5£22 © in notes 19(d) and 22, respectively.
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10 REWMEURYE  BERREE) 10 INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(i) HEBRANEMBYE (RITE (i) Other properties leased for own use
A5l BR) carried at depreciated cost
AEEERBEBEHHEEM The Group has obtained the right to use
MEBRIERRE - ZEHE other properties as its office through
B IR EARR — AR B2 34F - tenancy agreements. The leases typically

run for an initial period of 2 or 3 years.

AEERABLEHERLEERED The Group leases out investment properties

X o EHEVBRPER—RAIF - through operating leases. The leases typically

ZEHEMTRETEEENK - run for an initial period of 3 years. None of

the leases includes variable lease payments.

RBEEAHREIARELEEE Undiscounted lease payments under non-

BETHARBEREENRTREBAARE cancellable operating leases in place at the

B HA LA T R R B U ER reporting date will be receivable by the Group

in future periods as follows:
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARE Tt NS R
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
—FK Within 1 year 119 452

M2022%F12A318 - B EFE AR
AREREM ERREWERMR
EXSHORERRSRANR LY
BREMERMGE HELEREBEERR
BEREMEE -
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As at 31 December 2022, the investment
properties are valued by management to
be approximately the same as their carrying
amount using discounted cash flow techniques
based on contracted and expected cash
inflows and outflows arising from the
investment properties.



GE P BmRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

11 RBATNIKRE 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
TRESINFTEZERAEEEE BE The following list contains only the particulars of
HEENNBRRIFFIE - subsidiaries which principally affected the results,

assets or liabilities of the Group.

FeERRRLH
Proportion of ownership interest
At/ it/ rEE: ARRE AKEL
nA4R ifeERAE  CERARELER ERER kA BF IEfEEX TRRBRRERMA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  operation activities and legal status
ERERLT iE4BREE  TER/ZT 100% 100% — ZEEAREER REER ARLT
01756A28F TAEE
Robust Class Limited BVI Not applicable/UsD2 100% 100% —  BVIand Hong Kong,  Investment holding, limited
28 June 2017 China liahility company
BIRERE(ER) Bt TR/ 100% - 100% REEE RARR ARAT
BRAE 2017587288 10745314 & 70
Binjiang Service Group (Hong ~ Hong Kong Not applicable/ 100% - 100%  Hong Kong, Investment holding, limited
Kong) Co., Limited 28 August 2017 HKD107,245,314 China liability company
ANETNZERER A AR 120,000,007/ 100% - 100% NEEERH ARLA
DA (BINEER)  1997F4A0A AR 1200000007
Hangzhou Binjiang Property the PRC R\MB120,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 21 April 1997 RMB120,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited ("Binjiang PM") company
ANRIELESLER AR 51,000,007/ 100% - 100% BLREGRE ARAA
AL 200938188 AR1,0000007
Hangzhou Binjiang Real the PRC RMBI,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Brokerage and other service,
Estate Brokerage 18 March 2009 RMB1,000,000 limited liability company
Management Company
Limited
ANRRESER AT e AR 1,0000007/ 100% - 100% P& FERBRGANE AR
0165F9A127 AR 1,000,000 A7
Hangzhou Binrui Decoration the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% — 100%  The PRC Decoration service and sales
Company Limited 12 September 2016 RMB10,000,000 of furniture, limited liability

company
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SRE P BwRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

11 AMBATNERE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
At/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BE IEfEEX IEXBRERHA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
iNEEXERHER ik AR 5,000,007/ 100% - 100% EBRERGEEE AR
nA 01755498 AR5,000,0007 N
Hangzhou Binwan Home the PRC RIMB5,000,000/ 100% — 100%  The PRC Decoration service and sales
Decoration Company 9 May 2017 RAB5,000,000 of furniture, limited liability
Limited company
ANBIZERHER e AR 5,000,007/ 100% - 100% #E RBRE ARLT
QA 01755418 AR5,000,0007
Hangzhou Binjiang Home the PRC RIMB5,000,000/ 100% — 100%  The PRC Decoration service, limited
Decoration Company 11 May 2017 RAB5,000,000 liability company
Limited
iNEan%ERER e AR 5,000,007/ 51% - 5% HE NEEERE  BRAT
QA 2018174318 AE5,000,0007
Hangzhou Binhe Property the PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management, limited
Management Company 31 January 2018 RAB5,000,000 liability company
Limited
NERRERRAA E ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 100% #E RER  RIERRARE
2018523288 ARE1,0000007 BRAR
Hangzhou Zhuo Cai the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Advertisement design,
Advertising Company 28 February 2018 RMB1,000,000 producing and releasing
Limited service, limited liability
company
ERERNEREER hE AR 25,000,0007c/ 100% - 00% $E NEERRE  BEURE
B 2019558148 ARE25,000000T nREE BRAT
Ningbo Binrun Property the PRC RMB25,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 14 May 2019 RIMB25,000,000 services, sales of car
Limited parking places and storage
rooms, limited liability
company
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GE P BmRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

11 ANMBATNERE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
A1/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
NA4R AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BF IEfEEX TERRREALA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
NEENZERER e AR 2,000,000/ 45% - 15%  #E NEERRE  ARAA
K 2019584208 AR H2,000,0007
Hangzhou Binxin Property the PRC RMB2,000,000/ 45% - 45%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 20 August 2019 RMB2,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited (i) company
LB DZERRE  ©a ARH1,000,0007/ 100% - 100% P& NEERRE ERAT
ERAR 201910728 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Binyue the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Property Management 28 October 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited company
SERUNZERAR R ARH1,000,0007/ 100% - 100% P NEEERS BRAT
QR 2019410318 AR 1,000,000
Jinhua Binyue Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 31 October 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
KERENEEEAR e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% 48 NEERRE ERAA
R 01911718 AR 1,000,000
Yongkang Binsheng Property ~ the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 1 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
NERNXERER e ARH1,000,0007z/ 100% - 100% P NEEERS BRAT
R 201911548 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Binyao Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 4 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
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SRE P BwRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
11 AMBATNERE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
At/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BE IEfEEX TERRREALA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
BMERNZEEAR e AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% NEEERY BRAT
QR 2019811 358 AR 1,000,007
Taizhou Binyao Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 5 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
ENERNZERAR e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 100% #E NEERRE BRLA
Rl 201911788 AR 1,000,000
Wenzhou Binyao Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 8 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
nHERNEERER e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 100% #E NEERRE BRLA
Rl 201911818 AR 1,000,000
Huzhou Binyao Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 11 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
UBET-EVESS2- S ARH1,000,0007/ 100% - 100% P NEEERE BROA
Rl 20198114158 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Binhui the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Property Management 15 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited company
MEENXERER ik AR1,000,0007z/ 100% - 100% %8 NEERRE ARAT
Rl 20198118158 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Binfeng Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 15 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
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GE P BmRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

11 ANMBATNERE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
A1/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BF IEfEEX TERRREALA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
NERNXERER e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEERRE  ARAA
K 20198115158 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Bintai Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 15 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited (i) company
NEENZERER e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEERRE  ARAA
R 2019118158 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Binhao Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Property Management 15 November 2019 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited company
BEERNZEEER e ARH1,000,0007/ 100% - 100% P NEERRE ERAA
R 2019124258 AR 1,000,000
Wenling Binrui Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 25 December 2019 RMBI,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
iMEENRERER e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% 48 NEERRE ERAA
R 2020%4A8H AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Binging Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 8 April 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited fiabllity
Limited company
NEENZERAR e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% 48 NEERRE ERAA
R 2020545148 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Binsha Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 14 April 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
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SRE P BwRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BrZBEBPEI - LAREITIIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
11 AMBATNERE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
At/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BE IEfEEX TERRREALA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
iMEENEERER e AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% NEEERY ARAA
QR 00F4A24R AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Binxing Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 24 April 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
MERNXERER e AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% NEEERY  ARAA
Rl 202055498 AR 1,000,007
Hangzhou Binfeng Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 9 May 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
MELERNZERER  ©E ARH1,000,0007/ 100% - 100% P NEEERE BROA
Rl 202055A148 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Binkang ~ the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Property Management 14 May 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited company
MBELEANZERAR  ©E AR 1,000,007/ 100% - 100% P8 NEEERS BRAT
Rl 202054198 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Binchao the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Property Management 19 May 2020 RMBI,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited company
MHELEENEERER 98 AR %1,000,0007/ 100% - 100% %A NEERRE ARAA
Qe 2020554198 AR 1,000,007
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Bintao the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Property Management 19 May 2020 RMBI,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited company
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GE P BmRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1M1 REBAFINKRE(E)

1"

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
A/ i/ 31 PRI
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BF IEfEEX TERRREALA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
FHETNZERER e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEERRE EROA
R 200%7778 AE1,0000007
Pinghu Binhe Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 7 luly 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
MEENE REER T 10,000,000 1/ 100% - 100% #E NXERRE BRAA
R 202057A13A 10,000,000 ¢
Hangzhou Bingang Property the PRC HKD10,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 13 July 2020 HKD10,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
ANEBEHERAT ) A ARH1,000,0007/ 100% - 100% %8 FEEBRE ARAT
202058128 AK1,0000007
Hangzhou Binzhi Decoration the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% — 100%  The PRC Home decoration services,
Co,, Ltd. (ii) 12 August 2020 RMB1,000,000 limited liability company
BNEENRERER G ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #%E NEEERS ARLA
R 0059A1H ARH1,000,0007
Suzhou Binlan Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 1 September 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited fiability
Limited company
NEREENRERAR 8 ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEEERH  ARLA
R 20059738 AR1,000,0007
Hangzhou Chunan Binrun the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Property Management 3 September 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited company
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(BrZBEBPEI - LAREITIIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
11 AMBATNERE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
At/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BE IEfEEX TERRREALA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
NEENRERER e AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% NEEERY BRAT
Rl 20205104158 AR 1,000,007
Hangzhou Binxin Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 15 October 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
NERNZERER e AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% NEEERY BRAT
Rl 20205104198 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Binyu Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 19 October 2020 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited company
MBLELNEERRR  PE ARH%22,000,0007/ 51% - 51%  4E NEERRY ERAT
Rl 20205118248 A& 22,000,007
Hangzhou Xiaoshan Binhong ~ the PRC RMB22,000,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management
Property Management 24 November 2020 RMB22,000,000 services, limited liability
Company Limited company
MERNZERAR ik AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% %8 NEERRE ARAT
QR 02152A098 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Binhang Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Company 09 February RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Limited 2021 company
MERNZERAR e AR 1,000,000/ 100% - 100% NEEERY BRAT
Rl 021%4716R AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Binao Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Co,, Ltd. 16 Apr 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited fiabllity
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GE P BmRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

11 ANMBATNERE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
A1/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BF IEfEEX TERRREALA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
NERNZERER e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEERRE  ARAA
R 021%47168 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Binya Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Co,, Ltd. 16 Apr 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited fiabllity
company
NEENZERER nE MR 3,000,007/ 51% - 51% P NXERRE BRAA
R 0215547A AR H3,000,0007
Hangzhou Binze Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management
Management Co, Ltd. 7 May 2021 RNB3,000,000 services, limited liability
company
LERRBINXERAR AR 1,000,000/ 51% - 51% NEERRE  ARAA
R 01554178 AR 1,000,000
Shanghai Hupin Riverside the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management
Property Management Co, 17 May 2021 RMB?,000,000 services, limited liability
Ltd. company
MERNRERER ik ARH5,0000007/ 51% - 5% HE NEERRE ERAA
QR 021554178 AR 1,500,000
Hangzhou Binhang Property the PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management
Management Co, Ltd. 17 May 2021 RMB1,500,000 services, limited liability
company
LEEELDERRAAR  1E AR %5,000,0007/ 51% - 51% P NXERRE ARAA
R 202156A24H AR 5100007
Shanghai Binhua Logistics the PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 24 June 2021 RMB510,000 services, limited fiabllity
Ltd. company
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LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEBREIN

1M1 REBAFINKRE(E)

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
At/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BE IEfEEX TERRREALA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
SSRREINZREAR AR 3,000,000/ 55% - 5% HE NEEERY  ARAA
QR 2021564258 AR 3,000,007
Yiwu Jiantou Binjiang the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 55% - 55%  The PRC Property management
Property Service Co., Ltd. 25 June 2021 RMB3,000,000 services, limited fiabllity
company
MERNXERER nE ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEERRE  ARAA
QR 2021567298 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Bintong Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Co, Ltd. 29 June 201 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
company
MERNXERER nE ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEERRE BRAA
QR 2021564298 AR 1,000,000
Hangzhou Bintong Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Co, Ltd. 29 June 201 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
company
MERNRERER e AR 20,000,007/ 51% - 51%  fE NEERRE BRLA
Rl 021574288 A& 4,000,007
Hangzhou Kangyang Property ~ the PRC R\MB20,000,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management
Management Co, Ltd. 28 July 2021 RMB4,000,000 services, limited liability
company
EREANXERER nE ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 100% #E NEERRE BRLA
Na 02158A308 AR 1,000,000
Ningbo Binlun Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Co, Ltd. 30 Aug 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
company
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

11 ANMBATNERE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
A1/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BF IEfEEX TERRREALA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
ANRZANXERARD o ARE10,0000007/ 51% - 51% NEERRE  ARAA
i 021594158 AK%1,0000007
Hangzhou Binwangchao the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management
Property Management Co, 15 Sep 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability
Ltd. company
iMEENLERER e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEERRE BRAA
QR 202159A18H AKE1,0000007
Hangzhou Binwen Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Co,, Ltd. 18 Sep 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited fiabllity
company
iMEEN%ERER e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEERRE BRAA
R 202159A28H AE1,0000007
Hangzhou Binyu Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Co,, Ltd. 28 Sep 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited fiabllity
company
NEBNRERER e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEERRE ERAA
R 2021594298 AE1,0000007
Hangzhou Binjin Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Co,, Ltd. 29 Sep 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited fiabllity
company
INERNZERAR e ARE10,0000007/ 51% - 51% NEERRE ERAA
R 2021594308 AKE10,000,0007
Hangzhou Binchen Property the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management
Management Co,, Ltd. 30 Sep 2021 RMB10,000,000 services, limited fiabllity
company
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(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
11 AMBATNERE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
A/ i/ $502  ARMT BMELA
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BE IEfEEX TERRREALA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal

Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status

MERNRERER e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 100% NEEERY BRAT
QR 2021%10A15H AR 1,000,007

Hangzhou Binlan Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Co, Ltd. 15 0ct 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability

company

ANEZHRARUEER ARE1,0000007/ 51% - 5% 4 NEEERY ARAA
REERAT" W0F10868 ARHE1,000000%

Hangzhou Binxiangaiyi Future  the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management
Community Operation 15 0ct 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited fiabllity
Service Co,, Ltd. company

iNERNLERER ik ARH3,0000007/ 51% - 5%  HE NEEERS BRAT
Rl 2021%10A15H AR 500,0007

Hangzhou Binfeng Property the PRC RMB3,000,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management
Management Co, Ltd. 15 0ct 2021 RMB500,000 services, limited liability

company

NEENRERER nE ARE1,0000007/ 66% - 66% R NEERRE BRLA
Rl 2015108208 AR 1,000,007

Hangzhou Binjia Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 66% - 66%  The PRC Property management
Management Co, Ltd. 20 Oct 2021 RMB1,000,000 services, limited liability

company

AR THED X R nE ARH5,0000007/ 51% - 5%  HE NEEERS BRAT
BRAD 202517288 AR$3530,0007C

Hangzhou Binjiang Chengnan ~ the PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management
Property Management 28 Jan 2022 RMB3,530,000 services, limited liability

Service Co,, Ltd.

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
11 RHEEBATRINKRE (&)

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
A1/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BF IEfEEX IEXBRERLA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
ANRENRERRE e AR1,000,0007/ 100% - 100% P NEERRE  BRAT
RRAD 200253188 ARE1,0000007
Hangzhou Bingian Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 18 Mar 2022 RMB1,000,000 services, limited fiabllity
Ltd. company
NERNRERER e ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEERRE  BRAT
QA W02F4A278 AK1,0000007
Hangzhou Bingi Property the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Co,, Ltd. 27 Apr 2022 RMB1,000,000 services, limited fiabllity
company
MERNRERER nE ARE1,0000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEERRE  BRAT
QA 002544288 AK1,0000007
Hangzhou Binxiang Property ~ the PRC RMB1,000,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Co,, Ltd. 28 Apr 2022 RMB1,000,000 services, limited fiabllity
company
MRENNZXERER  ©E ARE10,0000007/ 40% - 0% hE NEERRE ERAA
2l ¥(i 2022578208 AE4,300,0007T
Hangzhou Binchanghe the PRC RMB10,000,000/ 40% - 40%  The PRC Property management
Property Management Co,, 20 Jul 2022 RMB4,300,000 services, limited liability
Ltd. (i) company
NEENZERRH E AR#1000007/ 100% - 100% HE NXERRE BRAA
BRAD 00257758 ARE1000007
Hangzhou Binshuo Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 25 Jul 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited liabllity
Ltd. company

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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SRE P BwRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

11 AMBATNERE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
At/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BE IEfEEX IEXBRERHA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
iNEBNXERRH nE ARH100,0007/ 100% - 100% P NEEERS BRAT
BRAD 00257758 ARE1000007
Hangzhou Binyang Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 25 Jul 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited fiabllity
Ltd. company
ANECHEERRE E ARE1000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEEERY  ARAA
BRAD 002577278 ARE1000007
Hangzhou Binren Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 27 Jul 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited fiabllity
Ltd. company
AMRRNXERRE E ARE1000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEEERY  ARAA
BRAD 002577278 ARE1000007
Hangzhou Binyuan Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 27 Jul 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited fiabllity
Ltd. company
NERNXERRH E ARE1000007/ 100% - 100% #E NEEERY  ARAA
BRAD 2002587088 ARE1000007
Hangzhou Binlian Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co,, 08 Aug 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited liability
Ltd. company
INEENZERRH E AR%1000007/ 100% - 100% 4E NXERRE ARAA
BRAR 002584118 ARE1000007
Hangzhou Bincui Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co,, 11 Aug 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited liability
Ltd. company
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

11 ANMBATNERE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
A1/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER 2 BF IEfEEX IEXBRERLA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal
Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status
NERNXERRE P ARE1000007/ 100% - 0% #E NEEERY  ARAA
RRAD 20295028 ARE1000007
Hangzhou Binyue Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co,, 02 Sep 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited liability
Ltd. company
NERNZERRH ki AR%1000007/ 100% - 100% 4E NXERRE BRAA
RRAR 20295028 ARE1000007
Hangzhou Binging Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co,, 02 Sep 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited liability
Ltd. company
MESNZERER hE AR#1000007/ 100% - 100% HE NXERRE BRAA
BRAD WRE0RNE ARE1000007
Hangzhou Binkun Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 110t 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited fiabllity
Ltd. company
NRENXERRH P ARH100,0007/ 100% - 100% P& NEEERS BRAT
BRAD WRENANE ARE1000007
Hangzhou Binxin Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 10 Nov 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited fiability
Ltd. company
NRENXERRH P ARH100,0007/ 100% - 100% P& NEEERS BRAT
BRAD WRENANE ARE1000007
Hangzhou Binxuan Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 10 Nov 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited fiability
Ltd. company

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

11 AMBATNERE (&) 11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
FERERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
AL/ i/ A&Ez  BARE BMEAR
PEER AMBEREE  EROREUER ERER =2} k% IEREEX IEXBRERHA
Place and date of  Registered/ Group's Held Held  Principal
establishment issued and effective by the bya country of Principal

Name of company fincorporation paid-in capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary ~ operation activities and legal status

IHBENEERRH E AR%1000007/ 100% - 100% FE NXERRE ARAA
BRAD W02ENMA0E AREI00,000T

Hangzhou Binsheng Property ~ the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 07 Nov 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited fiabllity
Ltd. company

NERNXERRH E ARH100,0007/ 100% - 100% P NEEERS BRAT
BRAD 0021808 AREI00,000%

Hangzhou Binteng Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 09 Nov 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited fiabllity
Ltd. company

MERDZERRH nE AR%1000007/ 100% - 100% P NXERRE ARAA
BRAD 0021808 AREI00,000%

Hangzhou Binjing Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 09 Nov 2022 RMB100,000 services, limited fiabllity
Ltd. company

ANERNEERRE g ARE100,0007/ 100% - 100% R NEEERE ARAA
BRAD WRENABE ARE0T

Huzhou Binjing Property the PRC RMB100,000/ 100% - 100%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 25 Nov 2022 RMBO services, limited fiabllity
Ltd. company

MESnZERRH nE AR%500,0007/ 51% - 51% @ NXERRE ARAA
BRAD WENANE AR¥0n

Hangzhou Binlin Property the PRC RMB500,000/ 51% - 51%  The PRC Property management
Management Service Co, 29 Dec 2022 RMBO services, limited fiabllity
Ltd. company
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

1M1 REBAFINKRE(E)

(if)

(iii)

MEZSTREERORERAR - AAZ
RXFREHRSZ - ZERANESELH
THLARR XCROR ©

BIE2019F0A6 M M - REBE A EHIE
FE0%RER AMEZETENTBE R
EERRBAENE Bt ZEBHY
AR H2019F9A6E AR EBHBNF A
ARSIk o

R E2022F7A1SB & W &k - AN & B AT
EEC0%RER AMYZEROIE
REBREBERESE - At ZEED
5 E R 8202278208 B AR EEH B
BRETBRE -

HE2022F12A3BEFE  AEB AR
B AR®570,000c it MBI EMER A
A) UK BB BB ONA0% AR M - Bt - WU B I 5
HAERARKRARNEENZENBRA -

2022912 A318 » AN & B I & F 7] if
BARBAFERESNAEBRLEHE
BENBRETREMEHE RER -

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

*

0)

(i)

(iii)

All the PRC entities are limited liability companies. The
English translation of the company name is for reference
only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

Pursuant to the agreement dated 6 September 2019,
the Group could control 60% voting rights of the
board of directors, and could control the financial and
operating policies of the entity. Accordingly, the entity’s
financial information was consolidated into the Group’s
consolidated financial statements from 6 September 2019.

Pursuant to the agreement dated 15 July 2022, the Group
could control 60% voting rights of the board of directors,
and could control the financial and operating policies of
the entity. Accordingly, the entity’s financial information
was consolidated into the Group’s consolidated financial
statements from the establishment date of 20 July 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
acquired additional 49% equity interests from the
non-controlling interests in Hangzhou Binzhi Decoration
Co., Ltd. for total considerations of RMB570,000.
Hangzhou Binzhi Decoration Co., Ltd. became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group thereafter.

As at 31 December 2022, no subsidiaries of the
Group had material interest that non-controlling
interests had in the Group’s operating results and

cash flows.

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

12 REE QRN RE S 12 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

20224 20214F

2022 2021

AR¥ T NG R

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

FEETEREKK Costs of investment, unlisted 8,450 8,450

DGR A (OB R B Share of post-acquisition results,

net of dividends (518) (3,161)

7,932 5,289
TERBEEARAEERBE AF(—KRIELT The following list contains associates of the Group,
TEERBEVEMSRE) DER: which are unlisted corporate entities, whose quoted

market price are not available:

AR M2B31AEEE
EXHY i/ RENERER
FHRRPA Place of BRTER  Effective interest held
BeELRAR Form of business  incorporation Registered/ by the Group IEER
Name of associates structure and business issued capital At 31 December Principal activities
2022% 0211F
2022 2021
nHEERZREERAR  ERA HE AR 30,000,000/ 20% 0% RERERRH RE
AR 30,000,000 IXRANEERNZ
ERRH
Hangzhou Zhibin Technology Incorporated the PRC RMB30,000,000/ 20% 20%  Technology development
Service Company Limited RMB30,000,000 and service, provision
of leasing and property
management services

of industrial parks

INERNXERERAA  ERA G AR 5,000,000/ 49% 9% NEERRE
AR 5,000,000
Hangzhou Zhihe Property Incorporated the PRC RIMBS5,000,000/ 49% 49%  Property management
Management Company Limited RMBS5,000,000 services
* ZETRERAERAA RAIZHNE * These PRC entities are limited liability companies. The
HBEH2E  ZFZFRRNEABBIUSRX English translation of the company name is for reference
KRR © only. The official name of these companies is in Chinese.
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14

e I ERAR MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

AT RRIE 13 PREPAYMENTS
2022%F 20214
2022 2021
ARE Tt NG S
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEEMHENMNKIE Prepayments for purchase of
software 4,709 3,270
BEWMEENRIE Prepayments for purchase of
properties 3,716 —
8,425 3,270
=& 14 INVENTORIES
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR Tt NG R
RMB’'000 RMB’000
BIEEENYE N F) Properties held for re-sale (note) 146,014 78,797
B #E o Consumables 1,485 234
147,499 79,031
B - FIEFBENYEELASEREEFEE Note: Properties held for re-sale represent right-of-use assets

mEESkENENERREEE -

purchased by the Group for re-sale.

BIRGEEARAR FEME 2022

relating to car parking places and storage rooms
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(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

15 8HEE 15 CONTRACT ASSETS
20225 20214F
2022 2021
AR% Tt NG R
RMB’000 RMB'000
EHEE Contract assets
KEBITRERBEE L Arising from performance under
home decoration service
contracts 9,344 _
B ERE Less: loss allowance (280) —
9,064 —
AEENRERBEHBENRERE - The Group’'s home decoration service contracts
—BEINERE  AFEZEAREHED include payment schedules which require stage
PEERIT 3K - FTE R IBTE AR 3R &5 R e payments over the decoration period once
FF—FREAE - milestones are reached. All of the amounts are

expected to be billed within one year from the end
of the reporting period.
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GE P BmRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(=B EAZEIN
EZRHMERRE

LA A R T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR®E Tt INGL R
RMB’'000 RMB'000
=Y 3l Trade receivables
—8=x — third parties 253,161 110,298
— @A — related parties 62,326 64,170
3548 174,468
BB P REGRIE R ERE Less: Allowance for impairment
of trade receivables
—%=F — third parties (49,246) (31,306)
— B — related parties (2,271) —
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (51,517)  (31,306)
BoEWNRIE KR EEEMAE  Trade receivables, net of loss
allowance 263,970 143,162
fE B 5 H b I IE Other receivables from related
parties 1,524 1,061
Ze MIERNFKIE Deposits and prepayments 41,196 20,545
REEZEHOAR Payments on behalf of property
owners 14,410 5,070
BRTEE Advances to employees 2,357 1,277
H b 8 W IR Other receivables 20,014 2,275
343,471 173,390

BRUFAETRHREHRDEXEE RS
RIFXTRERGAERNKLABRR -

R T ES M AR KRRIAT R E
RIBZFEH

HRE B o 18U B
A Bt 5£28(d) ©

Trade receivables are primarily related to revenue
recognised from the provision of property

management services and value-added services to
non-property owners.

Trade and other receivables from related parties are
unsecured and interest-free. Details of the amounts

due from related parties are set out in note 28(d).

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

16 BEFK Hitb EUYFRIE (&)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(a) ERER 2 HT (a) Ageing analysis
REREHAR  ERKRABRAEH As at the end of each reporting period, the
RNk & 5 EW K IB R EZHN ageing analysis of trade receivables from third
B E = kBB 5 EWKRIE parties and related parties based on the date
BREC T T of revenue recognition and net of allowance
for impairment of trade receivables, is as
follows:
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR® T N R
RMB’000 RMB"000
—F R Within 1 year 257,725 141,436
—FEMF 1 to 2 years 6,245 1,726
263,970 143,162
EBASBEERRMNEMFR Further details on the Group's credit policy are
A M 5 25(@) ° set out in note 25(a).
(b) ESEWKERE (b) Impairment of trade receivable

B2 5 WK IR B B R R E & 18
TERBEERLE  RIELEE
=AU B R IE Y R RE ME AR R - AR Ut
BATHREBEEEREZEK
R (R BT RE13)(3))

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Impairment losses in respect of trade
receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against
trade receivables directly (see note 1(j)(i)).



GE P BmRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BR=BIEBEIN

16 EZRkHitbBUWRIE(E)

(b) EZEWFIERES)

B 5 & WK AR F R E & E

LA A R T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
(b) Impairment of trade receivable
(Continued)
The movement in the allowance for impairment

BENT of trade receivables during the year is as
follows:

20224 20214

2022 2021

AR® Tt NG B

RMB’'000 RMB'000

1A At 1 January 31,306 19,175
BEERZBEBIE Impairment loss recognised 20,211 12,140

EMisE ATk E 2 58 Uncollectible amounts

written off — 9)

12 A31H At 31 December 51,517 31,306

ERASBEEERREEBRM
BohEMERRERSIBREER
R 8 E % & 15 M FE25G) ©

Further details on the Group’s credit risk
management policy and credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables are set out in note

25(a).
EHER 17 TIME DEPOSITS
20224 20214
2022 2021
ARE Tt NG R
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
REBABBE=EAN Time deposits held at the bank
RITE HTF R with original maturity over
three months 415,910 397,177
BOETAIRBEEINEE Less: Amount included under
“current assets” (132,133) (243,019)
283,777 154,158

720229128318 - RE BB @@ =@
ARRITEBHTFRENEN F3.35% %
3.85% 2 f& (20214F : 11 F0.93% £4.13%
ZFEﬁ) °

As at 31 December 2022, the time deposits
held at the bank with original maturity over
three months have annual interest rates
ranging from 3.35% to 3.85% (2021: from
0.93% to 4.13%).

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BRmBEHESI
18 ZRHMITHEER

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

18 RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR¥ T NG R
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
REEZGURBMNERS Cash collected on behalf of the
(Htat21) property owners’ associations
(note 21) 39,476 56,970
=R &l 7 K Restricted deposits 18,536 50
58,012 57,020

AEBEEMEEERBEFFRERE
TEZEWRBRE -BRETEZSAE
FHAFAKRRITERL, AEERREZ

The Group has cash collection on behalf of certain
property owners’ associations in its property
management service business. Since certain

SHRRLEEZEFRITERP

19 RERASEEY
(a) RERREFEYWERE:

property owners’ associations often face difficulties
opening bank accounts, the Group opens and
manages these bank accounts on behalf of the
property owners’ associations.

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR Tt NG S
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FER% Cash on hand 129 48
RITHRE Cash at bank 1,330,974 689,095
REIBA=[EA AR Fixed deposits held at the bank
RITE TR with original maturity within
three months 676,800 273,623
2,007,903 962,766
o SR IR 1T 4 B Less: Restricted bank balances
(Kt it18) (note 18) (58,012) (57,020)
1,949,891 905,746
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GE P BmRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
19 RERREZEEY(H) 19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB'000
B %% BT F) Profit before taxation 561,064 423,218
AT HIBMEL A Adjustments for:
BRI E (M i750) Amortisation and depreciation
(note 5(c)) 7,941 6,103
Sal (RN P DI Share of profits less losses of
&S 18 associates (2,643) (1,357)
SIEE & B ENE Share of profits less losses of a
BB 18 joint venture (786) 96
& W A (KT iE5() Finance income (note 5(a)) (44,593) (32,861)
A& KA Finance costs 2,744 689
EAFEFABRNE Net realised and unrealised
IR AR W FRE gains on FVPL (note 4)
(K1 7t4) (160) (408)
HEME - BER&E Net loss on disposal of property,
2 EEFEN T4 plant and equipment (note 4) 106 524
E5RWFERENE Impairment losses on trade
EZREERE receivables and contract
assets 20,491 12,140
R Foreign exchange gain (426) (814)
HEESEY: Changes in working capital:
EXES il Increase in inventories (68,468) (26,987)
EREERESREM Increase in contract assets and
JE U SR TE 12 0 trade and other receivables (199,636) (89,839)
B 5 Kk EMEN IR Increase in trade and other
N payables 178,491 22,539
S BaEE N Increase in contract liabilities 761,039 35,595
X PRl 3R & 182 0 Increase in restricted cash (992) (10,559)
KEMERe Cash generated from operations 1,214,172 338,079

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

19 RekRRSEEWE) 19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising
from financing activities
The table below details changes in the
Group's liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's
consolidated cash flow statement as cash
flows from financing activities.

(c) MEFTHELENEBYHR

TRHALRAEERELTHINEE
2 BRReNFREY-
RMETHHELENABERRESR
EFARAKRREREBNAEBELER
ERERERTOERSBRERD
FISRERENEIE -

HEEE ENSRE @t
Lease  Dividend
liabilities CEVELI Total
ARETn AR¥TR AR%® TR

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

(Hf£#22)

(note 22)
RW2022F181H At 1 January 2022 1,705 — 1,705
RERSRELE: Changes from financing cash flows:
ENEEREEARDS  Capital element of lease rentals paid (1,896) — (1,896)
ENEERSFEED  Interest element of lease rentals paid (75) = (75)
87 e Profit distribution —  (111,059) (111,059)
MERBELMELELE  Total changes from financing cash flows (1,971)  (111,059)  (113,030)
Hig#5: Other changes:
ERFIHEEN Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
MEBREM new leases during the year 586 — 586
EXZHMyE Effect of movements in exchange rates 59 - 59
FMERZ (M i#506) Interest expenses (note 5()) 75 - 75
B2 B (4 #24(c) Profit distribution (note 24(c)) — 111,059 111,059
HiZEEE Total other changes 720 111,059 111,779
#W2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022 454 — 454

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(B 2 5 4598 % 4 -

LA A R T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)

HEBERE ERRE m@at
Lease Dividend
liabilities payable Total
ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Hiit22)
(note 22)
R021F181R At1lanuary201 2505 . - 2,505
RERSRERE: Changes from financing cash flows:
ENHEEREEADS  Capital element of lease rentals paid (2,323) — (2,323)
ENEERSFBEED  Interest element of lease rentals paid (136) — (136)
MBS E Profit distribution —  (218,628)  (218,628)
BERERELH@E  Totel changes from financing cash flows | (2459)  (218628)  (221,087)
Hitr 25 Other changes:
FERFAEER Increase in lease liabilities from entering into
MEBREM new leases during the year 1,523 — 1,523
FERI (W it5a) Interest expenses (note 5()) 136 — 136
ME D B (W 7 24(c) Profit distribution (note 24(c)) - 218,628 218,628
Hth@gem Total other changes 1,659 218,628 220,287
202112 A31H At 31 December 2021 1,705 — 1,705
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(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

19 BERRESEEYWE) 19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Continued)
(d) HERSREHETE (d) Total cash outflow for leases
HEFARESREXRTPHNCEHELE Amounts included in the cash flow statement
AR for leases comprise the following:

20225 20214
2022 2021
ARE T N
RMB’000 RMB'000

BERgERERE Within operating cash flows 8,283 5,950
BR@ERER=E Within financing cash flows 1,971 2,459
10,254 8,409
20 EHEE 20 CONTRACT LIABILITIES
202245 20214
2022 2021
AR®E T NG R
RMB’000 RMB'000
EHNEE Contract liabilities

TR RS Property management services 163,153 114,717

JE % E 2 E RS Value-added services to non-
property owners 1,115 3,868
5SIE{E AR 1% 5S value-added services 743,070 25,045
907,338 143,630
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EHEEBE®) 20 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
EREEEBENYMEERE  BHRSE Contract liabilities represents prepaid property
ENRE=ZFWIRHNTERERNEMRS management fees, consulting services fees,
BRRERBKE - customised interior furnishing services fees and
home decoration services fees received from third
parties.
EREEZEHUT: Movements in contract liabilities were as follows:
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB’'000
PATHE B & & Balance at 1 January 143,630 107,482
BHRERFRNE (HTEA Decrease in contract liabilities
BHBR)MELANGHNEE as a result of recognising
A revenue during the year that
was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of
the period (142,194) (105,315)
B P 1R AR 7% A9 T8 U 5K 8 Increase in contract liabilities
R A EE N as a result of receipts in
advances of provision of
services 903,233 140,910
HRBREFNERAZIER Increase in contract liabilities as
R ON=REg: Pl a result of accruing interest
expense on advances 2,669 553
12 A31H 8 4 82 Balance at 31 December 907,338 143,630

i —FU LR BV ANEDEK
XA A K ¥558,848,0007T (20214 = A

The amount of receipts in advance of
performance expected to be recognised

K #1,368,0007T) ° as income after more than one year is
RMB558,848,000 (2021: RMB1,368,000).
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(BR=BEBREIN

21 EZREMENKE

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20224 20214F
2022 2021
Mt it AR¥ T N R
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
2 S ENNRIA Trade payables 130,399 59,165
— =7 — third parties (@) 128,232 57,178
m— — related parties (b) 2,167 1,987
Hith fE A BFE% 75 X8 Other payables due to related (b) 54,511 23,959
parties
birqca Deposits (c) 43,479 44,915
HEMN BB R EA Other taxes and charges payable 81,742 14,852
JEFtTE R HAEF  Accrued payroll and other benefits 174,467 165,812
REEZ WM Cash collected on behalf of the 39,476 56,970
WRE(Hit18) property owners’ associations
(note 18)
B % £ WELA BG B Temporary receipts from property (@) 116,929 122,304
I8 owners
H b B 5018 & Other payables and accruals 31,442 7,888
& &t 3R 1A
672,445 495,865

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

BERNABEITEREDERBELENE
NHRE - BEHEEEMEHRORE TR -
SEREERS -

FEN AT E S R H A EMRIE T B &K
Whes - EBRNBAHIRENFBEIRN
7£28(d) - E & - A K #52,979,0007T (2021
F: AR #21,887,0007T) & # BF Bt 75 UEAY
ENBHAREE  BaE—FABR AWK
)\o

ReEREKEHRAAEIRBMOBEEERE
we -

BRERBEIZEREAROBEEATMET
W ABEXERLE X TR IMNRE
BERSKEEMER -

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

Trade payables mainly represent payables arising from
sub-contracting services including cleaning, security,
landscaping and maintenance services provided by
suppliers.

Trade and other payables due to related parties are
unsecured and interest-free. Details of the amounts due
to related parties are set out in note 28(d). Among which,
RMB52,979,000 (2021: RMB21,887,000) are prepaid
consulting services fees received from related parties and
expected to be recognised as income within one year.

Deposits represent miscellaneous decoration deposits
received from property owners during the decoration
period.

Temporary receipts mainly represent utility charges
received from property owners on behalf of utility
companies and other charges received from property
owners for the payment of deed tax on behalf.
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21 BESRHEMEBMNRIEE)
RERESHR ERBZEHNENE
T RE=ZTNESENFRAREK DT
mes

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade payables due to related parties and
third parties, based on invoice date is as follows:

20224 20214F
2022 2021
ARE Tt NG B
RMB’000 RMB'000
ME AW ik Esk Within 1 month or on demand 128,466 56,498
3fE A& E1F A After 3 months but within 1 year 308 28
1A Over 1 year 1,625 2,639
130,399 59,165

22 HESE 22 LEASE LIABILITIES

M2022612A831H - HEBBEREZIUAT
T AEE

At 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were
repayable as follows:

2022 20214

2022 2021

AR¥T T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000
—FN within 1year 45 = 1,586
—FHEMFR After 1 year but within 2 years — 119
454 1,705
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23 ZEMBRRROFBH 23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) mEMBMRREZRAVINPHIER (a) Current taxation in the consolidated
1B statement of financial position
represents:
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR%S Tt NG R
RMB’'000 RMB'000
PECERESH PRC Corporate Income Tax
M1A1H At 1 January 69,876 60,943
18 = B Charged to profit or loss 121,940 104,627
FEMNR Payments during the year (91,252) (95,694)
M12A318 At 31 December 100,564 69,876

300 BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022



GE P BmRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

23 GZEMBRRARVAEBH (&) 23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

() EXEHEEEREBERAN (i) Movement of each component of
HoNEH deferred tax assets and liabilities
Riza BRI KRAERN The components of deferred tax assets
AEEMEERIEEEMNA recognised in the consolidated statement
BER D K Z BT - of financial position and the movements

during the year are as follows:

BREUHAE AREREWN
RehEEL ffREEE: ELARER
REEE REEE Eithx FEER RNBOH @it
Withholding
Impairment tax on profits
loss on trade Depreciation retained
receivables charge of by the
and contract Accrued  right-of-use  Group's PRC
assets  Tax losses expenses assets  subsidiaries Total

ARETTE  AREBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000

M0NEIBIR At 1 January 2021 4,794 - 7715 i - 12,520
RBRFTA/(NB)  Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 3,033 50 3,569 (222) - 6,430
120215128318 At 31 December 2021 7827 50 11,284 (211) - 18,950
RBHFTA/(NB)  Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 5123 pIy) 1277 85 (26,883) (20,156)
2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022 12,950 9 12,561 (126) (26,883) (1,206)
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(BR=BEBREIN

e MBAARRROAER (@)

(b) CHRIEEHREEERER: (B)

(i) BEAaMBRRRHEE

23

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognised: (Continued)
(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated
statement of financial position

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR® T AR®ETF T
RMB’000 RMB"000
RERE TN R AERBIE  Net deferred tax asset
ETHIE R EFRR recognised in the
consolidated statement of
financial position 25,677 18,950
RErE BRI KRAERKIE Net deferred tax liabilities
T IE BEFE recognised in the
consolidated statement of
financial position (26,883) —
(1,206) 18,950

(c) RERELEHEEE
WESATEHEBERELEHIEE
=

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of the following items:

APAB AR R — HE

Unused tax losses-PRC

20224 20214
2022 2021

AR Tt NG
RMB’000 RMB’000
1,225 1,452

1B HE M EE 1) B 5 8 = 5 BUR - R
2022%12A318 A £ B I & 5t
ETHWEB AR KRS MAHIEEE®
R AR ¥306,0000T IE IEFEE E
(20214 : A R#363,0007T) - £ %
RE REARBREZERERER
TR AT 88 B AR 2K FE BR B R R AT 4 4K

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 1(g), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets of RMB306,000 (2021:
RMB363,000) in respect of unused tax losses
of certain subsidiaries as at 31 December
2022. The directors consider it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
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LA A R T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BIEBEIN

mEMBARRKROAER (@)

() RERELBIREE(B)

(d)

RBFBENBERERER KBRS
HANRERRBEABBRBRAT

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c)

Deferred tax assets not recognised
(Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC, the unrecognised tax losses at the

FEEm end of the reporting period will expire in the
following years:
20224 20214
2022 2021
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’'000 RMB'000
20234 2023 13 13
20244 2024 9 9
20254 2025 11 13
20264 2026 1,132 1,417
20274 2027 60 —
1,225 1,452
AEAELEHEEE (d) Deferred tax liabilities not

20229128318 » I £ 7 K &
ERPBEENE QR DIRKEFF
B A R #954,090,0007T (20214 :
A R #808,717,0007T) M 7B % fit
MI0% FEKRBFENFTHERAR
#£95,409,0007T (2021F : A R ¥
80,872,0007T) #Y iE & % 18 & & -
FRERAEBEZEHZEMBRRA
BEREK MBEETEZEMEA
BETEERARKRDIK °

recognised

Deferred tax liabilities of RMB95,409,000
(2021: RMB80,872,000) were not recognised
in respect of 10% PRC dividend withholding
tax that would be payable on the distribution
of retained profits of RMB954,090,000 as at
31 December 2022 (2021: RMB808,717,000) in
respect of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it was determined that
it was probable that these profits would not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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(BR=BEBREIN
24 EX - EEREE

AEEGAESSARSEH Y
5 6 BB R 45 04 40 B BE BB R
ARBEBE - ADTERNMET
48 B0 5 7 £ 41 % 4 O R P o 2
HEHIATX

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:

NS & KRG EE EifE BENA @it
Company Share Share Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
Wi ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTT  ARETT  ARET:R
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Waun) a0 K200
note 24(b)  note 24(@)ij)  note 24(d)ii)
R202151718 #4 ¢ Balance at 1 January 2021 181 412,534 2,917 6,633 422,265
011FHEREEH:  Changes in equity for 2021:
EERXAMRFESE  Total comprehensive income — — (6,543) 1,355 (5,188)
for the year
BAFEHNSRRE  Dividends declared in respect 24(c)(i) — (131,632) — — (131,632)
of the previous year
KEEHMERMRE  Dividends declared in respect 24(c)() — (86,996) — — (86,996)
of the current year
R2021%125318%  Balance at 31 December 2021 181 193,906 (3,626) 7,988 198,449
2022F1R18M&R  and 1January 2022
2025H%5%28:  Changes in equity for 2022:
ER2ENHELSE  Total comprehensive income - - 12,559 (2,148) 10,411
for the year
BAFEHNSKIRE  Dividends declared in respect 24(c)fi) — (111,059) — — (111,059)
of the previous year
20221243184 Balance at 31 December 2022 181 82,847 8,933 5,840 97,801

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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24 EX - RERRE(E) 24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(b) B=& (b) Share Capital
EE R A Authorised share capital
202§ 2021F
2022 2021
RAEE £ Rt & 8 £H
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
(TR) Txn (Th) Txn

(000) Us$'000

('000) US§'000

AR Authorised:
SREFMBR0.0001XT  Ordinary shares of US$0.0001 each 1,000,000 100 1,000,000 100
EBITRA Issued share capital
2022% 20215
2022 2021
gt kin &8
No. of No. of
shares shares

(FR) AR¥TR
(000) RMB'000

BRTRARMHEER: Ordinary shares, issued
and fully paid:

MATARI12A318 At 1 January and 31 December 276,407 181

(TH) ARETR
(000)  RMB'000

276,407 181
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24 EX - RERBRE(E) 24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(i) XEEENEAQATEZERE (i)
ZRE:

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year:

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR T ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
RERAPE BN KB  Interim dividend of HKD
HEH R ER BB AL nil per share after the
THE T (2021F : 4R A consolidated statement of
REBI AR R R B EIE A interim financial position
AR B8 IR IR 17 0.379 date (2021: Interim
& 7T) dividend of HKD0.379
per share after the
consolidated statement of
interim financial position
date) — 86,996
e BRRKRABE Final dividend of HKD1.001
BRIRNOREAKRES per share proposed
B% 3% 19 1.0017%8 7T (2021 after the consolidated
F-REEEVBMARREXR statement of financial
HA 1% 2 3% Ik 1 89 R B AR position date (2021: final
B K 150.47378 L) dividend of HKD0.473 per
share proposed after the
consolidated statement of
financial position date) 247,197 106,055
247,197 193,051

REEHKRRE
B~ RS AR B B

#® i B R 4t
BERHREHRRERSAEE -

The final dividend proposed for shareholders’
approval after the end of the reporting period
has not been recognised as a liability at the

end of the reporting period.
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24 EX - FERBRE (B 24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(i) tEMBREFERSRQARE (ii) Dividends payable to equity
#RR REACHERIK shareholders of the Company
fTHREWMT: attributable to the previous

financial year, approved and paid
during the year:

20225 20214
2022 2021
AR®T T N
RMB’000 RMB’000

PERNSHE LIRS £ Final dividend in respect of
B EFERAKRBEFR/  the previous financial year,

B 190.4737% 7T (20214 - approved and paid during
NEIRR BB AR 7 0.564 the year, of HKD0.473 per
&) share (2021: final dividend
of HKDO0.564 per share) 111,059 131,632
() BHEE (i) Share premium

B aEBEEEEEITRMOE Share premium represents the difference
EAEEEGE KRR WED between the total amount of the par
FIiSRIBFRE2HEMNERE - value of shares issued and the amount of
BEREFEREE  ARTA the net proceeds received from the equity
I A0 4 B BR Al 2 R AR BT AR shareholders. Under the Companies
NE R EEREER Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
AIKKREEBRE  KARAHEAE premium account of the Company is
ﬁ% TREEFXEBRAERN distributable to the equity shareholders of

BEINBER - the Company provided that immediately

following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company would be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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(BR=BEBREIN
24 BX - HERKRE(®)

(i) PEEEME

EERBIOEKBETBEEREN
BMAIROER AR AKX K&K E
B 2R (% F 28R E
RA)MABERMAZT
EERBHBEINEIME
N HI50% ° % f+# B B B A
RARERAEADIRBKEZ

AI{EH

WEBERMS

it E AN E925%

(iii) E X%

PE 5 B 75 P B KR 3R 50
BB RRBEEELEN
FrBESNEZR - ZHEEDIR
M) PTEL D B B AT B

B2 3E o
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VR TE f# A
FA 1R 8 4 2 A 4R TR R B 1B (1
B) BAEBmSRERAA
RERBERLOEDHER
HRTRGH R ABEBRRN
REHRBETIORZEENE

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

PRC statutory reserves

Statutory reserves is established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules
and regulations and the articles of
association of the companies comprising
the Group which are incorporated in the
PRC until the reserve balance reaches
50% of their registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity
holders.

For the entities concerned, statutory
reserves can be used to cover previous
years' losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital in proportion to
the existing equity interests of equity
holders, provided that the balance of
the reserve after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the entity’s registered
capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements
of operations outside the mainland China.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in
note 1(t).
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24 EX - RERKRE @

AEBEAEENETEZERZARE
REBRBELENEN  UEBY
RGIELERBKERBOTE
RIAEEKADNGSRE BB A
AR R R E R K A H M F %88
ERMENZE - REIE2021F 22022
FNRANBILEFE ASEHEE
FHRRFETE -

AEBNERARBERRTER
LFHERBERAEMREEFEY
MAKENEDEBEDEITRA
BEMBREMES -

ARAEEZTETHRMAERNRERE - R
BEERE BFEEEEANAR
HERNERAEHENER  EB
IR RR - BEITH R R EITHE S
SEOREES  FHHEEEER
8 -

RE@EHREIA - A& B E @S
SNERHE DN E AN R K o

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged throughout the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2022.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
bank loans and lease liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents, and equity of the Group,
comprising issued share capital, retained
profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the
capital structure periodically. Based on the
operating budgets, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital and balances its overall
capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing
debts.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed

capital requirements throughout the reporting
period.

RISEEAR AR FERE 2022
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25 HMBERER
%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁA AR K NE
IR ARENERRBBREFES -

AEENREERRER 2R SEE
Y EHER BAFEAABENE
MEEANEZG R EMERFKIE - KE
BHEHMAGERRESREMBEMNIEA -

AEBAYNZFEREAEESE
BZERBRAEBNSBEREREER
REEHIE AR T

AEEMNEERBREIEANEAR
RITRE  THEXR - BEHSREM
ERFEREHNEE - BEED
EHEEREK UHEETER
WZEEERR -

AEBEMRTHSLEREFERE
ERAMEZNESREERA - B

Fﬁﬁ&ﬁ AT EEALEAE
AERAR ARG RELBAN
TETE DDA EE R
A

AEBIBRREAFEAAER
MERMEENEVERBANELD
TREBET AKERR  NW
THATEEAEERRERZS
BYEMEEELEMES -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arise in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

Financial assets of the Group include cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits, financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss and trade and
other receivables. Financial liabilities of the Group
include trade and other payables.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at bank, time deposits, trade and other
receivables and contract assets. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The cash at bank and time deposits of the
Group are mainly held with well-known
financial institutions. Management does not
foresee any significant credit risks from these
deposits and does not expect that these
financial institutions may default and cause
losses to the Group.

The Group’s wealth management products
classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are issued by well-known
financial institutions. The Group considers that
there is no significant credit risk and these
wealth management products did not generate
any losses during the reporting period.
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25 BBEREBREEE)

mﬁ@ﬁ% XRR(BR/REFRLEMN

X KREZEWMAF - BRET
RENEM)ME  AEEDFE
ENELEECHELAEEER (B
REBARR) REREAEDRE
BEAFENZFTRERWRIENTA B
EEBEXAKR Bt RIEH
W B R TR MR IR TR R B 1R
B

RESERURBERENEEMS -
AEERBEERFEMENEER
BEEOS BB EERRGTE G
ERERE AKERR EEE
BEHEVEEEREMREE
MPERERGEARBEEBRE
ANiE TR BERBOEMNH - %A
BAIE M X B RS (W0 w4 AR #%5) B9
BHRWHIAME %5 EUWE
—WHMMHW%ﬁ REBDF
E-ERELHEELENMAEM
ER(BERKERE) REFEY
EHEEEREAENZSTRER
ENEREEBERETIKR - ARAK
SENBEEEERRELRBETT
REFLHBNBERAFTEAZE
BWEERERENFTENBERRERFR
W ERBMETON  RAKHE
TREFEHEE— TR -

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

In respect of other receivables including
deposits and prepayment, payments on behalf
of property owners, advances to employees
and others, the Group has assessed that the
expected credit loss rate for these receivables
is immaterial under 12 months expected losses
method based on historical settlement records
and looking-forward information (including
the economic environment). Thus no loss
allowance provision for these receivables was
recognised during the reporting period.

In respect of trade receivables and contract
assets, the Group measures loss allowances
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. The Group
considers that a default event occurs when
significant decrease in property management
and other service fee collection rate and
estimates the expected credit loss rate for each
reporting period. For trade receivables relating
to non-property management services, such
as consulting services, these receivables are
normally settled within 6 months. The Group
has assessed that the expected credit loss
rate for these receivables is immaterial under
lifetime ECLs based on historical settlement
records and looking-forward information
(including the economic environment). As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience
indicates significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on ageing information,
which is analysed base on the date of revenue
recognition, is further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

BIRGEBERAR FEHRSE 2022
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25 BBEBREEE)

AEENEFHERK WA ER
BE=ZFEEARETNHBER

M2022F12A3108 - AEEBENE S
JfE U FR I8 A R#22,066,0007T (2021
F12A318 : A K #13,484,0007T)
BRIEERBE-  HFERKE
$EHEFHBE R R E - B
H BEENHESS ERRIE
TEER AT Yz [ o @& Ik - 12022612 A
3TAERE S EWFRIBREE R E R
% A A R #17,976,0007T (2021412
A318 : AR #13,484,0007T) °

20224128318 0 1B & & @ &
BESRERRBREHNEERR
MTHBEMEEREREHBEAR
#£33,821,0007C (2021F : A R ¥
17,822,0007T) c TR AR E B E 75
N7 A AN EE2022F K20214F
12ANBEZEBREREHNEE
MEERKMBEHEERIS -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk
from third parties in view of its large number
of customers.

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s trade
receivables of RMB22,066,000 (31 December
2021: RMB13,484,000) were individually
determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that
were in collection difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables
is expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific allowance for impairment of trade
receivables of RMB17,976,000 (31 December
2021 RMB13,484,000) were recognised as at
31 December 2022.

At 31 December 2022, the allowances for
doubtful debts of RMB33,821,000 (2021:
RMB17,822,000) were additionally made
based on a collective group basis assessment
by ageing of trade receivables and contract
assets. The following table provides
information about the Group’s exposure to
credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and
contract assets by using a provision matrix as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

2022512531 At 31 December 2022 HEEE FEELE ERAR
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
ARBTR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000
FNXERREK Non-property management services
MER Within 1 year 3% 144,580 4,337
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, uass0 A3
NEERRE Property management services
MER Within 1 year 14% 142,211 19,816
1525 1102 years 52% 12,904 6,658
BiEF Over 2 years 100% 3,010 3,010
158,185 29,484
E Total 302,765 33,821
R20215124318 At 31 December 2021 RHERX REELE ERER
Gross
Expected arrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
AREFT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
FNEERRE Non-property management services
MER Within 1 year 3% 15,802 474
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e
NEEBRH Property management services
MER Within 1 year 15% 73,059 1,121
1224 1102 years 60% 4315 2,589
HRE QOver 2 years 100% 3,638 3,638
81,012 17,348
@t Total 96,814 17,822

BIRBEBMARAT FERE 2022 313



314

SRE P BwRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

25 BBEBREEE)

BEHEBEIEZBE-FNERE
BRERAE - BFLESRERBAA
(FEZBEEEHBEKE) EEMN
MER - BRI RAE B H &Y
REERAFEHNEERRZE
RoMMWAHE -BEREASERR
FREMERREMELENEER
RgeE— P ECEEHRHE
165215 »

AEBEMERERERTARE
MRBE SRR Bk EH
BamRALRE  UEERKER
MEHAE UEREEFTENR
CRERBTESHBER LK
EEMNEMAFRESERNNAZE
KB LDmeEEHEREHOR
HELFEK-

TERBRIAEERSTHREN RS
BMEBENSRTEOHR  DHRES
MARFTRBEGREEBRBRERED
MEREFEOFEMK - KWEFE
AR REHROBITHERGE)
RAEEAER M &KE B YA

=
Ean
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. Further quantitative disclosures
in respect of Group's exposure to credit risk
arising from trade and other receivables and
contract assets are set out in note 16 and 15.

The Group’s management reviews the liquidity
position of the Group on an ongoing basis,
including review of the expected cash inflows
and outflows and maturity of loans and
borrowings in order to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions and/or from other Group
companies to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of each
reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end
of each reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:
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25 BEREBERE(E) 25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(b) RBEER(E) (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

R2022512A31H
As at 31 December 2022
EONRERRERE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
1ER Y BR1E BR2E RM2B31AK
REX B2 {B5E R BRSE 5 REE

More than
More than 2 years Carrying
Within 1 year 1 year but less but less More than amount at
orondemand than2years  than 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000

25 I £t fE 4 Trade and other payables

»E 672,445 - - - 672,445 672,445
HEEE  Lease liabilities 464 - - - 464 454
672,909 - - — 672,909 672,899
R01E12A318
As at 31 December 2021
ERLEN Rk ohe
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
15 M3 Bl BE RM2A31RE
BER [B2F ERE BiBhE h HHE
More than
More than 2 years Carrying
Within 1year 1 year but less but less More than amount at
or on demand than 2 years than 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

25 & £ {8 Trade and other payables

R 495,865 - - — 495,865 495,865
HEAR Lease liabilities 1,637 12 - - 1,758 1,705
497,502 12 - - 497,623 497,570
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

AEBEMNMNERBEITERBE SR The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
ReZEEY XRFRe  THRF from cash and cash equivalents, restricted

HNEHERIE -

cash, time deposits and lease liabilities.

TRFIIAEEFE SR TERNF The following table details the interest rate
EAR - profile of the Group's interest-bearing financial

instruments:

2022£12A31H 2001512 831H
At 31 December 2022 At 31 December 2021
ERAE BRI
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% AE®TT % ARETT
% RMB'000 % RIMB'000

Bef®eMIA:
RESBRRA=AARRN
TREAW 1)
REBBFARA=MEAN
ROEBERWHE)
HEgRWzL)
FBREERIA:
RORERRBHRTES
(W)

Fixed rate financial instruments:
Time deposits held at the bank with original

maturity over three months (noze 7). 3.35% ~ 3.85% 415,910  0.93% ~ 4.13% 397,177
Fied deposits held at the bank with original

maturity within three months (note 79) ~ 3.00% ~ 3.50% 676,800 330% 273,623
Lease liabilities (note 22) 4.75% (454) 475% (1,705)

Variable rate financial instruments:
Cash at bank and restricted bank balance
(note 19) 0.25% ~ 1.75% 1,330,974 0.30% 689,095

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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25 BBEREBREEE)

AEBRFAEDTAEHABRED
F {7 [ 5 I % 4 B T A (] 10 5 B9
FRRAEAM) - Bt BED
ARERDTEYEES -

RBEHRR R AKERENTH
MEFETESR TAMRE KB
EEEVARIRIRS)ELED
RenEMNERERBOMNS A&
EreEmEANERR  REZ
RITASMNEFAR TG ARBES -

BEMs  AKEOMRERIL
E N

AEBETEBBUAFAEENE
ERSAVMEERFAENEEMS
BIHMER R -

ARw - REHBARHESHE AR
LREEMBRABAINNEEEYRE
T ZFERRETEUBITES It
Sh o BRBITTER T NEHE
RRBETRITNEZTZESH AR
PR e

AREBEREMNEARNINGEEER
AR MEBTEEAARERL
2 FitAKER A/ INER RS
K o

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

The Group does not account for any fixed rate
financial instruments, such as time deposits
and lease liabilities, at fair value through profit
or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate
at the end of the reporting period would not
affect profit or loss.

In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative financial instruments held by the
Group, such as cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash, at the end of the reporting
period, the Group is not exposed to significant
interest rate risk as the interest rates of cash at
bank are not expected to change significantly.

Overall, the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risk is not significant.

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through sales and purchases that
are denominated in a currency other than
the respective functional currencies of Group
entities.

The Company, the BVI subsidiary and the
Hong Kong subsidiary’'s functional currency
is Hong Kong Dollar (HKD). Their businesses
are principally conducted in HKD. In addition,
as the HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange
rates between the HKD and the USD to be
insignificant.

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries’ functional
currency is RMB and their businesses are
principally conducted in RMB. Therefore,
the Group considers the currency risk to be
insignificant.

BIRGEEARAR FERME 2022
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(i) EAFEFAENEREER

&\
»FERE

TRENAEBERELEEE
ERBERARFTEZERT
EWMRFE XREBHH
BREERBBRELAFENE
P E =l A FERRDHE -
RFEFERH T2 REE
BT FT R A B 2 A R

MhEEUEEEMNT:

— HFMAMEE-EERS
—RANBAREBFEZ
NFE R EERH
HRAEEXBBEEXE
B2 WE R REHEE

Z¥E

— F-RAEBE-ERF=
L ABBESFEZR
FE BAFAE—
Al z Al BE A BUE
BRBEEREKRTAR
RWABE TABE
WA BEEEZRED

BEIE 28 ABUE

— FZRHEE-EREX
THERBABEE
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

()

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the
fair value of the Group’'s financial
instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs
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25 BIKEMRERE) 25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(i) ZBAFEFENEREER (i) Financial assets and liabilities
E8&(E) measured at fair value (Continued)
N FERFE Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

R202512831BH A FETE

FERUATRA
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2022 using

RANE
128318

AV -5 EZ45 LY
Fair value at
31 December

2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

ARBTR AE®TR INL R AR®TR
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

GEMATEHE: Recurring fair value
measurement:
gE: Assets:

BATEHABR —#EER  FVPL— treasury products - - - -

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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25 HMERERERE) 25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(i) BAFEFENEREER (i) Financial assets and liabilities
=K 4¢P measured at fair value (Continued)
INFERF(E) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

RONENANANAFEHE

FERUATRA
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2021 using

R2021E
128318

AYE -5l ERA E=4H
Fair value at
31 December

2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

ARBTR AE®TR INL R AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000

BEMATEGE: Recurring fair value
measurement:
gE: Assets:
RATEAARE —HEER  FVPL— treasury products (hote ()
() 20,044 - - 24,044

(i) ZELMAERETamEE (i)  These financial assets represent certain
BN MEER  YRF treasury products issued by certain financial
MEMHERNEE - ZFTE® institutions and were purchased at the end
REFAREBMNATFEBEER of the reporting period. Their fair values
BEE - approximates to their carrying amounts as at

respective year end date.
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25 MK RERERE) 25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(i) BAFPEFENSREERARE
(%&)

2 FERE(E)

FRARE=FRFEAEHRED

()

Financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The movements during the year

BT in the balance of these Level 3
fair value measurements are as
follows:

2022%F 20214F
2022 2021
AR®T T ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
BAFEFAEZ: FVPL

M1A18 At 1 January 24,044 —
BB RIEA Payment for purchases 102,000 113,700
HEFB/HRIE Proceeds from sales (126,204) (90,064)

BRAFEFABRNEER Net realised and unrealised
AR FEE gains on FVPL 160 408
12 HA318 At 31 December — 24,044

(i) YFELFEINRZ2EMEE
REENLQFE

ViG-S 7 A NI =l N
Mem T AMEMmMEE2022F K
2021F12A3THMAFELTEE

(ii) Fair value of financial

assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair
value

The carrying amounts of the
Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised

RER - cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.
26 HABME 26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

R2022F12A31B - AEB T EE M E K
HARBE-

The Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2022.

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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27 EiE 27 COMMITMENTS
B £2022F 1284318 » WA R B B @& Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
BENOREEEREAENT 2022 not provided for in the financial statements

were as follows:

20224 20214

2022 2021

AR¥ T N R

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

HUNEBEREZEEDITTLD Contracted for acquisition of
intangible assets 4,015 4,851
28 EXBEBAERS 28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

RigaMBEmERHEMEHEENEE In addition to the related party information
BRASN - REBFIZ T3 E K@ A disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
R e statements, the Group entered into the following

significant related party transactions.

REmEHRA - BTRIZEFTHRXHHE During the reporting period, transactions with
RAEBBARS the following parties are considered as related

party transactions:

BBENESR 8 EAEENER
Name of related party Relationship with the Group
B & B A4 AR A IR AR R
Mr. Qi Jinxing Controlling shareholder of the
Company

MMNBIREZEKRBERRAREIZERIREMERR - B4 - e BErRIERRKRR
Hangzhou Binjiang Investment Holding Limited (“Binjiang Mr. Qi Jinxing is a controlling
Holding”) and its subsidiaries, including: shareholder

HWVEIFEREWBAA:
(i) Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries (1)1 /& /T & & & &
BDBERRRREF AR,
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

MEBEHHE &8

Name of related party

RAKE N EEF

Relationship with the Group

MMERXBEBRAT
Hangzhou Qinmao Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMEIEEZXFR QA
Hangzhou Xingtang Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMEIEXBR AR
Hangzhou Xijiang Real Estate Co., Ltd.

NGRS EHERE AR QA

Hangzhou Baohong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMEBEERFR QA
Hangzhou Star Yun Property Co., LTD

MMBLEEREFRRQA
Hangzhou Bingin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMEXFEHEREBR QA

Hangzhou Binwen Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMEBEREEREERQF
Hangzhou Bohang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MM TIEHEREFR QT

Hangzhou Jingjiang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMEEEEBR QA
Hangzhou Binyuan Industrial Co., LTD

MMNAIEBREXBERAQA
Hangzhou Xijiang Henggiao Real Estate Co., Ltd.

BT R ) B A7)
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT RR BB & R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R B B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B L1 R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R B0 B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT IR O B A )
Associate of Binjiang Holding

T EEAR AR FERSE 2022
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BMEBEHNHE S8

Name of related party

e o) R

Relationship with the Group

MMNBEYREEAERQA
Hangzhou Shenrui Logistics Technology Co., LTD

MMEEEHERZEFRRA
Hangzhou Binfeng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMNEFTEHEREBRAA

Hangzhou Binyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMNEREHWERZEFR QT

Hangzhou Bin ‘an Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMNEEEHEREBERAA

Hangzhou Binbo Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

BHMNERFHERERR DR

Suzhou Binyuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMNEREXBRAA
Hangzhou Binyao Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMNEZEHMERZEAR AT

Hangzhou Binjian Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMNERFEHERZEAR QA

Hangzhou Binchen Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMNERFEHEREFR QA

Hangzhou Binshao Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MM EHEIEEEREGRAF
Hangzhou New Huangpu Binshun Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

BT R 6 Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT 125 R 6 Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT B A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 AR 6 Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT 12 AR B Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 R B Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 AR B Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 AR 6 Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT 12 AR 6 Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 AR 6 Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT RS AT
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BEBEHHE &8

Name of related party

= S o) R

Relationship with the Group

MMNEERBEXRRAA
Hangzhou Xinda Olympic Sports Real Estate Co., Ltd.

EERREHERBERAR
Deqing Jingsheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

EMNENEHERBEFR QA

Taizhou Binfan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

BNHFREEBR AR
Wenzhou Zhetong Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMNE R LEXZEGRAF
Hangzhou Guotai Century Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMEEHANIEE X BR AT
Hangzhou Lvcheng Zhezhi Property Co., LTD

MMAEEXFRAA
Hangzhou Tongda Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MM EREREHEREAERAT
Hangzhou New Huangpu Binzhi Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.

CEAREFHWERZEGRAR

Jinhua Binlan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMERFEHEREBRAT
Hangzhou Xingyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

NAE E b E B R A A
Hangzhou Cinda Real Estate Co., Ltd.

BT R ) B A7)
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT RR BB & R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R B B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B L1 R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B LR IR B B & R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT 2 B ) B 2 R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B LR IR B B & 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

T EEAR AR FERSE 2022
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

BMEBEHNHE S8

Name of related party

e o) R

Relationship with the Group

ERERFHERBEARAR

Yiwu Binsheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

MMELEKFEERRDA
Hangzhou Xijiang Shenjianong Real Estate Co., Ltd.

mMeAEHEREFR DG

Hangzhou Jinsheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

BEMARKEBEEBRAA
Yueqing Liangrong Real Estate Co., Ltd.

MMAREHERERRA

Hangzhou Tianyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd

MMNERFHEMZEAR AR

Hangzhou Binyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd

AU & J5h B 3 E R B B PR R A
Hangzhou Binhong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd

EEEHEEXERBRAT
Yiwu Hengzhen Real Estate Co., Ltd.

mEEEEMEREERAA
Wenling Binhong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd

BNEFERMERERRAF

Wenzhou Jianianhua Real Estate Development Co., Ltd

MMFEXEXRER AR
Hangzhou Zhongxi Real Estate Co., Ltd.

BT R 6 Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT 125 R 6 Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT B A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 AR 6 Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT 12 AR B Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 R B Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 AR B Bt R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B T2 AR 6 Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT 12 AR 6 Bt R 7]
Associate of Binjiang Holding

VBT Y2 B Y B 2 R )
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BLYE IR HY Bt 2 1~ A
Associate of Binjiang Holding
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

MEBEHHE &8

Name of related party

RAKE N EEF

Relationship with the Group

MMBXFEEMBEFR QA

Hangzhou Yuewen Real Estate Development Co., Ltd

MMNERFEHEREBR QA

Hangzhou Chuntian Real Estate Development Co., Ltd

AIEREMEREARAA
Zhejiang Hengxi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd

ERBEKEEBRAA
Ningbo Bincheng Real Estate Co., Ltd

MMNEFEHERZERR AT

Hangzhou Binxiu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd

MBI EHEFMERR AR

Hangzhou Binxin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd

MMEHEXEFRAA
Hangzhou Binming Industrial Co., LTD

mMNEBEERZERR ARG

Hangzhou Bingiao Real Estate Development Co., Ltd

MNEEMEEEBERAQF
Hangzhou Zhihe Property Management Co., LTD

MM BRI & BRT B R A A
Hangzhou Zhibin Technology Service Co., LTD

BT R ) B A7)
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT RR BB & R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R B B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

B L1 R ) B 2 A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

BT R ) B R A
Associate of Binjiang Holding

ZNE S ok AN

Associate of the Group

ZNE S ok AN

Associate of the Group

ARABZREXEFREHRSE -
AIRE TR AR SORR -

>l:l\l\ll\flr

N The English translation of the Company name
is for reference only. The official names of

these companies are in Chinese.

T EEAR AR FERSE 2022
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(BRmBEHESI
28 EXBHMARS ()

(b) TEEEBAENE

AEBTE2EREAEME (B
ENARREFHFKIAGHWK 7
B RETESFHMET(HD
MY FEBPTHR B AT

LA A RE T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Key management personnel
remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7
and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

20224 20214
2022 2021
AR Tt INGE R
RMB’'000 RMB'000

TE& - - FEBREWEHN Salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind 9,354 6,963
) 15 TE 4L Discretionary bonuses 3,608 3,012
RARET 2] Retirement scheme contributions 346 240
13,308 10,215

FMABEEATE T AR M &E
5(b)) °

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(see note 5(b)).
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(BR=BIEBEIN
28 EXBEMARS ()

ZAN TR O o

MERXZXZFBNT:

LA A R T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

R & H Particulars of significant transactions between
the Group and the above related parties
during the reporting period are as follows:

2022% 20214
2022 2021
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

MEEERERARE:
—BIERREWER
—éi%?&ﬁ%%

— BTHERKEMHBELG

—EIEROBEAT
— AKENBELT

RTERYE - BRBKARE :
—BIEREENE
—BIRENHENE

— BIIHERE S

— AEERNHE AT

MEFECSLRBEBRAKRE
—BIEBRRERBA

—BIRERENEBAR

— ‘}’Efﬁé?&&ﬁi\@m%ﬂﬂ

—BIZRNOEE DA

AATARHERM:
—BIFEREMBELR

ERUATRRMERRSE:
—BIFEREMBELR

Property management services income
from:

— Binjiang Holding and its subsidiaries
— Binjiang Real Estate and its

subsidiaries 36,573 38,826

— Binjiang Holding and its other
subsidiaries 61 74
— Associates of Binjiang Holding 4,099 3,761
— Associates of the Group 15,460 3,061

Pre-delivery services, consulting services

income from:
— Binjiang Holding and its subsidiaries
— Binjiang real estate and its subsidiaries 281,063 253,788
— Associates of Binjiang Holding 160,503 98,591
— Associates of the Group — 2,132

Brokerage services for property sales

income from:
— Binjiang Holding and its subsidiaries
— Binjiang real estate and its subsidiaries 26,460 12,316
— Binjiang Holding and its other

subsidiaries — 426
— Associates of Binjiang Holding 4,680 44,625

Sales of goods to:
— Binjiang real estate and its subsidiaries 101 —

Receiving catering services from:
— Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries 271 822

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022

329



SRE P BwRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

28 EXHEBARSZ (B 28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c) ERBBEARZ(E) (c) Significant related party transactions

(Continued)

20225 20214
2022 2021
ARETR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BEUTARIMBEEEE RS : Receiving hotel management services from:
—BIFEREMBRA — Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries 1,196 —
BEXRHHERS Receiving services of short-term leases
—BIFEREMBRA — Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries 2,198 1,918
BUATARMEERAEEE: Acquisitions of right-of-use assets from:
—BIFEREMBRA — Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries — 1,159
MEABNERAX: Interest expense on lease liabilities:
—BIFEREMBRA — Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries 39 57
Wl B A - MR R Acquisitions of parking space, storage
room and shops
—BIREREMBAR — Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries 65,835 35,141

330 BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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LA A R T 7R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(d) Balances with related parties

(BR=BIEBEIN

28 EXBABARS (1)

(d) ELEEEE S HVE ER

20225 20214
2022 2021
BR M & FREE
HwrE EHEEE mEE EERE
Gross Gross
carrying Loss carrying Loss
amount allowance amount allowance
NGBS -E A X T ARETIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BWRUATATFES  Trade receivables due from:
PEW SR
BIFERE Binjiang Real Estate and its
a=ENE] subsidiaries
—B5HE — Trade nature 31,827 1,276 44,071 —
ETHE R M) B & N A) Associates of Binjiang Holding
—B5HE — Trade nature 28,990 950 20,099 —
AEEMB L AR Associates of the Group
—B5HE — Trade nature 1,509 45 — —
62,326 2,271 64,170 —
BWATATE#M  Other receivables due from:
FE Wy 5K 8 -
BIFEKRE Binjiang Real Estate and its
I)ERNG] subsidiaries
—EB5nE — Trade nature 500 — 500 —
BT A2 A8 Associates of Binjiang Holding
—E5MnE — Trade nature 1,024 — 561 —
1,524 — 1,061 -

BIRGEEARAR FEME 2022
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(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

28 EXBABARS ()

(d) EEEEEESRVAER

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(d) Balances with related parties
(Continued)

20224 20214F
2022 2021
AR% Tt NS R
RMB’000 RMB’000

ENRT AR RIE:

BT E M EWE R E

—EBE51HE

AR g0l AN

Amounts due to:
Binjiang Real Estate and its
subsidiaries

— Trade nature 43,476 18,080

Associates of Binjiang Holding

—EB51H — Trade nature 12,661 7,866
REBMEE QT Associates of the Group
—EB5M1E — Trade nature 541 —
56,678 25,946
ENfHEARE: Lease liabilities due to:
— B TIEENEK BAR — Binjiang Real Estate and its
subsidiaries 119 638
(i) HZE2022F K2021F12 A31HIEFE - (i) For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 the
AEBRBEGTREREIFENS Group used the trademarks of Binjiang Real Estate
o in the PRC on a royalty-free basis.
(i) FERENEBESRBEAEKRR SR (i) Amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured
2 and interest-free.

332 BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

28 EXBBALRS(E)

EXF A RERIEITLREE & EHK
BRAREMEREERY « & AR
% XA AR R &R 4 RIS A K B
BIFELREMBAREESR T
MENBB TS BX LR
FUAEMAETNBEEXHAFE
ERS - LHRAF4ATRR
ENRBEFHREREFTEREH
BRABERXS]—& -

EXFaEBEREBEISEMND
2 BXEBEIREZESRRED
B AR SEK ETRAEI4AE
FIATHBEERIABFERER
2 BERZERZEN LMHEA
FUATOEMIER EN HERE - &
BHRABETZERERT -

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The related party transactions in respect of
provision of property management services,
consulting services, pre-delivery services and
brokerage services to Binjiang Real Estate and
its subsidiaries and certain properties leased
from Binjiang Real Estate and its subsidiaries
above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are provided in section
“CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS”
of the Report of Directors.

The related party transactions in respect of
using trademarks of Binjiang Real Estate,
receiving catering services from Binjiang Real
Estate above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, those transactions are exempt from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules as they are below the de
minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

EOLIS SRR AT FERE 2022
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(BB EHEBPEHEI LA REEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

29 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

29 REEEZBBMRR K

20225 20214
2022 2021
ARE Tt IUNGE R
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
R—KEBARBKE Investment in a subsidiary 95,790 87,676
S E U Property, plant and equipment 547 336
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 96,337 88,012
REBEE Current assets
B 5 & HAEWFIE Trade and other receivables 9,157 8,663
E B K Time deposits — 71,606
BHeMIReZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,618 41,527
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 13,775 121,796
REBAE Current liabilities
B 5 & B At & B Trade and other payables 11,977 11,359
HEBE lease liabilities 334 —
12,311 11,359
REBEEFHE Net current assets 1,464 110,437
MEERARBER Total assets less current
liabilities 97,801 198,449
EEFHE NET ASSETS 97,801 198,449
EXREE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
g AR Share capital 181 181
ER Reserves 97,620 198,268
il TOTAL EQUITY 97,801 198,449

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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(BB EHEBPEI  LLARBEITHIR) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

WERRNFARER

RIEIKRE  EEZHRMARFBRE -
HE—FF B 24000 E -

BEERRERERT

MR2022F 128318 EERAKREED
BRERERTAEBEARESEILE -

20226128318 EE R A KEEH
BEESARAEEARKRER NG - ZE
RUYEREAUTEARNAZHERE -

REZE2022F12A31BLFECE M
BREARERZIERT - HEARZEN

N 1="A
BESE

EEAYBHRATZEEE  HEgTE
AIEEgCMMEIERE £2022F124
BIEBELEFERARERNERTBERENR
BERNBFET RIS TR - EFRBIE
AT ATRE B AN R B AR R RO S 5T IO 228 o

30

31

32

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
directors proposed a final dividend. Further details
are disclosed in note 24(c)(i).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2022, the directors consider the
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Mr. Qi
Jinxing, an individual person.

At 31 December 2022, the directors consider the
immediate parent of the Group to be Great Dragon
Ventures Limited. This entity does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number of new
and or amended standards, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2022
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

BETIREEEER AR FEHE 2022
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BHIEHEEIN - LAAREITH|R) (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(Bx
32 REZE2022F12831HLFECHEMH

32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

15 ERERZIER] - FEAREZ BN NEW STANDARDS AND
BEFEE INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2022 (Continued)

RATEES 2 ABRNEFHBEN
Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

RABREEMNEARBIN EREGHLRAARIFHEENEIR R
Amendments to IFRS 4, Extension of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9

BReH RS RRERM RS ENERRERIFEAL  BFHRKE

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

S EAFSREA RN Bif AT EHE

Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

BetERENREAR HE-RFELZEERRENBZELRT
Amendments to I1AS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

BRHBREENETR RERAOREEAFHEELZIRCTT RREAY

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

BReHENSVRETR BE/BARGAFNY

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

BRe RN R RGN WEZZNFRYRE

Amendments to IAS 1, Non-current liabilities with covenants

ARE GRS RURGREN L EAHANBEERE

Amendments to IFRS 16, Lease /iability in a sale and leaseback

BB BREENE0RREREHENZWBRET N KEZLEY L1794 &
BHEEHERLE

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its

associate or joint venture

AEELEFBHZFEINTRER
HREBHBELENTE - 2981 K
SERSRMAZFEH IARAELYES

202351718
1 January 2023

202351418
1 January 2023

202351718
1 January 2023

202351418
1 January 2023
202351718

1 January 2023

202451718
1 January 2024

202451718
1 January 2024

202451718
1 January 2024

fE

To be determined

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded

MBBRERBERATE - that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

BINJIANG SERVICE GROUP CO. LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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